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Ontario Energy Board
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Attention: Ms. Nancy Marconi, Registrar
Dear Ms. Marconi:

Re: Wataynikaneyap Power LP - Application for Approval of 2026 Electricity
Transmission Rates (EB-2025-0192)

We are legal counsel to Wataynikaneyap Power LP, a licensed Ontario electricity transmitter.
Wataynikaneyap Power LP, by its general partner Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. (together,
“WPLP”), is pleased to submit its application to the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) for approval of
an electricity transmission revenue requirement and associated transmission rates for the 2026
test year.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at the number shown above.

Yours truly/
Y. i

Jonatiian Myers

cc: Ms. Margaret Kenequanash, WPLP
Mr. Duane Fecteau, WPLP
Mr. Charles Keizer, Torys LLP
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ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O.
1998, c. 15 (Sched. B) (the “Act”);

AND IN THE MATTER OF an application by Wataynikaneyap
Power GP Inc. on behalf of Wataynikaneyap Power LP (“WPLP”)
for an Order or Orders made pursuant to section 78 of the Act,
approving or fixing just and reasonable rates for the transmission of
electricity.

APPLICATION

Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. (“Wataynikaneyap GP”) is an Ontario corporation and the
general partner of Wataynikaneyap Power LP (“Wataynikaneyap LP”), an Ontario limited
partnership. Wataynikaneyap GP on behalf of Wataynikaneyap LP (“WPLP” or the
“Applicant”) holds an electricity transmission licence (ET-2015-0264) from the Ontario
Energy Board (the “Board” or “OEB”). WPLP is seeking approval of an electricity
transmission revenue requirement in respect of a single test year, commencing January 1,

2026.

The limited partnership interests in Wataynikaneyap LP are held 51% by First Nation LP
and 49% by Fortis (WP) LP. First Nation LP is an Ontario limited partnership whose
general partner is 2472881 Ontario Limited (“First Nation GP”’). The limited partnership
interests in First Nation LP are held directly and in equal shares by 24 First Nations (the
“Participating First Nations). Fortis (WP) LP is an Ontario limited partnership whose
general partner is Fortis (WP) GP Inc. The limited partnership interests in Fortis (WP) LP
are held by Fortis Inc. (80%) and indirectly by Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. (20%).
With respect to the corresponding general partnerships, the shares of Wataynikaneyap GP
are held 51% by First Nation GP and 49% by Fortis (WP) GP Inc. The shares of First
Nation GP are held directly and in equal shares by the Participating First Nations. The
shares of Fortis (WP) GP Inc. are indirectly held by Fortis Inc. (100%).
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WPLP was established for the purposes of developing, constructing, owning and operating
a new electricity transmission system, approximately 1742 km in total length, in
northwestern Ontario that will (i) reinforce transmission from a point near Dinorwic to
Pickle Lake by means of the “Line to Pickle Lake”, and (ii) provide transmission
connections to remote Indigenous communities by means of the “Remote Connection

Lines”, which extend north of Pickle Lake and north of Red Lake (collectively, the

“Transmission System”).!

On April 1, 2019, the OEB granted WPLP leave to construct the Transmission System
(EB-2018-0190). In addition, the OEB approved a bespoke cost recovery and rate
framework for the Remote Connection Lines portion of the Transmission System, which
results in a monthly fixed charge applicable to Hydro One Remote Communities Inc.
(“HORCT”). The OEB also confirmed that, for the Line to Pickle Lake portion of the
Transmission System, WPLP’s revenue requirement will be recovered through the network

charge component of the Uniform Transmission Rates (“UTRs”).

This is WPLP’s fifth transmission revenue requirement application. WPLP’s first such
application (EB-2021-0134) was in respect of its 2022 electricity transmission revenue
requirement and associated rates effective April 1, 2022, and approval to charge HORCI a
fixed charge for transmission service effective May 1, 2022. The second application was
in respect of WPLP’s 2023 transmission revenue requirement (EB-2022-0149), the third
was in respect of WPLP’s 2024 transmission revenue requirement (EB-2023-0168), and
the fourth was in respect of WPLP’s 2025 transmission revenue requirement (EB-2024-
0176). In each of these proceedings, the parties reached complete settlement on all issues,

which settlements were subsequently approved by the OEB.

In WPLP’s most recent application (EB-2024-0176), the approved Settlement Agreement

provided for a total 2025 revenue requirement of $176.2 million after accounting for the

! WPLP’s development, construction and operation of the Transmission System are also in accordance with the
Guiding Principles which were approved by the leadership of the Participating First Nations.

52147880.7
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2025 cost of capital, with recovery of $43.5 million through the UTR Network rate pool
effective January 1, 2025 in respect of the Line to Pickle Lake portion of WPLP’s
transmission system, and recovery of $132.7 million through a monthly fixed charge of

$11.1 million to HORCI effective January 1, 2025 in respect of the Remote Connection

Lines portion of WPLP’s transmission system.

In the current application, WPLP is seeking approval of a single-year cost of service
revenue requirement for the 2026 test year, commencing on January 1, 2026. In accordance
with the terms of the approved Settlement Proposal in EB-2024-0176, WPLP will file a
multi-year revenue requirement application using an incentive-based regulatory method

available to transmitters in 2026 for a rate period starting with the 2027 test year.

The Line to Pickle Lake went into service on August 12, 2022. WPLP proposes that the
OEB incorporate the associated revenue requirement for the Line to Pickle Lake into the

updated UTRs for existing transmitters effective January 1, 2026.

The Remote Connection Lines have gone into service in stages between Q4 2022 and Q2
2024, with the final segments being energized in May 2024. WPLP proposes to implement
the monthly fixed charge to HORCI, reflecting all of the assets comprising the Remote

Connection Lines, effective January 1, 2026.
On the basis of the foregoing, WPLP hereby applies to the OEB for orders approving:

(a) A total revenue requirement of $133,031,093 for the 2026 test year (inclusive of
the disposition of regulatory accounts as described below) and recovery thereof by

means of*

(1) the allocation to the Network UTR rate pool, the calculation of Network
UTR charge determinants, and an amendment to UTRs, to allow for

recovery of $29,685,502, being the portion of the total revenue requirement
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attributed to transmission service provided by the Line to Pickle Lake for

the 2026 test year; and

a fixed charge of $8,612,133 per month, applicable to HORCI from January
1, 2026 to December 31, 2026, for recovery of $103,345,591, being the
portion of the total revenue requirement attributed to transmission service

provided by the Remote Connection Lines for the 2026 test year;

(b) The disposition of deferral and variance accounts, as follows:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Final disposition of the audited balance of the Pikangikum Distribution
System Deferral Account (established by the November 22, 2018 Decision
and Order in EB-2018-0267) as at December 31, 2024, less the amount
approved for disposition in the 2025 rate application, plus forecasted
carrying charges to year-end 20252, and the addition of the corresponding
costs to WPLP’s revenue requirement in respect of the Remote Connection

Lines for 2026, as detailed in Exhibits H-2-1;

Final disposition of the remaining portion of the audited balance of the
COVID Construction Costs Deferral Account (established by the
September 30, 2021 Decision and Order in EB-2021-0134), as at December
31, 2024, less the approved disposition amount included in the 2025 rate
application, plus forecasted carrying charges for 2025°, as further detailed
in Exhibit H-2-1;

Final Disposition of the audited balances of the In-Service Date Variance
Account (established by the September 30, 2021 Decision and Order in EB-
2021-0134), as at December 31, 2024, less the amounts approved for

2 Given principal balance is nil at the end of 2025, there are no forecasted carrying charges for 2026.

52147880.7
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disposition from this account in the 2025 rate application, plus forecasted

carrying charges for 2025 and 2026, as further detailed in Exhibit H-2-1;

(iv)  Final Disposition of the audited balances of the Deferred Contingency
Deferral Account (established by the September 30, 2021 Decision and
Order in EB-2021-0134), as at December 31, 2024, less the amounts
approved for disposition from this account in the 2025 rate application, plus
forecasted carrying charges for 2025 and 2026, as further detailed in Exhibit
H-2-1;

(v) Final disposition of the audited balance of the Federal CIAC Variance
Account (established by the November 30, 2023 decision in EB-2023-
0168), as at December 31, 2024, plus forecasted carrying charges for 2025
and 2026, as further detailed in Exhibit H-2-1;

(vi)  Partial disposition of the audited balances of the Construction Period
Interest Costs Variance Account (established by the September 30, 2021
Decision and Order in EB-2021-0134), as at December 31, 2024, less the
amounts approved for disposition from this account in the 2025 rate
application, plus forecasted carrying charges for 2025 and 2026, as further
detailed in Exhibit H-2-1:

(vii)  Partial disposition of the audited balance of the OM&A Variance Account
(formerly known as the Construction Period OM&A Variance Account,
established by the November 29, 2022 decision in EB-2022-0149), as at
December 31, 2024, less the amounts approved for disposition from this

account in the 2025 rate application, plus forecasted carrying charges for

2025 and 2026, as further detailed in Exhibit H-2-1;

(©) The continuation during 2026, and discontinuation at the end of 2026, of the

Pikangikum Distribution System Deferral Account, In-Service Date Variance

52147880.7
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Account, Deferred Contingency Deferral Account, COVID Construction Costs
Deferral Account and Federal CIAC Variance Account, as requested in Exhibit H-

1-1; and

(d) The continuation in 2026 of the Construction Period Interest Costs Variance

Account and the OM&A Variance Account, as requested in Exhibit H-1-1.

The evidence in support of this application has been prepared generally in accordance with
the requirements set out in the OEB’s Filing Requirements for Electricity Transmission
Rate Applications — Chapter 2, Revenue Requirement Applications, dated February 11,
2016, subject to differences which reflect the unique nature of the application and the

underlying transmission facilities, as described in Exhibit A-5-1.

The Applicant requests that copies of all documents filed with or issued by the OEB in

connection with this Application be served on the Applicant and its counsel as follows:

Applicant:

Ms. Margaret Kenequanash Mr. Duane Fecteau

Chief Executive Officer Vice President — Finance and CFO
Wataynikaneyap Power Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc.
300 Anemki Place, Suite B c/o FortisOntario Inc.

Fort William First Nation, ON PO Box 1218, 1130 Bertie Street
P7J 1H9 Fort Erie, Ontario L2A 5Y2

Tel: (807) 577-5955 ext. 105 Tel: (705) 987-3616

Fax: (807) 577-5575 Fax: (705) 759-2218

margaret.kenequanash@wataypower.ca duane.fecteau(@wataypower.ca



mailto:margaret.kenequanash@wataypower.ca
mailto:duane.fecteau@wataypower.ca

13.

14.

EB-2025-0192
Exhibit A

Tab 2
Schedule 1
Page 7 of 7

Applicant’s Counsel:

Mr. Charles Keizer Mr. Jonathan Myers

Torys LLP Torys LLP

79 Wellington St. W., 30th Floor 79 Wellington St. W., 30th Floor
Box 270 Box 270

TD South Tower TD South Tower

Toronto, Ontario M5K 1N2 Toronto, Ontario M5K 1N2

Tel: 416-865-7512 Tel: 416-865-7532

Fax: 416-865-7380 Fax: 416-865-7380
ckeizer(@torys.com jmyers(@torys.com

Additional written evidence, as required, may be filed in support of this Application, which

may be amended from time to time prior to the OEB’s final decision.

The Applicant requests that the OEB proceed by way of written hearing, pursuant to
Section 32.01 of the OEB’s Rules of Practice and Procedure.

Dated at Toronto, Ontario, this 4th day of July, 2025.

52147880.7

WATAYNIKANEYAP POWER GP INC.
on behalf of WATAYNIKANEYAP POWER LP

By its counsel, T

Jonathan l\/[/yers
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CERTIFICATE OF EVIDENCE

The undersigned, being Duane Fecteau, Vice President Finance and CFO, hereby certifies for and

on behalf of Wataynikaneyap Power LP that:

1. T am a senior officer of Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc., duly authorized to submit this

application on behalf of Wataynikaneyap Power LP;

2. This certificate is given pursuant to Chapter 1 of the Ontario Energy Board’s Filing
Requirements for Electricity Transmission Applications (last revised February 11, 2016);

and

3. The evidence submitted in support of Wataynikaneyap Power LP’s application for 2026
electricity transmission rates (EB-2024-0176) is accurate, consistent and complete to the
best of my knowledge, and does not contain any personal information (as that phrase is
defined in the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.
F.31), that is not otherwise redacted in accordance with rule 9A of the OEB’s Rules of

Practice and Procedure.

Dated this 4th day of July, 2025.

Duane Fecteau

52147857.6
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A. OVERVIEW

WPLP became a licensed transmitter in 2015, and in 2016 construction of WPLP’s Transmission
System was declared by the Province of Ontario to be a priority project pursuant to section 96.1
of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998. After receiving leave to construct and approval of a unique
cost recovery and rate framework in 2019, WPLP secured project financing and engaged an
engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”) contractor through a competitive procurement
process. WPLP’s Transmission System went into service in segments, starting in the second half
of 2022 and continuing throughout 2023, with the final segments of the system having gone into
service in the first half of 2024. As such, 2025 is the first year in which the entire Transmission
System will be operating for a full year. The Transmission System is comprised of 22 stations and
approximately 1742 km of lines in northwestern Ontario, which have reinforced the transmission
system in the region and extended transmission service to connect 16 remote First Nation

communities to the provincial electricity grid for the first time.!

This is WPLP’s fifth transmission revenue requirement application and is in respect of a 2026 test
year. Key areas of focus in WPLP’s prior annual revenue requirement applications, starting with
the 2022 rate year, included WPLP’s construction and in-servicing progress, its monitoring and
oversight of the EPC contractor, including of the contractor’s management of the construction
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic (which started approximately six months after the EPC
contract was signed in September 2019), WPLP’s transition from construction to operations, and
the status of ongoing commercial discussions with the EPC contractor regarding COVID-19

impacts on cost and schedule and related access matters under the EPC contract.

The current application includes WPLP’s first Transmission System Plan (“TSP”), which in
accordance with the terms of its Settlement Agreement in its last revenue requirement proceeding

it has prepared on a best-efforts basis. WPLP’s next revenue requirement application will be for

! The Project is designed to permit the potential future connection of a 17th community, McDowell Lake First
Nation.

52147860.9
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a multi-year rate period starting with a 2027 test year, and will include a more mature TSP. In the
current application, WPLP is seeking approval for a materially lower revenue requirement for 2026
than was approved for 2025. This is largely due to deferral account recoveries, specifically the

Federal CIAC Variance Account and Construction Period Interest Variance Accounts. Further

details on the recovery of these accounts is provided as part of Exhibit H-2-1.

Since WPLP’s last transmission revenue requirement application,”? WPLP has been focused on
operations, including engagement on permanent access plans and the vegetation management
program, amendments to WPLP construction financing agreement as noted in Exhibit G-1-1, and
monitoring construction close-out activities. In addition, as discussed in Exhibit H-2-2, WPLP
continues to be engaged in commercial discussions with its EPC contractor regarding costs under
the EPC Contract in relation to COVID-19 impacts and related access matters, the outcome of
which will ultimately be recorded in the previously approved EPC COVID-Related Construction

Costs Deferral Account.

This Schedule summarizes WPLP’s current application in respect of its transmission revenue
requirement for the 2026 test year and other related approvals (the “Application”). Section B,
below, summarizes key background information about the Applicant, the Transmission System,
context from prior proceedings, and the specific approvals requested in this Application. Section
C summarizes the key elements of the Application, consistent with the headings and expectations
set out in Section 2.3.1 of the Filing Requirements®, including how WPLP has addressed certain

aspects of the Filing Requirements in the context of filing a single test year Application.

Historical costs presented in this Application are consistent with WPLP’s December 31, 2024

audited financial statements. Other information is current as of May 31, 2025.

2 EB-2024-0176, Decision and Order, December 10, 2024.

3 Filing Requirements for Electricity Transmission Rate Applications — Chapter 2, Revenue Requirement
Applications, dated February 11, 2016

52147860.9
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B. BACKGROUND
1. The Applicant

WPLP is a Limited Partnership between First Nation LP, whose partnership interests are held
directly by 24 Participating First Nations in equal shares, and Fortis (WP) LP, whose partnership
interests are held by Fortis Inc. and indirectly by Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp.

Of the 24 Participating First Nations, which are from northwestern Ontario, 16 have been
connected to WPLP’s Transmission System as part of the Transmission Project.* All of the
Participating First Nations have been instrumental in the development of WPLP’s Transmission
System, and are uniquely qualified to support the ongoing engagement, communication and
Indigenous participation activities that have been necessary to facilitate successful project
execution and construction, and which continue to be vital to the ongoing operation of the

Transmission System.

Fortis Inc. is a diversified leader in the North American regulated electric and gas utility industry
that leverages its knowledge, experience and expertise to support project management,
engineering, operations, finance, regulatory and various corporate functions to support the

successful construction and ongoing operation of the Transmission System.
WPLP’s ownership structure is described in further detail in Exhibit A-4-1.

2. The Transmission System

WPLP’s Transmission System operates as a single in-service transmission system in northwestern
Ontario. One part of the system reinforces transmission to Pickle Lake (the “Line to Pickle Lake”).

The balance of the system, connects the provincial power system to 16 remote First Nation

4 For Muskrat Dam First Nation, which has historically been served by an Independent Power Authority (“IPA”), the
transmission system assets up to the community connection point were energized by WPLP in 2023, but
community connection is pending IPA upgrades and information transfers, and is therefore expected to occur in
2025. The upgrades and information transfers are being coordinated by Indigenous Services Canada and are
outside of WPLP’s control, as further detailed in Attachment A of the most recent Semi-Annual Report dated
April 15,2025 in EB-2018-0190.

52147860.9
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communities that have historically only been served by local diesel generation (the “Remote

Connection Lines”).’

The Line to Pickle Lake went into service in August 2022. It consists of: (a) a 230 kV switching
station (Dinorwic SS®) at the location where WPLP’s Transmission System connects to Hydro
One’s 230 kV system near Dinorwic; (b) an approximately 303 km single circuit 230 kV line
running generally in a northeasterly direction from the Dinorwic area to the Pickle Lake area; and
(c) a 230/115 kV transformer station (Pickle Lake TS’) in the Pickle Lake area, which supplies
WPLP’s Pickle Lake Remote Connection Lines and connects to Hydro One’s Pickle Lake area

115 kV transmission system.

The Remote Connection Lines went into service in segments starting in late 2022, with further
segments put in service in 2023 and the remaining segments put into service during the first half
0f2024. The Remote Connection Lines consist of: (a) the Pickle Lake Remote Connection Lines,
comprised of approximately 903 km of single circuit 115 kV, 44 kV and 25 kV transmission lines,
as well as one switching station and nine transformer stations located generally to the north of the
Pickle Lake TS; and (b) the Red Lake Remote Connection Lines, comprised of'a 115 kV switching
station (Red Lake SS) at WPLP’s connection to Hydro One’s 115 kV system near Red Lake, as
well as approximately 535 km of single circuit 115 kV and 25 kV transmission lines, three
additional switching stations and six transformer stations located generally to the north of the Red

Lake SS.*

5 One of the 16 communities, Pikangikum First Nation, became grid-connected in 2018 through an interim 44 kV
connection that was converted to 115 kV on May 12, 2023, and therefore now forms part of WPLP’s
Transmission System. The future connection of a 17" community, McDowell Lake First Nation, would also be
supported through the Remote Connection Lines.

¢ The updated name of the switching station to Dinorwic SS from Wataynikaneyap SS is to be consistent with IESO
registration naming.

7 The updated name of the switching station to Pickle Lake TS from Wataynikaneyap TS is to be consistent with
IESO registration naming.

8 In EB-2018-0190, the OEB amended Schedule 1 of WPLP’s Transmission Licence (ET-2015-0264) to reflect that
the 44 kV and 25 kV segments of WPLP’s Transmission System were deemed to be transmission facilities
pursuant to Section 84(b) of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.

52147860.9
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The Remote Connection Lines provide transmission service to the 25 kV distribution systems that
are or are in the process of becoming owned and operated by Hydro One Remote Communities
Inc. (“HORCI”) in each of the 16 connected First Nation communities.® Exhibit B-1-2 provides

detailed descriptions of the components of WPLP’s Transmission System and Appendix “A”

thereto provides as a map showing the geographical location and extent of the system.

3. Context from Prior Proceedings

The following unique aspects from prior proceedings provide important context for the current

Application.

(a)  Cost Recovery and Rate Framework!?

The OEB determined in the LTC Decision that the Line to Pickle Lake is a network facility and
that cost recovery for the Line to Pickle Lake would be through the UTR Network charge in the
normal course of setting transmission rates. Since its initial rate proceeding for the 2022 test
year,'! WPLP has therefore ensured that all costs directly related to the Line to Pickle Lake are
recorded as such, and that any indirect costs included in its revenue requirement are appropriately

allocated between the Line to Pickle Lake and the Remote Connection Lines.

With respect to the Remote Connection Lines, in the LTC proceeding WPLP proposed and the
OEB approved an alternative cost recovery and rate framework that would be compatible with
project-specific funding it expected to receive from the federal government. The proposal was
also designed to ensure that the construction and operation of the Transmission System, and WPLP

as a utility, would be financially viable, regardless of whether such funding is ultimately received.

As part of the cost recovery and rate framework approved in the LTC Decision, the OEB approved

exemptions from the provisions of the Transmission System Code that would otherwise have

2 HORCI continues to work with Muskrat Dam First Nation. An update on progress has been provided in the Semi-
Annual Report dated April 15, 2025, filed pursuant to EB-2018-0190.

10 EB-2018-0190, Decision and Order, April 1, 2019 (Revised April 29, 2019) (“LTC Decision”), Section 5.
"' EB-2021-0134, Decision and Order, September 30, 2021 (“Initial Rate Decision”).

52147860.9
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required HORCI to make a capital contribution towards the cost of constructing the Remote
Connection Lines. Instead, WPLP calculates a distinct revenue requirement for the Remote
Connection Lines and recovers that revenue requirement through a monthly fixed charge to
HORCI. In accordance with regulations under the Ontario Energy Board Act, the expense incurred
by HORCI in respect of these monthly fixed charges forms part of HORCI’s revenue requirement
and thereby forms part of the Rural or Remote Rate Protection (RRRP) funding calculation and
RRRP amounts payable to HORCI. Through this rate framework, costs associated with WPLP’s
Transmission System do not impact rates for customers in the connected First Nation communities.
Moreover, some of the funding provided under the Federal Funding Framework will be used to
offset the impacts on the RRRP amounts that the IESO will need to recover from all Ontario
transmission customers such that costs associated with WPLP’s Remote Connection Lines would
not be expected to impact rates for any customers in Ontario until such time as the funds of the

independent Trust (established pursuant to the Federal Funding Framework) are exhausted.

The Federal Funding Framework is discussed further in Exhibit I-4-1. Significantly, the
distribution of federal funds to the independent Trust occurred on June 25, 2024, and a portion of
the independent Trust proceeds were provided to WPLP to be applied as a CIAC on July 11, 2024.
As such, the impact of such federal funding is incorporated into the current application. As noted
below and described in Exhibit H-1-1, to address the revenue requirement impacts of the timing
for the federal funds being distributed and applied as a CIAC, which was previously uncertain, the
OEB in the 2024 Rate Application approved a variance account referred to as the Federal CIAC

Variance Account.

Another key development in 2024, also described in Exhibit [-4-1, was that the parties to the Trust
Agreement under the Federal Funding Framework agreed to an Amendment to the Trust
Agreement which (i) excluded from the determination of WPLP’s available Owner Equity the
$68.71M in COVID-19 costs that were added to rate base in EB-2023-0168, thereby increasing
WPLP’s available Owner Equity under the Trust from $458M to $520M, and (ii) requires the
independent Trust to make an additional CIAC to WPLP once WPLP has settled or otherwise

resolved the amounts that are the subject of ongoing commercial discussions with the EPC

52147860.9
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Contractor, recorded such amounts in the EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account, and the
OEB has reviewed and approved the prudence of the amounts that may be added to WPLP’s rate
base on disposition of the balance in the EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account in a future
application, inclusive of accumulated carrying charges. The amount of such additional CIAC will
be equal to the approved rate base addition such that there would not ultimately be a rate base

addition in respect of the disposition from the EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account,
thereby reducing the impact of COVID-19 on Ontario electricity ratepayers. 2

(b) OM&A Variance

In the 2023 Rate Decision'?, the OEB approved a comprehensive settlement agreement, pursuant
to which the parties agreed that WPLP would establish what was then called the Construction
Period OM&A Variance Account, asymmetrical to the benefit of ratepayers, to record the
difference, if any, between the annual forecast and actual OM&A expenses during the construction
period, with any shortfall in actual spending relative to forecast to be returned to ratepayers in a
future proceeding. This account was maintained in the 2024 Rate Decision'* and in the Prior Rate
Decision!? for the 2025 test year. However, as part of the Prior Decision, the account was renamed
the “OM&A Variance Account” to reflect that it would be used to record additional variance
amounts for 2025 rather than maintaining it only for the purposes of facilitating recovery of the
existing balance and applicable carrying costs. As discussed below, WPLP is proposing to partially
dispose of the OM&A Variance Account, and to record any variances between approved and actual
OM&A expense, along with applicable carrying charges for 2025 and 2026, as agreed in EB-2024-
0176, but is not seeking to add to the principal balance in 2026.

12 The impact of the two changes to the Trust Agreement is to materially reduce the financial impact of the Project
for Ontario ratepayers, as further discussed in Exhibit [-4-1.

13 EB-2022-0149, Decision and Order, November 29, 2022 (“2023 Rate Decision”).
14 EB-2023-0168, Decision and Order, November 30, 2023 (“2024 Rate Decision”).
15 EB-2024-0176, Decision and Order, December 10, 2024 (the “Prior Rate Decision”).

52147860.9



[V, B SN VS B S

(o)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20
21
22

23
24

EB-2025-0192
Exhibit A

Tab 3
Schedule 1
Page 8 of 24

(c) COVID Cost Recovery

In the OEB-approved settlement agreement from the Initial Rate Decision, the parties agreed that
WPLP may recover its audited 2020 year-end balance of COVID-related costs as an expense
through disposition of the balance in the “COVID Construction Costs Deferral Account” over a 4-

year period (i.e. 25% in each of 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025).

In the settlement agreement approved in the 2023 Rate Decision, the parties agreed that WPLP
would establish a new and distinct “2021-2023 COVID Construction Costs Deferral Account” to
record audited year-end COVID-related costs from 2021 to 2023.

In the 2024 Rate Decision, the OEB authorized establishment of a further account, the “EPC
COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account” to record costs, including applicable carrying charges,
incurred and to be incurred by WPLP under its EPC contract that relate to 2020 or later and which
are in respect of anticipated claims from the EPC contractor for cost and schedule relief under the
EPC contract in relation to COVID and related access issues in the Whitefeather Forest area. The
parties to the settlement approved in the 2024 Rate Decision agreed that the method of recovery —
as capital or as expenses — will be subject to determination in a future application, and that the
carrying cost shall on an interim basis be the OEB prescribed rate but shall be recalculated on the

basis of the applicable CWIP rate if and when recovery is determined to be as capital.
See section C.11, below, as well as Exhibit H-2-2 for further details.

4. Approvals Requested

The primary purpose of this Application is to request approval of a total electricity transmission
revenue requirement of $133,031,093 for a single test year, commencing January 1, 2026. A

number of related approvals are also explicitly requested, including approvals for:

e allocation of WPLP’s 2026 revenue requirement between the Line to Pickle Lake and the

Remote Connection Lines as set out in Exhibit I-2-1, as well as:

52147860.9
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o recovery of the portion of WPLP’s 2026 revenue requirement allocated to the Line
to Pickle Lake, being $29,685,502, through adjustments to the 2026 Network UTR

rate in the manner described in Exhibit I-3-1, and

o recovery of the portion of WPLP’s 2026 revenue requirement allocated to the
Remote Connection Lines, being $103,345,591, through fixed monthly charges of
$8,612,133, applicable to HORCI effective from January 1, 2026 to December 31,
2026, as described in Exhibit 1-3-2;

final disposition of the Pikangikum Distribution System Deferral Account, COVID
Construction Costs Deferral Account, the In-Service Date Variance Account, Deferred
Contingency Deferral Account and the Federal CIAC Variance Account, as more

particularly set out in Exhibit H-2-1;

partial disposition of the Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account and the

OM&A Variance Account, as more particularly set out in Exhibit H-2-1;

the continuation during 2026, and discontinuation at the end of 2026, of the Pikangikum
Distribution System Deferral Account, In-Service Date Variance Account, Deferred
Contingency Deferral Account, COVID Construction Costs Deferral Account and Federal
CIAC Variance Account, as requested in Exhibit H-2-1; and

the continuation of the Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account and the

OM&A Variance Account, as requested in Exhibit H-2-1.'6

16 For greater certainty, WPLP assumes that the EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account will also be
continued, in accordance with the terms established for the account.

52147860.9
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C. KEY ELEMENTS OF THE APPLICATION
1. Revenue Requirement and Materiality Threshold

In this Application, WPLP requests approval of a 2026 test year revenue requirement of
$133,031,093.

requirement, with references to the relevant sections of the Application that substantiate each

Table 1, below, provides a summary of the derivation of WPLP’s revenue

AN »n B~ W

component.

Table 1 — 2026 Revenue Requirement Summary

LTPL RCL Total Reference
Gross Fixed Assets (avg) 321,759,981 1,001,637,154 1,323,397,135 C-3-1
Accumulated Depreciation (avg) -23,937,770 -63,976,355 -87,914,125 C-3-1
Net Fixed Assets (avg) 297,822,211 937,660,799 1,235,483,010 C-3-1
Working Capital Allowance 0 0 0 C-4-1
Rate Base 297,822,211 937,660,799 1,235,483,010 C-1-1
Regulated Rate of Return 6.34% 6.34% 6.34% G-2-1
Regulated Return on Rate Base 18,867,037 59,400,813 78,267,850 G-2-1
OM&A Expenses 6,025,286 32,328,524 38,353,810 F-2-1
Property Taxes 0 0 0 F-5-1
Depreciation Expense 6,536,434 20,327,124 26,863,558 F-4-1
Income Taxes 105,976 490,349 596,325 F-5-1
Service Revenue Requirement 31,534,733 112,546,810 144,081,543
Other Revenue Offset 0 0 0 E-3-1
Base Revenue Requirement 31,534,733 112,546,810 144,081,543
Disposition of Pikangikum Distribution 0 -3,555 -3,555 H-2-1
System Deferral Account
Disposition of COVID Construction -17,001 -7,380 -24,381 H-2-1
Costs Deferral Account (CCCDA)
Disposition of In-Service Date Variance -224,793 6,771,416 6,546,623 H-2-1
Account (ISDVA)
Disposition of Period Interest Costs 334,137 1,404,524 1,738,661 H-2-1
Variance Account (CPICVA)
Disposition of Deferred Contingency 13,261 52,725 65,986 H-2-1
Deferral Account (DCDA)

52147860.9
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Disposition of OM&A Variance Account -1,954,835 -2,582,438 -4,537,273 H-2-1
Disposition of Federal CIAC Variance 0 -14,836,511 -14,836,511 H-2-1

Account

Revenue Requirement for Rates 29,685,502 103,345,591 133,031,093 I-1-1

For transmitters requesting approval of revenue requirements greater than $10 million and less
than or equal to $200 million, Section 2.1.1 of the Filing Requirements specifies a materiality
threshold of 0.5% of revenue requirement. Based on the revenue requirement indicated in Table

1 above, WPLP’s materiality threshold is approximately $665,155.

2. Budgeting Assumptions

Where applicable, WPLP has assumed an inflation rate of 2%.

3. Load Forecast Summary

WPLP forecasts that the Network UTR demand determinants will increase by 16.1 MW in 2026,
to atotal of 210.0 MW. This is based on (i) load on the distribution systems in the ten First Nation
communities connected to the North of Pickle Lake Remote Connection Lines, which are or will
be supplied directly by WPLP’s Transmission System,!” and (ii) load on the distribution systems
in the six First Nation communities connected to the North of Red Lake Remote Connection Lines,
which are supplied directly by WPLP’s Transmission System via HONI’s transmission system,
but which is not included in HONI’s UTR charge determinant forecast. Details of WPLP’s
methodology for determining the monthly demand forecast for each community are provided in

Exhibit E-1-1.

In consideration of the rate framework approved by the OEB for the Remote Connection Lines,'®
WPLP has requested approval of a fixed monthly charge, in the amount of $8,612,133, applicable

to HORCI for service from the Remote Connection Lines. WPLP has therefore not included any

17 In the case of Muskrat Dam First Nation, community connection is pending IPA upgrades and information
transfers, and is expected to occur in 2025. WPLP has included their load forecast in this 2026 rate application.

18 See Section C.8 below for additional detail on the Remote Connection Lines rate framework.
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Line Connection or Transformation Connection revenue requirements or charge determinants in

its 2026 rate design.

4. Transmission System Plan

This is WPLP’s first application that includes a Transmission System Plan (“TSP”). In accordance
with the Prior Decision which recognizes certain limitations on WPLP, the TSP has been prepared
on a best-efforts basis. It is comprised of the past five historical/bridge years from 2021-2025, and
the five future years from 2026-2030. As WPLP’s Transmission System is newly constructed, it
requires minimal sustaining capital investment in the near term and the operational experience
WPLP is gaining over the first full year of the entire system being in service during 2025 will help
inform its capital planning going forward. Some elements of the TSP remain incomplete or under
development given WPLP’s limited time and resources since the conclusion of EB-2024-0176 and
2025 being the first full year of actuals based on the entire Transmission System being in service.
WPLP will continue to develop its TSP for inclusion as part of its first multi-year rate application,

which will be filed in 2026 for a rate period starting with the 2027 rate year.
(a) Investment Planning

The key components of WPLP’s investment planning process are its Strategic Plan, O&M

Strategy, Economic and Planning Assumptions and its Investment Strategy.

WPLP’s Strategic Plan is reflected in the Mandate, Vision and Guiding Principles established by
the leadership of the 24 Participating First Nations and supported by the partners during
development of the Transmission Project. Following completion of the Transmission Project,
WPLP initiated a process to engage with the First Nations to reaffirm and reinvigorate the
Mandate, Vision and Guiding Principles in consideration of the transition to Operations. This
renewed framework, once finalized, will provide the foundation for WPLP’s overall organizational

strategy, which will in turn influence the progression of WPLP’s O&M and investment strategies.

WPLP’s O&M Strategy is integrally linked to its preliminary Asset Management Plan and is

therefore an important component of the initial TSP. WPLP has implemented its initial strategy,
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which has included third-party agreements for Inspection, Maintenance and Emergency Response
(“IMER”) activities and control room services, maximizing opportunities for Indigenous
Participation through employment, contracting and capacity building, evaluating emerging
technologies and work methods that support an O&M methods tailored to WPLP’s unique
circumstances, leveraging construction resources to support efficient Transmission System
operations and recruiting internal resources to lead and support ramp-up of O&M programs during
the transition from the construction phase. WPLP has also selected a service provider to perform
required environmental monitoring and reporting activities and plans to contract for initial
vegetation management services. Finally, WPLP is in the process of implementing a software-
based Asset Management Condition Monitoring Solution, discussed below, which will assist
WPLP in managing asset, inspection and testing data to support work planning and other utility

functions.

WPLP’s Economic and Planning Assumptions include a forecasted annual growth rate of 4% for
load in the connected First Nations over the medium to long term. In addition, WPLP has started
to receive inquiries related to connecting new industrial loads to its Transmission System. As no
connection applicants have yet proceeded with Connection Estimates, WPLP has not included any
investments related to new industrial connections in its future investment forecasts. In working
with interested parties, WPLP will follow its OEB-approved Transmission Connection Procedures,
which include important procedures for ensuring adequate capacity is maintained to meet the needs
of the connected First Nations and to clarify for proponents their separate responsibility to engage
directly with First Nations. In addition, WPLP monitors and participates in relevant regional

planning processes, which may also drive the need for investments in the Transmission System.

WPLP’s historical capital investments have been primarily focused on the development,
construction, and placing into service of the Transmission Project. Given the age and condition of
WPLP’s Transmission System, it requires relatively minimal sustaining capital investment in the
near term. WPLP expects the quantum and timing of future capital investments will be heavily
influenced by the outcome of regional planning processes and connection requests that are

currently in progress, as well as the evolution of its organizational and operations strategies. As

52147860.9



0 N N D

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20

EB-2025-0192

Exhibit A

Tab 3

Schedule 1

Page 14 of 24

the current Application is for a single test year, WPLP’s planned capital expenditures are focused
on the 2026 test year. WPLP has also considered projects and programs that will be further costed,

prioritized and scheduled as part of the next TSP to be filed with WPLP’s first multi-year rate plan.
(b)  Asset Management Planning

To effectively manage the extensive data associated with in-service and commissioning records,
inspection programs and diagnostic testing, and to help retrieve, sort and analyze this data to
identify and prioritize maintenance needs, WPLP is in the process of implementing a software-
based Asset Management Condition Monitoring Solution (“ENGIN”). Given that the majority of
WPLP’s assets have decades of estimated service life remaining, WPLP’s current focus is on
implementing its initial preventive maintenance strategy, which is primarily schedule-based, in
parallel with implementing ENGIN to support the evolution to predictive and/or reliability-
centered maintenance strategies. This strategy will include a comprehensive asset condition
monitoring program which, using ENGIN, will determine health indices for each asset. However,
meaningful asset health information and trending is not yet available. WPLP also tracks and
monitors frequency and causes of planned and unplanned outages to inform its preventative and
corrective maintenance strategies and investment planning, and is implementing annual and multi-

year inspection and maintenance programs for its substation and line assets.
(©) Prior Sustaining Capital Expenditures
WPLP’s historical sustaining capital expenditures by year are summarized in Table 2, below.

Table 2 — Sustaining Capital Expenditures by Year

Capital Expenditures ($000°s)
2021 2022 2023 2024 20251
System Access 0 0 0 0 0

RRFE Category

19 As noted in Exhibit D-2-1, at the time of filing there are ongoing wildfires within the region through which
WPLP’s Transmission System traverses. At the time of filing, the extent of damage to WPLP’s facilities, if any,
is unknown. Once this information becomes available, and if the circumstances warrant, WPLP will provide an
update to its evidence.
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System Renewal 0 0 359 326 800

System Service 0 0 0 0 0
General Plant 0 0 0 0 380
Total Sustaining Capital 0 0 359 326 1,180

The sustaining investments above relate to wood pole replacement costs due to woodpecker

damage, as well as minor General Plant expenditures related to IT infrastructure and office

equipment, consistent with the in-service additions forecasted in WPLP’s 2025 rate application.

(d) Proposed 2026 Test Year Capital Expenditures

WPLP’s planned capital expenditures for the 2026 test year are summarized in Table 3 below.

Table 3 — 2026 Capital Expenditures ($000’s)

RRFE Category

Project / Program

Expenditure by Project/Program

20

System Access N/A 0
System Renewal Wood Pole Replacement 800
System Service N/A 0
IT Hardware and Software 135
IT Infrastructure and
. 337
Business Systems
Spare Equipment and
Material Storage and 400
General Plant Physical Security
Outage / Emergency
500
Response Preparedness
Office Furniture and
System Monitoring / 500
Dispatch Workstations
Total Sustaining Capital 2,672

20 As noted in Exhibit D-2-1, at the time of filing there are ongoing wildfires within the region through which
WPLP’s Transmission System traverses. At the time of filing, the extent of damage to WPLP’s facilities, if any,
is unknown. Once this information becomes available, and if the circumstances warrant, WPLP will provide an

update to its evidence.
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(e) Future Projects and Programs

Capital projects and programs being considered for inclusion in the multi-year investment plans

that will form part of WPLP’s future TSPs include:

5.

System Access projects from potential mining project connections and potential relocation
projects to accommodate realignments or new construction of winter and all-season roads

near WPLP’s transmission ROWs;

System Renewal to address concerns of wood pole failure from woodpecker damage along
the discrete sections of the Transmission System that use wood pole structures, and
potentially from lightning strikes or wildfire damage. In addition, any replacements

required for the small subset of asset classes with short service lives;

System Service could include additional capacitive compensation in approximately the
mid-2030s to address voltage drops, the potential need for which was identified by long-
term planning studies completed during project development and will continue to be
monitored. In addition, WPLP will assess opportunities for strategic investments to
address reactive power compensation needs and extend the life of existing backup power
solutions. Furthermore, it is possible that regional planning processes could drive
additional investment needs on WPLP’s Transmission System to increase load meeting

capability and/or improve reliability in the North of Dryden area; and

General Plant is expected to include regular investments in IT and OT systems, office
furniture, fleet and facilities, the timing of which will be informed by the strategic planning

and investment planning processes summarized above.

Rate Base

WPLP’s forecasted rate base for the 2026 test year is summarized in Table 4. WPLP proposes to

calculate its rate base for the 2026 test year using the half-year rule, consistent with section 2.8.10
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of the Filing Requirements. Details of in-service additions and the derivation of WPLP’s rate base

are provided in Exhibit ‘C’.

Table 4 — 2026 Rate Base

2026 Forecast ($000's)
Ttem Opening | Closing | Average
Gross Fixed Assets 1,322,061 | 1,324,733 | 1,323,397
Less Accumulated Depreciation | (74,482) | (101,346) | (87,914)
Net Fixed Assets 1,247,579 | 1,223,387 | 1,235,483
Working Capital Allowance?! - - -
Total Rate Base 1,247,579 | 1,223,387 | 1,235,483
6. Performance and Reporting

In the approved Settlement Agreement from the Prior Rate Decision, WPLP agreed to address
performance measurement and reporting in the current Application by filing, on a best-efforts
basis, an initial proposed scorecard. Because 2025 is the first full year that WPLP’s entire
transmission system is in service, it is the first full calendar year for which WPLP is able to track
information for scorecard measures for its entire system. In previous years, WPLP tracked
information for typical scorecard measures related to safety, reliability and costs during the
construction period so that information could be used in setting future performance expectations,
with consideration for adjustments required to reflect the transition from construction to operation.
With the filing of its initial proposed scorecard in the current Application, WPLP’s interim
performance measurement and reporting arrangements are no longer relevant. WPLP’s initial

proposed scorecard, along with discussion of its alignment with the four categories of outcomes

from the OEB’s Renewed Regulatory Framework, is provided in Exhibit D-1-1.

In terms of its achieved reliability performance, WPLP has tracked this information in three

phases: (1) interim operation of its Pikangikum Distribution Line from December 2018 until it was

2l See Exhibit C-4-1 for a discussion of WPLP’s rationale for not including a Working Capital Allowance.
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incorporated into the Transmission System in May 2023, (i1) partial Transmission System
operations from 2022 until 2024, and (iii) full Transmission System operations starting in 2025.
Generally, the most significant drivers of outages during phases (i) and (ii) have been related to
construction, lightning strikes and Hydro One loss of supply, with one material outage in 2024
resulting from a single tree contact. These trends should not be viewed as indicative of future
performance for the fully operating system. Notwithstanding the impacts of Transmission System
outages on WPLP’s delivery points, WPLP has been working with HORCI to maximize the use

of community-wide backup generation so as to reduce outage impacts for end-use customers in

many of the connected First Nation communities.

The requirements in Chapter 4 of the Transmission System Code, for transmitters to develop
performance standards that reflect historical performance of their systems at the customer delivery
point level, make it necessary for WPLP as a new entrant transmitter to collect and analyze
historical data before it can set future performance targets. WPLP is collecting and analyzing its
reliability data to enable it to meet those requirements in future, while continuing to facilitate

implementation of backup power in the connected First Nation communities.

7. OM&A Expense
WPLP’s OM&A expenses include costs associated with the following activities:
e Operation: System control functions, inspection and operation of transmission station

equipment, line patrols and inspections, environmental commitments and costs associated

with land rights.

e Maintenance: Preventative maintenance programs designed to maintain asset health,
corrective maintenance required to address deficiencies or deteriorating condition,

including repairs of a non-capital nature during outages or other emergency conditions.

e Administration & General: Indigenous engagement, communications and participation,

accounting, health, safety and environment, information technology, insurance, and
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general administration. This includes labour-related costs that are not specifically allocated

to operation or maintenance activities.

Table 5, below, summarizes the total operating costs included in WPLP’s proposed 2026 revenue

requirement.

Table 5 — Summary of Operating Costs

Operating Cost Category 2026 Test Year ($5000's)
Operations 18,096
Maintenance 10,875
Administration & General 9,382
Total OM&A Expenses 38,354
Depreciation and Amortization 26,864
Income Taxes 596
Total Operating Costs 65,814

While WPLP’s total OM&A increases from approximately $33.6 million in 2025 (forecast) to
approximately $38.4 million for 2026, this increase on an overall basis is a result of WPLP’s
growing operating requirements. More particularly, the increase in total OM&A from the 2025
bridge year to the 2026 test year is driven by: (1) ramp up of WPLP’s vegetation management
planning and field activities given the timing for when the right of way was cleared, with
assumption of 50% of a typical annual brushing cycle, resulting in an additional $3.5 million cost
from prior year , and (2) additional line inspection (including LiDAR scope not carried out in
2025) and substation activities resulting in an additional $1.8 million from the prior year. These
increases are partially offset by lower affiliate and related party costs ($0.3M), and other
administrative cost reductions ($0.2M). Detailed analysis of WPLP’s 2026 operating costs,
including support for WPLP’s 2026 depreciation/amortization expense and income taxes, is

provided in Exhibit F.
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8. Cost of Capital

Consistent with its approach that was approved in the Prior Rate Decision, WPLP is proposing to
use a deemed capital structure of 60% debt (4% short term debt, 56% long-term debt) and 40%

common equity for rate-making purposes for the 2026 rate year.

WPLP’s proposed revenue requirement reflects its use of the OEB’s deemed rate of return on
equity (“ROE”) of 9.00% for 2025 rate applications, as established by the OEB’s Decision and
Order in the Generic Proceeding (EB-2024-0063), as a placeholder. WPLP’s proposed cost of
short-term debt reflects its use of the OEB’s deemed short-term debt rate of 3.91% for 2025 rate
applications, also as established by the OEB’s Decision and Order in the Generic Proceeding, as a
placeholder. WPLP will update these rates at a later stage of the proceeding to reflect the OEB’s
ROE and short-term debt rate for 2026 rate applications once the OEB publishes its cost of capital
parameters for 2026. WPLP has calculated its cost of long-term debt based on the weighted
average of the interest rates for its debt facilities. WPLP’s capital structure and cost of capital

parameters are summarized in Table 6 below.

Table 6 — Capital Structure and Cost of Capital

Capitalization Ratio | Cost Rate?? | Return
(%) ¢ (%) &)
Long-term Debt | 56% | $691,870,486 4.60% $31,858,166
Short-term Debt | 4% $49,419,320 3.91% $1,932,295

Total Debt 60% | $741,289,806 4.56% $33,790,462
Common Equity | 40% | $494,193,204 9.00% 544,477,388
Total 100% | $1,235,483,010 6.34% $78,267,850

22 Consistent with the OEB’s final cost of capital parameters for 2025, as determined in the Generic Proceeding.
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9. Cost Allocation and Rate Design

In consideration of WPLP’s unique cost recovery and rate framework, which is summarized in
Section B.3(a) above, WPLP’s 2026 revenue requirement is allocated between the Line to Pickle

Lake, and the Remote Connection Lines, as summarized in Table 7 below.

Table 7 — Allocation of 2026 Revenue Requirement

LTPL RCL Total
Revenue Requirement for Rates | 29,685,502 | 103,345,591 | 133,031,093

Details supporting WPLP’s 2026 revenue requirement allocation, rate design and bill impacts are

presented in Exhibit ‘I’.

WPLP’s revenue requirement associated with the Line to Pickle Lake, which is $29,685,502 for
the 2026 test year, all of which will be recovered through the UTR Network rate, is detailed in
Exhibit 1-3-1.

WPLP also proposes to establish a fixed monthly charge applicable to HORCI resulting from the
Remote Connection Line portion of its revenue requirement. Based on the Remote Connection
Lines revenue requirement and 12 months of in-service assets, the proposed monthly fixed charge

is $8,612,133, effective January 1, 2026.

10. Deferral and Variance Accounts

WPLP has eight deferral and variance accounts that have been previously approved by the OEB.??
In the current Application, WPLP is (a) seeking final disposition for five of its accounts (the

Pikangikum Distribution System Deferral Account, the In-Service Date Variance Account, the

2 In addition, in 2025, WPLP is using the generic sub-accounts Return on Equity Variance Account and
Deemed Short-term Debt Rate Variance Account to capture the revenue requirement impact as a result of
OEB’s Decision and Order in the Generic Proceeding on Cost of Capital and Other Matters (EB-2024-
0063).
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Deferred Contingency Deferral Account, the COVID Construction Costs Deferral Account, and
the Federal CIAC Variance Account), (b) seeking partial disposition for two of its accounts (the
Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account and the OM&A Variance Account), and (¢)
not seeking disposition in full or in part for one of its accounts (the EPC COVID-Related Costs
Deferral Account). Table 8, below, provides a summary of WPLP’s existing deferral and variance
account balances, as at December 31, 2024. WPLP is proposing to dispose of the net amount from

the above dispositions, including carrying costs as specified in Exhibit H-2-1, over a 1-year period,

consistent with the disposition period approved in EB-2024-0176.

Table 8: Existing Regulatory Account Balances (December 31, 2024)

Account Principal Carrying Charges Total
(Net) (Net)

1508 — Pikangikum Distribution System $634.004 $59,123 $693,127

Deferral Account

1508 — In-Service Date Variance Account $5,439,257 $92,973 $5,532.231

1508 — Construction Period Interest Costs $21,569,327 $1.495,023 $23.064.350

Variance Account

1508 — COVID Construction Costs Deferral $4.349.913 $603,153 $4.953.066

Account

1508 — Deferred Contingency Deferral $243.262 $13,124 $256,386

Account

1508 -OM&A Variance Account ($9,680,566) ($274,140) | ($9,954,705)

1508 - Federal CIAC Variance Account ($14,023,877) ($113,800) | ($14,137,677)

108 - EPC Covib Related Costs Deferral | - ¢45 99 560 $1,761,849 | $83,861,400

11. COVID-Related Impacts

The impacts of COVID-19 continue to be the subject of commercial discussions between WPLP

and its EPC contractor.

proceedings, and as described in Exhibit H-2-2, WPLP:

Pursuant to the approved Settlement Agreements in its prior rate

24 Further information on the EPC COVID-Related Cost Deferral account is provided in Exhibit H-2-2.
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recorded its audited 2020 known COVID costs of approximately $17.4 million in the
COVID Construction Costs Deferral Account (CCCDA), has been recovering those costs
as an OM&A expense over the four-year disposition period (2022-2025) approved in EB-
2021-0134, and in the current Application is seeking recovery of $24,381 in forecasted

carrying charges for 2025 and to close the account at the end of 2026;

recorded, in the 2021-2023 COVID Construction Costs Deferral Account (2021-2023
CCCDA), the incremental year-end COVID costs from 2021 to 2023, and disposed of (i)
the audited year-end 2022 balance as capital, along with carrying charges at AFUDC, in
the amount of approximately $68.3 million (EB-2023-0168), and (ii) the audited year-end
2023 balance as capital, along with carrying charges at AFUDC, in the amount of
approximately $3.1 million (EB-2024-0176); and

has been authorized to record, in the EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account, costs,
including applicable carrying charges, incurred and to be incurred by WPLP under its EPC
Contract that relate to 2020 or later and which are in respect of anticipated claims from
the EPC contractor for cost and schedule relief under the EPC Contract in relation to
COVID and related access issues in the Whitefeather Forest area (EB-2023-0168). The
method of recovery — as capital or as expenses — is subject to determination in a future
application, but on an interim basis is the OEB prescribed rate, which will be recalculated
on the basis of the applicable CWIP rate if and when recovery is determined to be as

capital.

For clarity, there may be additional COVID-related costs which are the subject of the commercial

discussions currently ongoing between WPLP and its EPC contractor. These amounts are expected

to be due primarily to productivity loss, incremental costs and schedule delays that the EPC

Contractor takes the position arose from implementation of COVID-19 health and safety measures,

as well as access issues in the Whitefeather Forest. These additional costs continue to be the

subject of commercial discussions between WPLP and its EPC contractor and therefore remain

uncertain in terms of quantum and responsibility. They may relate to any year of the construction

52147860.9
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period since the pandemic commenced in early 2020. If and when any amounts are recognized as
having been incurred by WPLP upon the conclusion of the commercial discussions or upon
otherwise being determined, such amounts, including applicable carrying charges®’, would be
recorded in the EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account, which is discussed in Exhibit H-1-
1. Asdiscussed in B.3(a), above, on final disposition of the balance in this account the independent

Trust will make a further CIAC to offset the revenue requirement impact of such approved

disposition.

12. Bill Impacts

WPLP’s proposed 2026 revenue requirement will result in bill decreases from two perspectives.
First, the Line to Pickle Lake portion of its revenue requirement will result in a decrease of
$0.05/kW to the Network UTR rate, or a bill decrease of ($0.10) per month for a typical residential
customer. Second, the Remote Connection Lines portion of its revenue requirement will result in
decreased costs to HORCI, which will ultimately be funded through a decrease to the RRRP rate,
which WPLP has calculated at ($0.0002)/kWh for 2026 or a bill decrease of ($0.16) per month for

a typical residential customer. 2

As detailed in Exhibit I-4-1, the combination of the decreased Network UTR and RRRP rates
arising from this Application is estimated to result in a total bill decrease for a typical residential
customer?’ of ($0.26) per month, or (0.18%). Details of bill impacts for a typical general service

customer and for transmission-connected customers are also provided in Exhibit [-4-1.

23 WPLP will record carrying charges at the OEB prescribed rate for deferral and variance accounts, however
carrying charges will be dependent on OEB’s future ruling on the disposition of the balance recorded in the
EPC COVID Account as capital or expense. Carrying charges will be calculated based on WPLP’s actual cost
of debt (AFUDC) if disposition of costs is deemed to be capital.

26 Bill decrease before HST and OER adjustment.

%7 In this context, a typical residential customer is considered to be a Hydro One Networks Medium-Density (R1)
customer, using 750 kWh/month on Time-of-Use rates. See Exhibit I-4-1 for details.
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CORPORATE & ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Applicant is Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. (“Wataynikaneyap GP”) on behalf of
Wataynikaneyap Power LP (“Wataynikaneyap LP”) (“WPLP”). The Applicant holds an electricity
transmission licence (ET-2015-0264).

A. Corporate Structure

Wataynikaneyap LP is an Ontario limited partnership whose general partner is Wataynikaneyap
GP. As shown in the Corporate Structure provided in Appendix ‘A’, the limited partnership
interests in WPLP are held 51% by First Nation LP and 49% by Fortis (WP) LP. First Nation LP
is an Ontario limited partnership whose general partner is 2472881 Ontario Limited (“First Nation
GP”). The limited partnership interests in First Nation LP are held directly by the 24 Participating
First Nations in equal shares. Fortis (WP) LP is an Ontario limited partnership whose general
partner is Fortis (WP) GP Inc. The limited partnership interests in Fortis (WP) LP are held by
Fortis Inc. (80%) and indirectly by Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. (20%).

With respect to the corresponding general partnerships, the shares of Wataynikaneyap GP are held
51% by First Nation GP and 49% by Fortis (WP) GP Inc. The shares of First Nation GP are held
directly by the 24 Participating First Nations in equal shares. The shares of Fortis (WP) GP Inc.
are owned by FortisOntario Inc. and indirectly held by Fortis Inc. (100%).

The Applicant has established a head office in the Fort William First Nation Reserve. The

Participating First Nations and Fortis Inc. are described below.

L Participating First Nations

The Participating First Nations are a group comprised of 24 First Nations from northwestern

Ontario. Of the 24 Participating First Nations, 16! (as marked with an “*” below) have or will

!'15 of the 16 First Nations have been connected to the Transmission System with the remaining First Nation
planned to be connected in 2025. WPLP will inform the OEB once the remaining First Nation is connected.
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soon be connected to the WPLP Transmission System (the “Connected Communities”).? The

Participating First Nations are as follows:

1. Bearskin Lake First Nation* 13. North Caribou First Nation*

2. Cat Lake First Nation 14. North Spirit Lake First Nation*

3. Deer Lake First Nation* 15. Ojibway Nation of Saugeen

4. Kasabonika Lake First Nation* 16. Pikangikum First Nation*

5. Keewaywin First Nation* 17. Poplar Hill First Nation*

6. Kingfisher Lake First Nation* 18. Sachigo Lake First Nation*

7. Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug* 19. Sandy Lake First Nation*

8. Lac des Mille Lacs First Nation 20. Slate Falls First Nation

9. Lac Seul First Nation 21. Wabigoon Lake Ojibway Nation

10. Mishkeegogamang First Nation 22. Wapekeka First Nation*

11. McDowell Lake First Nation 23. Wawakapewin First Nation*

12. Muskrat Dam First Nation* 24. Wunnumin Lake First Nation*
2. Fortis

Fortis Inc. is a well-diversified leader in the North American regulated electric and gas utility
industry, with 2024 revenue of $12 billion and total assets of $73 billion as at December 31, 2024.
The corporation’s 9,800 employees serve utility customers in five Canadian provinces, ten U.S.
states and three Caribbean countries. Its regulated utilities account for virtually all of the

Corporation’s assets. FortisOntario Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Fortis Inc.

B. Organizational Structure

For purposes of the ongoing operation of the utility, WPLP has agreements with Fortis-controlled
Wataynikaniyap Power PM Inc. (“WPPM”) and Participating First Nation-controlled
Opiikapawiin Services LP (“OSLP”). WPPM and OSLP provide services to WPLP for the

operation and maintenance of the Transmission System. Each party’s roles and responsibilities are

2 The Project is designed to permit the potential future connection of a 17th community, McDowell Lake First
Nation.
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further described below. A corporate structure diagram that includes these service providers is

provided in Section B of Exhibit F-3-1.

1 Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc. (“WPPM”)

Leveraging the knowledge, experience and expertise of Fortis Inc. and its subsidiaries in respect
of all aspects of transmission system operations, WPPM is responsible for providing services
related to operations, maintenance, administration, engineering, finance, regulatory and various
corporate functions (including health and safety, environmental compliance, HR, IT and
procurement). In addition, WPPM assigns scopes of work to OSLP on programs for WPLP
relating to community engagement, community readiness, education & training, business
readiness, communications, capacity building, and certain aspects of stakeholder engagement.

Organizationally, WPPM provides these services in three functional areas:

e  WPPM’s Chief Operating Officer (COO) oversees all aspects of operations, maintenance,

engineering, health and safety, as well as environmental compliance.

e WPPM’s VP Finance & Chief Financial Officer (CFO) oversees all aspects of finance and

accounting, procurement, risk management and regulatory affairs.

e WPPM’s VP Corporate Services and Indigenous Relations oversees all aspects of legal
services, HR and IT. This position is also responsible for overseeing WPPM’s participation
in the various recruitment, training, engagement and communication activities that are
coordinated by OSLP. These activities aim to implement WPLP’s commitment to
providing meaningful Indigenous participation, including by delivering WPLP’s
Indigenous Engagement Plan and ensuring effective and ongoing communications with

Indigenous peoples and communities.

Section B of Exhibit F-3-1 provides further details related to the Management Agreement between
WPLP and WPPM, and WPLP’s annual costs incurred pursuant to that agreement. Employee
compensation details for direct employees of WPPM are provided in Section A of Exhibit F-3-1.

52147883.8
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2. Opiikapawiin Services LP (“OSLP”)

Leveraging the local and traditional knowledge, experience and expertise of the Participating First
Nations, OSLP, under the direction of WPPM, is primarily responsible for helping to execute
projects and programs for WPLP relating to community engagement, community readiness,
workforce development, business readiness, communications, capacity building, and certain

aspects of stakeholder engagement.

Through a Service Agreement with WPLP, OSLP continues to assist the Participating First Nations
in building capacity® and obtaining meaningful participation in the Transmission Project for
members of their communities. The mandate to coordinate and work with each Participating First
Nation on their local knowledge, supports the development of professional capacity for future
employees to operate and maintain the transmission system. OSLP maintains a labour pool
database and a registry of Indigenous businesses to assist WPLP in filling employment and sub-

contracting opportunities for the operation and maintenance of transmission system.

With respect to ongoing community engagement and project communications through operations,
OSLP manages a community issue tracker, coordinates community engagement meetings and
logistics, creates quarterly newsletters, provides notices of in-field activities (e.g., inspections,
vegetation management, environmental monitoring) and coordinates communications through
Community Liaisons to support engagement and communication activities. Consistent with the
vision and mandate reflected in the Guiding Principles, education, training and capacity building
will continue to be a focus, with a view to developing a pathway towards building a qualified
workforce for all aspects of operations and, ultimately, 100% ownership by the Participating First

Nations in 25 years.

OSLP continues to facilitate the transfer of distribution system assets to Hydro One Remote

Communities Inc. (“HORCI”) for the one community still served by an Independent Power

3 Including for example working with local Indigenous businesses to obtain the education, training and
qualifications necessary for employment with WPLP or its operational contractors related to IMERS contract,
environment monitoring, and vegetation management.
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Authority (“IPA”).* OSLP continues to monitor and facilitate the development and
implementation of critical asset backup supply arrangements on behalf of WPLP for all
communities that have become grid-connected through the Transmission Project. While the
underlying activities relating to backup supply arrangements and transferring distribution system
assets from IPAs to HORCI are beyond the scope of this Application, WPLP has been required as
part of the Transmission Project to facilitate and report semi-annually to the OEB on the status of
backup supply arrangements pursuant to the OEB’s LTC Decision in EB-2018-0190, as well as
the Settlement Agreement from EB-2021-0134, and WPLP has monitored the status of IPA

distribution system transfers through regular reporting completed by OSLP.

As of March 31, 2025, the backup supply arrangements leverage the generation assets and
associated infrastructure that previously served as the primary electricity supply for 8 of the 16
communities that were served by HORCI before connecting to the Transmission Project. These
assets now serve these communities by providing emergency backup capacity during outages on
or upstream of WPLP’s transmission system. Regarding the remaining communities with similar
centralized backup power conversions, OSLP is facilitating the continued work for the 5 former
IPA communities, and facilitating work for the remaining 3° communities that will be provided
with emergency backup supply for critical infrastructure locations, instead of on a community-

wide basis.®

Section B of Exhibit F-3-1 provides further detail related to the Services Agreement between

WPLP and OSLP, and the annual costs incurred/forecasted pursuant to that agreement.

4 See the most recent Indigenous Services Canada report on IPA and Backup Power, which was filed by WPLP as
part of its Semi-Annual Report dated April 15, 2025, pursuant to EB-2018-0190.

3 One of these three communities, Wawakapewin First Nation, continues to hold discussions to determine whether
an alternative, to critical asset backup only, is available.

¢ Details and status of backup power solutions for the 16 connected Indigenous communities are provided in
WPLP’s semi-annual reports, filed pursuant to OEB’s Decision and Order in EB-2018-0190. The most recent
semi-annual report is dated April 15, 2025.
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APPENDIX ‘A’

Applicant’s Corporate Structure
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COMPLIANCE WITH OEB FILING REQUIREMENTS

WPLP has prepared this Application generally in conformance with the guidance set out in the
OEB’s Filing Requirements for Electricity Transmission Rate Applications — Chapter 2: Revenue
Requirement Applications (February 11, 2016) (the “Filing Requirements”). However, due to the
unique nature of the application, being for a new transmission system for which the Bridge year is
the first full calendar year that it is in service, and which is subject to a unique cost recovery and
rate framework previously approved by the OEB, there are certain elements of the Filing
Requirements that are not relevant to or compatible with the Application. These, along with
WPLP’s plans for transitioning to a multi-year revenue requirement framework, are summarized

below and further addressed throughout the Application.

A. Irrelevant or Incompatible Aspects of the Filing Requirements

Section 2.4 of the Filing Requirements establish the need for evidence on asset condition, planning
and prioritization of capital expenditures, as well as consideration of regional planning, which are
required to be presented in a consolidated and dedicated exhibit in the application and referred to
as the Transmission System Plan (“TSP”). In granting leave to construct in EB-2018-0190, the
OEB approved construction of the Transmission Project and found that its impacts with respect to
price, reliability and quality of service are reasonable. In its prior rate applications which were
filed while the Transmission Project was under construction and portions of the system were being
put into service, in lieu of a TSP, WPLP filed detailed information about its Transmission Project
and the elements of the project underlying its rate proposals. Recognizing that the 2025 Bridge
year is the first full year for which the Transmission Project is fully in service, and the limited time
and resources available for WPLP to develop the TSP in time for the 2026 rate year, the approved
Settlement Proposal in EB-2024-0176 contemplates that WPLP will file an initial TSP in the
current application on a best efforts basis. As such, some of the sections in Exhibit B contain only

preliminary or incomplete information.

Sections 2.0 and 2.6 of the Filing Requirements discuss the value that the OEB places on cost and

performance benchmarking evidence and transmission scorecards. In its previous rate

52147882.6
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applications, WPLP addressed the OEB’s performance and scorecard expectations relative to
WPLP’s circumstances while the Transmission Project was under construction and being put into
service in segments. Recognizing that the 2025 Bridge year is the first full year for which the
Transmission Project is fully in service, and the limited time and resources available for WPLP to
address performance benchmarking and develop the transmission scorecard in accordance with the
filing requirements in time for the 2026 rate year, the approved Settlement Proposal in EB-2024-
0176 contemplates that WPLP will in the current Application address performance measurement
and reporting, including by filing an initial performance scorecard, on a best efforts basis. As such,
some of the sections in Exhibit D are preliminary in nature, or based on historical performance

associated with only portions of the Transmission Project or the Pikangikum Distribution System

(which was converted to form part of the transmission system on May 12, 2023) being in service.

Furthermore, pursuant to the Settlement Agreement in EB-2021-0134, in respect of the Line to
Pickle Lake and the portions of the Remote Connection Lines that were placed into service in
2022, WPLP agreed to monitor performance on the basis of the reliability and operating
performance metrics set out below without establishing performance targets and to report to the
OEB on such performance, based on data as at Year End 2022, which was filed with the OEB on
May 12, 2023. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement in EB-2023-0168, WPLP agreed to continue
to monitor its performance on the same basis and report to the OEB on such performance in
approximately April 2024, based on data as at year end 2023, and in approximately April 2025,
based on data as at year end 2024. WPLP filed the report based on Year End 2023 data on April
23, 2024, and the report based on Year End 2024 data on April 24, 2025. As discussed in Exhibit
D-1-1, WPLP will monitor and report on reliability and operating performance using the initial
proposed scorecard for 2026, and will update its monitoring and reporting based on the
performance scorecard in its first multi-year revenue requirement application for a period starting

with a 2027 test year.

The reliability and performance metrics that WPLP continues to monitor for in 2025 are as follows:

52147882.6
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e Total Recordable Injuries Frequency Rate (“TRIFR”) - # of recordable injuries per 200,000
hours worked, using Canadian Electricity Association definition of “recordable injuries”;
e Recordable Injuries - # of recordable injuries per year, using Canadian Electricity
Association definition of “recordable injuries”;
e Violations of NERC FAC-003-4 Vegetation Compliance Standard (in respect of the Line
to Pickle Lake portion of the transmission system only);
e  OM&A cost per kilometre of line and OM&A cost per station;
e Average system availability;

e Transmission System Average Interruption Duration Index (T-SAIDI); and

e Transmission System Average Interruption Frequency Index (T-SAIFI).

Section 2.1 of the Filing Requirements includes general expectations related to including details
from the most recent OEB-approved test year, historical years and a bridge year, as well as related
expectations around year-over-year variance analysis. These requirements are not entirely
applicable to WPLP’s current transmission rate application given the actual in-service dates of
assets in the 2022, 2023 and 2024 historical years. However, Exhibit A-5-2 provides context for
the Application arising from prior OEB proceedings, and Exhibit B and F provide variance analysis

relating to WPLP’s capital costs and OM&A expenses.

Sections 2.7.1 and 2.7.2 of the Filing Requirements set out the OEB’s expectations in relation to
forecasting charge determinants for the UTR rate pools, including requirements for weather
normalization, economic and econometric models, CDM forecasting, and historical variance
analysis. Exhibit E-1-1 proposes an alternative demand forecasting methodology employed by
WPLP, in consideration of data availability and the immaterial contribution to the UTR charge
determinants.! This demand forecasting methodology is consistent with what has been approved

for WPLP in prior rate applications.

! The change in Network UTR determinants resulting from WPLP’s load forecast is 0.007%, and WPLP’s load
forecast is not included in the Line Connection or Transformation Connection UTR charge determinants.
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Section 2.8.11.2 of the Filing Requirements requires a statement in the application as to when loss
carryforwards, if any, will be fully utilized. WPLP’s income tax calculations provided in Exhibit
F-5-1 show that WPLP has a significant loss carryforward for 2026, primarily resulting from
Capital Cost Allowance (“CCA”) deductions. WPLP does not expect to fully utilize its loss

carryforwards prior to filing a multi-year revenue requirement application, and WPLP therefore

proposes to address forecasting of loss carryforwards at that time.

B. Transitioning to a Multi-Year Revenue Requirement Framework

As indicated in Exhibit A-2-1, WPLP committed to filing a multi-year revenue requirement
application in 2026, using an incentive-based regulatory method available to transmitters, for a

rate period starting with the 2027 test year.

52147882.6
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SUMMARY OF PRIOR OEB PROCEEDINGS & DIRECTIVES

This schedule provides a summary of the directives and expectations identified by the OEB in
prior WPLP proceedings and indicates the status of or steps taken by WPLP to respond to those
aspects as part of the present Application. As this is WPLP’s fifth transmission revenue
requirement application, a number of the requirements established by the OEB in prior WPLP
proceedings have already been addressed and are no longer relevant but are set out here for

purposes of providing regulatory context for the Application.

A. Electricity Transmission Licence (EB-2015-0264)

On September 8, 2015, WPLP filed an application under section 60 of the OEB Act for an
electricity transmission licence. On November 19, 2015, the OEB granted the licence to WPLP for
a period of five years and specified that the licence shall not take effect until the date upon which
the OEB is satisfied that WPLP has been selected by appropriate authorities as a developer of
transmission assets in Ontario, or the date upon which the OEB, on the application of WPLP,
amends schedule 1 of the licence to specify the transmission facilities to be owned and/or operated

by WPLP, whichever is earlier.

B. Electricity Transmission Licence Amendment (EB-2016-0258)

On July 29, 2016, the OEB received a directive from the Minister of Energy under section 28.6.1(1)
of the OEB Act requiring the OEB without a hearing to amend WPLP’s transmission licence to
require it to develop and seek approvals for the Line to Pickle Lake and for the Remote Connection
Lines so as to enable connection of sixteen named remote Indigenous communities to the
provincial electricity grid. On September 1, 2016, the OEB amended WPLP’s licence to reflect

the directive and amended the term of the licence to 20 years.

C. Development Costs Deferral Account (EB-2016-0262)

On August 26, 2016, WPLP applied to the OEB under section 78 of the OEB Act for an accounting
order authorizing the establishment of a new deferral account to record costs incurred in relation

to the development of the Wataynikaneyap Transmission Project. On March 23, 2017, the OEB

52147881.8
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approved the establishment of the account, with an effective date of November 23, 2010, which
coincides with the date from which costs may be recorded in the account (being the date the 2010
Long-Term Energy Plan, which identified the Line to Pickle Lake as a priority project, was issued).
The OEB specified that WPLP may not record costs relating to start-up or partnership formation,

or costs incurred prior to November 23, 2010.

The OEB also specified (and OEB staff clarified by letter issued May 12, 2017) that WPLP must
record in a sub-account all funding received for development activities from any source,
government or otherwise, whether or not repayment is expected, so as to facilitate the future
determination (at the time of disposition) as to whether any component of the costs to be recovered
from ratepayers should be offset by any funding received from such other sources. OEB staff
further clarified that WPLP does not need to record equity contributions from the partners of
WPLP, and that the requirement to record funding applies to funding received both directly and
indirectly by WPLP, where “indirectly” received funds include those received by a predecessor,
affiliate or other entity related to or previously related (at the time the funding was received) to
WPLP or WPGP or a predecessor, and that this includes funding received by the partners of WPLP.
As noted below, in EB-2021-0134 the OEB determined based on the approved Settlement
Agreement that the costs to be recovered from ratepayers should not be offset by any of the funding
received from other sources, as recorded in this sub-account, and that the sub-account should

therefore be discontinued.

In approving the Development Costs Deferral Account, the OEB also required WPLP to file semi-
annual reports, which WPLP did under EB-2016-0262 until it commenced reporting under EB-
2018-0190 in late 2019. As described below, the required content for the semi-annual reports was
modified by the OEB’s decisions approving the Settlement Agreements in EB-2021-0134 and EB-
2022-0149. It was further modified in EB-2024-0176, where the approved Settlement accepted
WPLP’s proposal that the October 15, 2024 semi-annual report be the last report relating to the
CWIP account, operating plans and community energization dates, and that subsequent reports, if
necessary, be limited to reporting on backup power and IPA transfers until implementation is

completed.

52147881.8
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D. Electricity Distribution Licence (EB-2017-0236 and EB-2022-0244)

On June 15, 2017, WPLP applied to the OEB for an electricity distribution licence to support
WPLP’s plan to develop, construct, own and operate an approximately 117 km distribution line
between Red Lake and the Pikangikum First Nation Reserve (EB-2017-0136). WPLP indicated
that there was an urgent need for grid connection of the Pikangikum First Nation on an interim
basis until such time as it can be served by WPLP’s Transmission System. WPLP further indicated
its plan to construct the line largely to 115 kV standards, but to connect it to Hydro One’s
distribution system and to operate at a distribution voltage of 44 kV for a period of approximately
3-4 years from late 2018, after which it would be connected to and form part of WPLP’s
Transmission System. On September 28, 2017, the OEB granted the distribution licence for a 5-
year term from September 28, 2017. On September 22, 2022, in EB-2022-0244, the OEB extended
the term of WPLP’s electricity distribution licence until June 30, 2023. The Pikangikum
Distribution System was converted to form part of the Transmission System on May 12, 2023. On
June 16, 2023, following WPLP’s request to cancel its electricity distribution licence, the OEB

confirmed that the licence was cancelled.

E. Pikangikum Distribution Costs Deferral Account and Licence Amendments (EB-
2018-0267)

On September 7, 2018, WPLP applied to the OEB for an accounting order to establish a deferral
account for the purpose of recording and facilitating the future recovery of costs relating to the
operation of WPLP’s distribution system that connects the Pikangikum First Nation to Hydro
One’s distribution system near Red Lake, as well as to amend WPLP’s distribution licence to
exempt it from metering and settlement requirements pertaining to host and embedded distributors.
On November 22, 2018, the OEB approved the application. The OEB specified that the costs to
be recorded in the account are the OM&A costs for the distribution system, as well as any capital
costs that may be incurred after the in-service date which are not paid for by funding from

Indigenous and Northern Affairs Canada (INAC)!, including its successors. As noted above, the

! Now known as Indigenous Services Canada (“ISC”).
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SN hn A~ W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

EB-2025-0192

Exhibit A

Tab 5

Schedule 2

Page 4 of 14

Pikangikum Distribution System was converted to form part of the Transmission System on May
12, 2023. In WPLP’s 2023 transmission rate proceeding (EB-2022-0149) and 2024 transmission
rate proceeding (EB-2023-0168), the OEB approved the continuation of the Pikangikum
Distribution System Deferral Account, and the partial disposition of the audited account balances

for December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022, respectively. WPLP’s current requests related to

this account are set out in Exhibit H.

F. Leave to Construct and Cost Recovery / Rate Framework (EB-2018-0190)

On June 8, 2018, WPLP applied to the OEB for leave to construct approximately 1,732 km? of
electricity transmission and interconnection facilities, comprised of the Line to Pickle Lake and
the Remote Connection Lines. The application was amended October 5, 2018 and January 28,
2019. In addition, WPLP requested approval for a unique cost recovery and rate framework under
which the revenue requirement for the Remote Connection Lines would be charged through a fixed
monthly service charge to Hydro One Remote Communities Inc. (HORCI) and the revenue
requirement for the Line to Pickle Lake would be recovered through the Network pool of the
Uniform Transmission Rates (UTRs). WPLP also requested various other relief, including a
determination that the 44 kV and 25 kV segments be deemed to be transmission facilities and
various exemptions from the Transmission System Code (TSC) in relation to the Remote
Connection Line facilities. The OEB approved the application on April 1, 2019 (revised April 29,
2019). In the decision, the OEB directed WPLP to use CWIP Account 2055 to record construction
costs and to transfer approximately $54 million in development costs that had been recorded in the
Development Costs Deferral Account to the CWIP Account. The OEB also required as a condition
of approval that WPLP provide semi-annual updates to the OEB on its CWIP account and on the

progress of backup supply arrangements for the connecting communities.’

2 As a result of minor routing changes, the total as-built transmission line length is approximately 1,742 km.

3 Details and status of backup power solutions for the 16 connected Indigenous communities are provided in
WPLP’s semi-annual reports, filed pursuant to OEB’s Decision and Order in EB-2018-0190. The most recent
semi-annual report is dated April 15, 2024.

52147881.8
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In its decision, the OEB made a number of findings that directly related only to WPLP’s initial

transmission rate application, as well as other findings that continue to be relevant in the current

Application. These are as follows:

52147881.8

The OEB stated, at pp. 12-13 of the decision, that “WPLP is required to provide updated
Project costs as part of its future transmission rate applications in accordance with the OEB
filing requirements. The OEB requires that WPLP’s first transmission rate application
shall provide details of the updated costs of the Project as defined by the Owner’s Engineer
(actuals to date and forecasts), variance analysis of Project scope, costs and schedule
compared to the original estimates, and the degree to which the Project contingency has
been utilized. WPLP shall also make best efforts to provide information on any other costs
that may impact this Project at the time of its inaugural rate case. Further, the OEB agrees
with WPLP that any further variance analysis provided as construction progresses would
consider actual or forecast costs compared to the updated cost estimates that are presented
in the initial rate application.” WPLP addressed these requirements primarily in Exhibit

B, Tab 1, Schedule 5 and Exhibit H, Tab 2, Schedule 2 of its prior rate applications.

The OEB, on pp. 27-28 of the decision, approved WPLP’s proposed cost recovery and rate

framework, stating:

o “The OEB approves the inclusion of the net capital cost associated with the Remote
Connection Lines in WPLP’s rate base and a monthly fixed charge applied to
HORCI — in lieu of a capital contribution — to recover the capital and operating
costs related to the Remote Connection Lines. The amount of the monthly fixed
charge will be addressed in WPLP’s transmission rate cases involving the Remote
Connection Lines, when the specific elements of WPLP’s revenue requirement will

be approved.” See Exhibit I, Tab 3, Schedule 2 of the present Application.

o “In relation to the Line to Pickle Lake, the approved revenue requirement will be

determined in WPLP’s first transmission rate case involving that part of the
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Project?, for recovery through the network charge component of the UTR.” See

Exhibit I, Tab 3, Schedule 1 of the present Application.

“WPLP is directed to use CWIP Account 2055 to record construction costs, a
standard account included in the OEB’s Uniform System of Accounts . . .
Construction costs will be accumulated in the standard CWIP account for future
disposition. Entries to the CWIP account will be reviewed for approval when WPLP
proposes to add the related assets to rate base.” WPLP indicated that it would have

three sub-accounts similar to what it used in the development costs deferral account.

“The OEB approves WPLP’s request to transfer approximately $54 million in
development costs to a CWIP Account. The transferred development costs will be
the opening balance for WPLP’s CWIP account 2055 related to this Project.” See
Exhibit H, Tab 2, Schedule 1 of WPLP’s prior rate applications for additional

details.

“Article 410 of the OEB's Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity
Distributors requires that where incurred debt is not acquired on an arm’s length
basis, the actual borrowing cost may be used for rate making, provided that the
interest rate is no greater than the OEB’s published rates. Otherwise, the OEB’s
published rates should be used. In this case, the actual interest rate may be lower
than the prescribed rate. If so, the OEB directs WPLP to use its actual cost of debt.””
See Exhibit G, Tab 2, Schedule 1 of the present Application.

4 While the language in the Decision and Order refers to WPLP’s first transmission rate application, this aspect
needs to be determined in each transmission rate application for WPLP.

5 On April 18, 2019, WPLP wrote to the OEB requesting clarification of this paragraph 7 of the Order section of the
April 1, 2019 Decision and Order due to the concern that it appeared inconsistent with the OEB’s findings in
respect of CWIP interest rates in the body of the decision. The OEB agreed and amended paragraph 7 of the
Order to specify that “WPLP shall transfer the balances from its development deferral account to its CWIP
account, in accordance with this Decision and Order. With respect to CWIP interest rates, WPLP shall use the
lower of its actual cost of debt and the OEB’s published CWIP interest rate in respect of debt that is incurred on
a non-arm’s-length basis, and shall use the actual cost of debt in accordance with Article 410 of the Accounting
Procedures Handbook in respect of debt that is incurred on an arm’s-length basis.”

52147881.8
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The OEB, on p. 23 of the LTC Decision and in Schedule 2 of WPLP’s amended
transmission licence (attached as Schedule C thereto), granted WPLP exemptions from
certain sections of the TSC in relation to the Remote Connection Lines. In particular,
WPLP was exempt from all sections relating to connection procedures and customer capital
contributions in respect of connection facilities. The OEB originally granted these
exemptions until the earlier of the date all Transmission System facilities are placed in

service or December 31, 2023. In accordance with the OEB’s Decision and Order in EB-

2022-0330, described below, this was extended to December 31, 2024.
G. Licence Amendments to Provide RRR Exemptions (EB-2020-0142/0143)

On May 13, 2020, WPLP filed a combined application for amendments to its electricity
transmission and distribution licenses to provide WPLP with certain exemptions from the OEB’s
Electricity Reporting and Record Keeping Requirements, on a permanent basis in respect of its
distribution licence (which was in effect for a limited period to authorize operation of the
Pikangikum System while operating at a distribution voltage) and on a temporary basis during the
construction period in respect of its transmission licence. The OEB approved the application on
August 13, 2020. In addition to the TSC related exemptions discussed above, WPLP was also
exempted from certain sections of the Electricity Reporting and Record Keeping Requirements
(RRR) that relate to financial disclosure obligations in respect of the 2019 to 2023 reporting
periods. In accordance with the OEB’s Decision and Order in EB-2022-0330, described below,

this was extended by one year.
H. 2022 Transmission Revenue Requirement Application (EB-2021-0134)

On April 28, 2021, WPLP filed its first transmission rate application seeking approval of an
electricity transmission revenue requirement and associated rates, effective April 1, 2022 and to
charge HORCI a fixed monthly charge for transmission service, effective May 1, 2022 (the “Initial
Rate Application™). The parties in the proceeding participated in a settlement conference and

reached a complete settlement of all issues. A settlement proposal was filed and, on September 30,

52147881.8
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2021, the OEB issued its decision approving the settlement proposal. The following outlines the

key elements of the settlement agreement approved by the OEB:

52147881.8

Rate Base & Associated Deferral Account: Establishment of a new deferral account to
record the revenue requirement impact associated with the contingency amount removed
from rate base, to the extent that such contingency is realized and does not exceed the

amount removed from rate base.

COVID Cost Recovery: Recovery of WPLP’s audited 2020 year-end balance of COVID
costs as an expense through disposition of the balance in the COVID-19 Construction Costs
Deferral Account (CCCDA) over a 4-year period (i.e. 25% in each of 2022, 2023, 2024
and 2025), instead of recovering 50% of its 2020 COVID costs through revenue
requirement adders in each of the 2022 and 2023 years. See Exhibit H-2-2 of the present
Application.

Performance Monitoring and Reporting: The timing for reporting on performance
measures and specific metrics to monitor and report on with respect to reliability, including
in relation to vegetation management and safety. See Exhibit D-1-1 of the present

Application.

OM&A: The preparation and filing by WPLP in its application for 2023 revenue
requirement of benchmarking studies to compare WPLP’s (a) OM&A spending levels on
a per line kilometer basis and on a per station basis relative to comparable Ontario and
Canadian transmitters; and (b) compensation costs relative to Hydro One’s compensation

costs. See Exhibit F-1-1 of the present Application.

Presentation of Evidence: Future transmission rate applications, for years in which
additional transmission line segments and stations will be placed into service, will include
detailed information on variances and the use of contingency amounts for such line

segments and stations being placed into service, relative to both the values presented in the
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respective application and the values that were presented in the Leave to Construct

proceeding (EB-2018-0190).
2023 Transmission Revenue Requirement Application (EB-2022-0149)

filed its second transmission revenue requirement application on April 28, 2022, and

updated it on July 6, 2022, seeking approval for its 2023 electricity transmission revenue

requirement and associated rates, and to charge HORCI a fixed charge for transmission service,

effective January 1, 2023. In that proceeding, the parties reached complete settlement on all issues,

which was approved by the OEB in its Decision and Order dated November 29, 2022. The

following outlines the key elements of the settlement agreement approved by the OEB:

OM&A: Key aspects included (i) a 5% reduction to WPLP’s proposed 2023 OM&A
expense on an envelope basis; (ii) establishment of a new asymmetrical Construction
Period OM&A Variance Account, to the benefit of ratepayers, to be used to record the
difference, if any, between the annual forecast and actual OM&A expenses, with any
shortfall in actual spending relative to forecast to be returned to ratepayers in a future rate
proceeding; and (ii1) a commitment to file, in 2025 in respect of its application for approval
of a transmission revenue requirement and rates for the period starting in 2026, an

econometric benchmarking study of WPLP’s OM&A costs.°

COVID Cost Recovery: Continued recovery of WPLP’s audited 2020 year-end balance
of COVID costs as an expense through disposition of the balance in the CCCDA over a 4-
year period (i.e. 25% in each 0f 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025), in accordance with the OEB’s
decision in WPLP’s 2022 revenue requirement proceeding (EB-2022-0149). In addition,
establishment of a new 2021-2023 CCCDA to record audited year-end COVID-19 related
costs from 2021 to 2023, with prudence and approach to disposition to be determined in a

future rate proceeding. See Exhibit H-2-2 of the present Application.

6 This commitment was modified in EB-2024-0176.

52147881.8
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e Project/Construction Monitoring, Reporting and Coordination: To (i) provide, in
future semi-annual reports filed pursuant to EB-2018-0190, certain additional information
on operational plans; (ii) provide certain notices to the OEB regarding changes to the
community connection schedule, as well as to post such schedules on WPLP’s website
subject to alignment with other ongoing communication requirements, and (iii) on a best-
efforts basis to work with HORCI on enhanced coordination of community connection

processes, including with respect to the staggering of connection dates, avoidance of cold-

weather outages, notices of connection and targets for asset transfers.

J. Modifications to Standard Form of Transmission Connection Agreement for Load

Customers (EB-2022-0199)

In anticipation of the previously scheduled date for connecting HORCI’s distribution system in
Pikangikum First Nation to WPLP’s Transmission System, WPLP requested approval from the
OEB on June 30, 2022, for modifications to certain parts of the form of standard connection
agreement set out for load customers in Appendix 1 (Version A) of the TSC (the “Standard
Connection Agreement”). WPLP requested that the OEB approve such requests on an interim basis
to (a) allow WPLP and HORCI to give further consideration to the modified terms that should
apply in place of Schedule J of the Standard Connection Agreement, and (b) to allow WPLP to
further consider the approach to such modified terms in relation to WPLP’s Transmission
Connection Procedures, which were under development at that time. In its Decision and Order, the
OEB granted WPLP’s requested modifications to the Standard Connection Agreement for its
connection agreement with HORCI, on an interim basis (EB-2022-0199). The OEB required
WPLP to file a final version of the modified connection agreement, including the further

modifications required for Schedule J, by December 31, 2022.

52147881.8
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Modifications to Standard Form of Transmission Connection Agreement, Approval
of Customer Connection Procedures and Licence Amendments to Extend Code

Exemptions (EB-2022-0330)

On December 16,2022, WPLP filed an application with the OEB requesting (i) approval on a final

basis for the modifications to the Standard Connection Agreement as reflected in its connection

agreement with HORCI, (ii) approval of its Customer Connection Procedures (CCPs) and to

amend the effective date of its CCPs as specified in WPLP’s Transmission Licence to the later of

September 1, 2024 and the date all facilities are placed into service, and (iii) approval to extend

the period of certain TSC exemptions as specified in Schedule 2 of WPLP’s Transmission Licence

due to the extended project construction and in-service schedule (EB-2022-0330). On April 6,
2023, the OEB issued its Decision and Order in EB-2022-0330, granting the requested relief. In

particular, the OEB approved:

52147881.8

On a final basis, WPLP’s proposed modifications to the Standard Connection Agreement

in its connection agreement with HORCI;
WPLP’s proposed CCPs;

an extension of the effective date for WPLP’s CCPs to the later of September 1, 2024 and
the date all facilities are placed into service (from the date on which all of the facilities are

placed in service, or January 1, 2024, whichever is earlier);

for the Remote Connection Lines, a one-year extension (from December 31, 2023 to
December 31, 2024) to the exemptions from all sections of the TSC related to connection
procedures and customer capital contributions for connection facilities and cost

responsibility in relation to connecting the Listed Communities; and

WPLP’s request to extend its RRR exemption by granting a one-year extension to RRR
financial disclosure obligations, which will result in the commencement of reporting in

2026, rather than 2025.
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2024 Transmission Revenue Requirement Application (EB-2023-0168)

filed its third transmission revenue requirement application on June 23, 2023 seeking

approval for its 2024 electricity transmission revenue requirement and associated rates, and to

charge

HORCI a fixed charge for transmission service, effective January 1, 2024. In that

proceeding, the parties reached a complete settlement on all issues, which was approved by the

OEB in its Decision and Order dated November 30, 2023. The following outlines the key elements

of the settlement agreement approved by the OEB:

52147881.8

OM&A: A 5% reduction to WPLP’s proposed 2024 OM&A expense on an envelope basis;

DVA Disposition Period: With respect to WPLP’s In-Service Date Variance Account
(“ISDVA”), Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account (“CPICVA”) and
Deferred Contingency Deferral Account (“DCDA”), a 1-year disposition period rather than

four years as proposed in the Application;

Interest Rate for Long Term Debt: With respect to the interest calculation relating to the

cost rate for long-term debt, an adjustment from 5.85% to 5.76%;

Rate Base: A reduction in 2024 rate base additions by $6.4 million, corresponding with
WPLP’s unaudited forecast of known COVID-19 costs for 2023, thereby impacting the

2024 regulated return on rate base and 2024 depreciation expense.

COVID Cost Recovery: (a) the addition of WPLP’s audited 2021 and 2022 known
COVID-19 costs to rate base, leaving the (unaudited) 2023 amounts in the 2021-2023
CCCDA; and (b) establishment of a new EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account to
record costs, including applicable carrying costs, incurred and to be incurred by WPLP
under its EPC Contract that relate to 2020 or later and which are in respect of anticipated
claims from the EPC contractor for cost and schedule relief under the EPC Contract in
relation to COVID and related access issues in the Whitefeather Forest area. Moreover,

WPLP was required to establish sub-accounts for each year from 2020 to such year that all
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outstanding amounts are determined and is required to record in such sub-accounts any
amounts relating to such years. Furthermore, the method of recovery — as capital or as
expenses — shall be subject to determination in a future application, and the carrying cost

shall on an interim basis be the OEB prescribed rate but shall be recalculated on the basis

of the applicable CWIP rate if and when recovery is determined to be as capital.

¢ Federal Funding: Establishment of a new Federal CIAC Variance Account, effective
January 1, 2024, for the purpose of recording the revenue requirement impact of the
difference, if any, between WPLP’s forecasted date of the Contribution in Aid of
Construction (CIAC) funds being distributed to WPLP pursuant to the Federal Funding
Framework and the actual date such funds are distributed to WPLP, based on a forecast
date of December 31, 2024, but the account will be asymmetrical to the benefit of
ratepayers and the term of the account shall expire December 31, 2024, such that if the
CIAC is not distributed to WPLP until after such date then the rate impacts thereof would

be a matter for consideration in a future rate application.’
M. 2025 Transmission Revenue Requirement Application (EB-2024-0176)

WPLP filed its fourth transmission revenue requirement application on June 28, 2024, seeking
approval for its 2025 electricity transmission revenue requirement and associated rates, and to
charge HORCI a fixed charge for transmission service, effective January 1, 2025. In that
proceeding, the parties reached a complete settlement on all issues, which was approved by the
OEB in its Decision and Order dated December 10, 2024. The following outlines the key elements
of the settlement agreement approved by the OEB:

e OM&A: A 6% reduction to WPLP’s proposed 2025 OM&A expense on an envelope basis;

e Multi-year filing: Commitment to filing its first multi-year application in 2026 (for a rate

period starting with the 2027 rate year) which will include a Transmission System Plan

7 See Exhibit I-4-1 for discussion of the Federal Funding Framework, expected CIAC timing and a proposed minor
modification requested for the Federal CIAC Variance Account.

52147881.8
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(TSP), a performance scorecard and an econometric benchmarking report based on 2025

data;

TSP and reporting: Performance measurement and reporting will be addressed by filing
initial TSP and initial scorecard, as part of the 2026 single test year revenue requirement
application, each of which will be prepared on a best efforts basis having regard to the fact
that 2025 will be the first full year of operations for the completed transmission system as
well as the limited time and resources available for WPLP to develop these components of

the application in time for the filing;

Deferral and Variance Accounts: Continuation of what was previously referred to as the
Construction Period OM&A Variance Account to allow for the recording of additional
variance amounts for 2025 rather than maintaining it only for the purposes of facilitating
recovery of the existing balance and applicable carrying costs as proposed in the
Application, subject to changing the name of the account to remove the reference to
“construction period”. In addition, modifications to the timing of the Construction Period
Interest Costs Variance Account and the Federal CIAC Variance Account (each as

reflected in revised Accounting Orders included with the Settlement Proposal); and

COVID-Related Cost Deferral Account: In the event WPLP is not in a position to seek
clearance of the balance from the EPC COVID-Related Cost Deferral Account as part of
this single test year application filed in 2025 in respect of the 2026 test year or its first
multi-year revenue requirement application to be filed in 2026 in respect of a rate period
starting with the 2027 test year, on account of WPLP not having reached a final settlement
with (or not having received a final arbitration award in respect of) its EPC contractor,
OEB Staff and WPLP agreed it would be appropriate for WPLP to have the ability to seek
mid-term clearance of such account during its first multi-year rate term and that OEB Staff
will not object to such a proposal if included as part of WPLP’s initial multi-year revenue

requirement application.
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INDIGENOUS, METIS & CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT

WPLP recognizes that the OEB’s Renewed Regulatory Framework (“RRF”) and Filing
Requirements contemplate that transmitters take an active role in customer engagement by
initiating and carrying out customer engagement activities on an ongoing basis to obtain feedback
regarding customer needs and preferences. Areas for engagement include matters such as
investment planning, transmission rates and charges, system performance and outages, connection
procedures, regional planning, testing and inspections. Moreover, WPLP recognizes the OEB’s
expectation that engagement efforts should be designed to obtain feedback from regulated
distributor customers served by its transmission system, end-use load customers and generator
customers served directly from the transmission system (if any), and where possible from end-use

customers of distribution systems served by its transmission system.

WPLP’s customer engagement efforts to date have been primarily focused on issues relating to the
design, development, construction and operation of the Transmission System, including routing,
land access, land sharing protocols and traditional protocols, through the significant Indigenous
engagement activities during the project development process and EA processes. These efforts
have been undertaken by the Participating First Nations, Central Corridor Energy Group (CCEQG),
Tribal Councils representing member Indigenous communities, and OSLP! on behalf of WPLP
and have been instrumental in the successful development and execution of WPLP’s Transmission

Project.

In its transition to being a fully operating transmitter with connected customers, WPLP continues
to develop and implement customer engagement processes that address the OEB’s expectations
for customer engagement by transmitters in a manner that is appropriate for its circumstances

including by following the expectations set out in the Guiding Principles.> Those processes and

"' OSLP is a service provider as further described in Exhibit A-4-1.
2 See Exhibit B-1-1, Section B.1.

52147872.8
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the customer needs and preferences identified through implementation of those processes are

further described in the TSP at Exhibit B-1-1.

WPLP’s extensive programs of engagement during the project development phase, and its
environmental assessment processes, are described in significant detail in its leave to construct
application in EB-2018-0190.> WPLP’s subsequent engagement efforts, for the period up to its
initial rate application are described in EB-2021-0134, for the period up to its second rate
application are described in EB-2022-0149, for the period up to its third rate application are
described in EB-2023-0168, and for the period up to its fourth rate application are described in
EB-2024-0176.* WPLP’s engagement efforts for the period subsequent to EB-2024-0176 are
provided below. In total, the record of engagement shows that, from 2012 to March 31, 2025,
there have been just over 3000 engagement activities with affected Indigenous and Métis
communities conducted in various forms (e.g. open houses, meetings, etc.) in relation to the

Transmission Project.

While WPLP’s engagement efforts have been extensive, they differ from the approaches to
customer engagement typically carried out and described in rate applications by operating utilities.
In particular, WPLP’s efforts have involved and continue to involve engagement with connecting
and non-connecting First Nations, land users and private landowners that have been affected by
ongoing operation of the Transmission System, as well as consultations with a wide range of
potentially impacted stakeholders. These stakeholders have included a number of federal,
provincial and local governments and regulatory agencies, the Independent Electricity System
Operator (IESO), Hydro One Networks Inc. (HONI) and Hydro One Remote Communities Inc.
(HORCI). Much of WPLP’s early engagement efforts,’ focused on identifying and supporting the
need to connect remote Indigenous communities to the transmission system as an alternative to the

continued use of diesel generation. Discussions of electricity supply limitations related to diesel

3 See Exhibit I of the revised application and evidence in EB-2018-0190, filed October 5, 2018
(http://www.rds.oeb.ca/HPECM WebDrawer/Record/611043/File/document).

4 See Exhibits A-6-1 and B-1-2 of EB-2021-0134, EB-2022-0149, EB-2023-0168 and EB-2024-0176.
5 Including the significant efforts of the predecessor organizations to WPLP, including CCEG.

52147872.8
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generators and the impacts on the Indigenous communities are provided in WPLP’s leave to
construct application in EB-2018-0190.° Much of WPLP’s engagement has also been carried out
in the context of the project development activities and the environmental assessment processes

for the Line to Pickle Lake and the Remote Connection Lines that are described and referenced

above.

As construction of various transmission line segments were nearing completion in 2024, WPLP
initiated community engagement activities that included, but were not limited to, engagement on
permanent access for operational purposes for the project, post-construction environmental
monitoring requirements, development of a transmission vegetation management plan, updates on
project status, archaeology, health and safety, permitting, land access, IPA transfer, backup power,
and Indigenous participation, along with community-specific questions and feedback. Discussions
at each community engagement session included an update on construction status, an overview of
the scope of WPLP’s operational and maintenance activities and details of how WPLP proposes
to access transmission right of way through a combination of a permanent access for operating
purposes and temporary access methods. The engagement has provided an opportunity for
Indigenous community members and land users to understand and provide input on WPLP’s access
plans, and for WPLP to adjust its access plans based on the input provided. The majority of
engagement on permanent access concluded in 2024. Engagement on vegetation management
planning is continuing for 2025 and 2026 with each of the communities and land users, prioritized
based on the expected timing of vegetation work in the vicinity of each community. As discussed
in Exhibit B-1-1, WPLP has also initiated engagement with First Nations following completion of
the Transmission Project to reaffirm and reinvigorate the Mandate, Vision and Guiding Principles

described above in consideration of the Transmission Project becoming fully operational.

6 See Exhibit C-1-1 of the revised application and evidence in EB-2018-0190, filed October 5, 2018
(http://www.rds.oeb.ca/HPECM WebDrawer/Record/611043/File/document)
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This schedule provides the financial information specified in the OEB’s Filing Requirements.

Included are the following:

e Attachment 1 — WPLP Audited Financial Statements for 2024
e Attachment 2 — WPLP Audited Financial Statements for 2023
e Attachment 3 — WPLP Tax Returns for 2024

e Attachment 4 — WPLP Tax Returns for 2023

e Attachment 5 — 2024 Annual Report for Fortis Inc.!

A. Accounting Standard

WPLP follows the Canadian Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises (ASPE) and has used
that standard as the basis for this Application. WPLP previously informed the OEB that it follows
ASPE on December 19, 2016, in the proceeding to establish its Development Cost Deferral
Account (EB-2016-0262).2

Authorization to use the ASPE is not required by a Canadian securities regulator. As a profit-
oriented entity whose debt and equity instruments are not publicly traded, WPLP is eligible to
apply ASPE for financial reporting and rate regulated accounting under Part Il of the CPA Canada
Handbook — Accounting. The use of ASPE for rate setting and regulatory reporting purposes
results in consistency between WPLP and affiliates of FortisOntario Inc., allowing efficient
implementation of accounting systems and reporting processes through a Services Agreement

between WPLP and FortisOntario Inc.’

WPLP has had no changes to its accounting policies or accounting standards since its last revenue

requirement application. WPLP’s capitalization policy under ASPE is provided in Exhibit C-6-1.

! First Nation LP does not prepare an equivalent annual report.
2 EB-2016-0262; IRRs filed December 19, 2016; response to IR Board Staff — 15 a)
3 See Exhibit F-3-1 for additional details on shared services.
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B. Existing Accounting Orders

Exhibit H-1-1 provides a comprehensive summary of WPLP’s existing regulatory accounts,

including references to the OEB accounting orders establishing to those accounts.

C. Other Financial Information

WPLP does not engage in non-utility business and is therefore not required to segregate any

portion of its fixed assets or financial results.

As described in Exhibit G of this Application, WPLP has secured project-specific debt financing.
WPLP’s partners, First Nation LP and Fortis (WP) LP, made equity contributions in 2022 as the
initial assets went into service, and in 2023 coinciding with additional assets going in service. No
contribution was required in 2024, however a 2025 contribution was completed on April 15, 2025*
to align with the OEB deemed debt to equity structure of 60:40, as further described in Exhibits
G-1-1 and G-2-1. Filing Requirements related to rating agency reports, prospectuses and

information circulars are therefore not applicable.

4 Prior to the OEB issuing the Decision and Order for EB-2024-0176, WPLP informed the OEB on December 9,
2024, of a delay in the planned contribution of $70 million that was expected in mid-January 2025. WPLP
committed to consult with OEB staff if it expected the delay would exceed WPLP’s materiality threshold. On
March 24, 2025, WPLP provided an update to the OEB that the equity injection was planned for April 15, 2025,
and the impact of the delay was below materiality threshold. Subsequently on April 15, 2025, WPLP confirmed
to the OEB that WPLP received the equity funds.

52147901.7
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Directors of
Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wataynikaneyap Power LP [the “Partnership”], which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2024, and the statement of partners’ equity, statement of operations and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Partnership as at December 31, 2024, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Partnership’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

E I A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Partnership’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Partnership to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Z&M«t *%mg LLp

Toronto, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
April 17, 2025 Licensed Public Accountants

E I A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Wataynikaneyap Power LP

As at December 31

Assets

Current

Cash [note 7]

Prepaid expenses

Accounts receivable [note 1]
Inventory

HST receivable

Due from related parties [note 3]
Total current assets

Regulatory assets [notes 1 and 2]
Property, plant and equipment, net [note 4]

Liabilities and partners’ equity
Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
HST payable

Due to related parties [note 3]
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt [note 5]

Regulatory liabilities [notes 1 and 2]
Deferred contributions [note 6]
Total liabilities

Commitments f[note 9]

Partners’ equity

See accompanying notes

Approved by the Directors:

Balance sheet

2024

35,141,315
584,047
12,785,729
6,027,718
23,484
54,562,293
118,360,569
1,748,781,166
1,921,704,028

36,244,738
768,251
5,363,304
42,376,293
961,003,724
24,092,382
476,269,823
1,503,742,222

417,961,806
1,921,704,028

g’)/\c[V‘

Director Director

EB-2025-0192

2023

4,359,869
413,121
7,913,725
4,519,382
8,753,148
9,066
25,968,311
39,204,611
1,778,328,145
1,843,501,067

149,695,010
4,929,726
154,624,736
1,239,942,952
21,913,732
49,750,833
1,466,232,253

377,268,814
1,843,501,067



Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Year ended December 31

Partners’ equity, beginning of year
Issuance of LP units

Net income for the year

Partners’ equity, end of year

See accompanying notes

Statement of partners’ equity

EB-2025-0192

2024 2023
Wataynikaneyap
First Nation LP Fortis (WP) LP Power GP Inc.
$ $ $ $ $

51.00% 48.99% 0.01% Total Total
192,382,162 184,881,906 4,746 377,268,814 283,440,236
— — — — 60,300,000
20,753,426 19,935,497 4,069 40,692,992 33,528,578
213,135,588 204,817,403 8,815 417,961,806 377,268,814




Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Statement of operations

Year ended December 31

Revenue

Transmission

Pikangikum capital contribution amortization [note 6]
Trust agreement capital contribution amortization [note 6]
Regulatory interest, net

Interest income

Expenses

Operations

Maintenance

General and administration
Donations

Operating financing costs
Regulatory financing costs
Other expenses
Amortization

Net income for the year

See accompanying notes

EB-2025-0192

2024 2023
$ $
150,095,758 93,954,251
1,211,531 1,235,845
3,656,933 —
2,654,593 1,024,525
605,479 357,701
158,224,294 96,572,322
9,752,513 5,239,475
1,270,536 716,645
14,061,092 8,678,321
26,439 11,688
55,128,094 28,585,877
3,943,168 1,485,945
493,930 423,994
32,855,530 18,001,799
117,531,302 63,043,744
40,692,992 33,528,578




Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Statement of cash flows

Year ended December 31

Operating activities
Net income for the year
Add (deduct) items not involving cash
Non-cash regulatory interest
Amortization of deferred contributions
Amortization of property, plant and equipment
Changes in regulatory assets and liabilities
Changes in non-cash working capital balances related to operations
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
HST receivable
Due from/(to) related parties
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Increase (decrease) in deferred contributions
Issuance of LP units

Increase (decrease) in long-term debt

Cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash during the year
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

See accompanying notes

EB-2025-0192

2024 2023
$ $
40,692,992 33,528,578
(2,654,593) (1,024,525)
(4,868,464) (1,235,845)
32,855,530 18,001,799
(74,322,715) 57,519,849
(4,872,004) (2,665,262)
(170,926) (393,083)
(1,508,336) (220,278)
9,521,399 (6,798,993)
419,160 1,111,944
(113,450,272) (66,749,160)
(118,358,229) 31,075,024

(77,471,036)

(415,805,674)

(77,471,036)

(415,805,674)

505,549,939 (984,168)
— 60,300,000
(278,939,228) 294,729,255
226,610,711 354,045,087
30,781,446 (30,685,563)
4,359,869 35,045,432
35,141,315 4,359,869
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Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Notes to financial statements

December 31, 2024

1. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies
Partnership

Wataynikaneyap Power LP [the “Partnership” or “WPLP”] was formed and registered under the laws of the Province
of Ontario [the “Province”] by First Nation LP, Fortis (WP) LP and Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc., through a limited
partnership agreement dated July 6, 2015 and shall adhere to the following guiding principles:

[i] Our people expect that the Wataynikaneyap Power Project will be undertaken in a manner that respects our
lands, rights and principles; our way of life on the land and as part of the land; and our land sharing protocols.

[ii] Our sacred responsibilities given to us by the Creator are to protect the land, which protects us in return.
Therefore, the Project shall be built, operated and maintained in a way that minimizes adverse
environmental impacts, as follows:

e The Wataynikaneyap Transmission Project [the “Project”] shall not poison the lands;
¢ No herbicides shall be used throughout the life of the transmission line to control vegetation;
e The Project shall be constructed, operated and maintained in a manner that observes and does not
interfere with seasonal hunting, trapping, fishing and harvesting and keeps disturbances to a
minimum;
e No new transmission lines shall be located underwater; and
e The Project will develop and implement an environmental and social management plan, which will
include acceptable and effective mitigation measures for any sacred sites, gathering sites and
harvesting sites.
[iil  The Project shall respect confidentiality and comply with any conditions of use for any Traditional Land and
Resource Use Information provided by the communities, including intellectual property.
[iv]  Our communities must maintain decision-making and ownership and receive benefits in the Project.

The Partnership ownership interests are the following:

First Nation LP — 51.0%
Fortis (WP) LP — 48.99%
Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. — 0.01%

Fortis (WP) LP is owned 80% by Fortis Inc. and 20% by Liberty Utilities (Wataynikaneyap Transmission) LP as at
December 31, 2024. The shares of First Nation LP are held directly by 24 Participating First Nations in equal
shares.

On August 1, 2015, Wataynikaneyap Power Corporation transferred the project assets of the Wataynikaneyap
transmission project [the “Project”] to WPLP for $15,759,486, and WPLP assumed notes payable totalling this
same amount as consideration for the transfer.

The business of WPLP is the planning, development and operation of the Project, which consists of a new
transmission system in Northwestern Ontario, to reinforce transmission to Pickle Lake and to connect remote First
Nation communities that are currently served by diesel generation. WPLP is a licensed Ontario electricity
transmitter and is regulated by the Ontario Energy Board [“OEB”].
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Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Notes to financial statements

December 31, 2024

The Province identified the Project as a priority in the 2010 and 2013 Long-Term Energy Plans [‘LTEP”]. The
Province declared in the 2013 LTEP that the connection of remote First Nation communities is a key step towards
providing a reliable, clean and affordable energy future for everyone in the Province. Further declaration of support
was provided in the 2017 LTEP; the Project was noted as being selected as the transmitter for connecting remote
First Nation communities.

On July 20, 2016, the Lieutenant Governor in Council made an Order in Council pursuant to Section 96.1 of the
Ontario Energy Board Act [the “Act”] declaring the construction of an electricity line originating at a point between
Ignace and Dryden and terminating in Pickle Lake, and the construction of electricity transmission lines extending
north from Pickle Lake and Red Lake required to connect certain remote communities, to be a priority project.

On June 2, 2016, the Ontario Legislature passed the Energy Statute Law Amendment Act, 2015 [also referred to
as “Bill 135”]. Bill 135 permitted Cabinet to designate WPLP on July 20, 2016 as the electricity transmitter to
connect 16 remote First Nation communities that currently rely on diesel power to the Province’s electricity grid.

The Lieutenant Governor in Council made an Order in Council on July 20, 2016 approving a directive issued by
the Minister of Energy pursuant to Section 28.6.1 of the Act, which required the OEB, without holding a hearing, to
amend the conditions of WPLP’s electricity transmission licence to include a requirement that WPLP proceed to
develop and seek approvals for the Project.

On November 1, 2016, the Minister of Energy issued a letter to WPLP indicating that the Government of Ontario
is committed to working with all First Nation communities in Ontario that are diesel reliant. The Government of
Ontario has identified 21 diesel-reliant communities for whom grid connection makes economic sense, of which 16
are included in the Project. WPLP is fully supportive of improving the living conditions for all diesel-reliant First
Nation communities by continuing to proceed with the Project to economically expand Ontario’s electricity grid.
McDowell Lake First Nation is one of the First Nation shareholders and has expressed a desire to become
connected to the Project. WPLP will pursue options, as a licensed transmitter, to provide economic means to
connect McDowell Lake to the Project and has initiated discussions with the Government of Ontario in this regard.

Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Part Il of the CPA Canada Handbook —
Accounting, “Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises” [‘ASPE”], which constitutes generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada. The financial statements reflect the
financial position and results of WPLP. These financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses of the partners. No provision has been made in these financial statements for any income taxes that
may be assessable to the partners. Further, no provision has been made in the accounts for any salaries or interest
accruing to the partners.
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Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Notes to financial statements

December 31, 2024

Summary of significant accounting policies

Regulation
WPLP is a licensed Ontario electricity transmitter and is regulated by the OEB.

On August 26, 2016, WPLP applied to the OEB for an Accounting Order authorizing WPLP to establish a new
regulatory deferral account for the purpose of recording costs in relation to the development of the Project.

On March 23, 2017, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the deferral account proceeding. The effective date
for the new deferral account was established as November 23, 2010. As part of the Decision and Order, WPLP is
allowed to record carrying charges on allowable Project costs at regulated interest rates prescribed by the OEB.
As a result of the Decision and Order, the OEB has denied all Project costs incurred prior to November 23, 2010,
as well as any start-up and partnership formation costs from being included in the deferral account.

On November 22, 2018, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the deferral account for recording and facilitating
the future recovery of costs relating to the operation of WPLP’s distribution system. As part of the Decision and
Order, WPLP is allowed to record carrying charges on allowable operation, maintenance and administration costs
for the distribution system, as well as any costs that may be incurred after the in-service date, which are not paid
for by Indigenous Services Canada, at regulated interest rates prescribed by the OEB.

On April 1, 2019, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the leave to construct application to construct
transmission lines and associated facilities in Northwestern Ontario. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB
approved the transfer of development costs to WPLP’s construction work-in-progress [“CWIP”] account, and all
future project construction costs are to be recorded in the CWIP account.

Prior to April 1, 2019, costs determined to be Project development costs were deferred as regulatory assets on the
balance sheet. All non-Project costs are recognized on the statement of operations. Future transmission rate
proceedings will determine the proper disposition of all Project costs.

On September 30, 2021, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the inaugural rate application filed by WPLP
for the 2022 test year in April 2021. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB approved the discontinuance of
the CWIP Funding subaccount used to track funding amounts without applying the amounts recorded in that
subaccount as offsets to development and construction costs. The OEB further approved the establishment of four
new deferral/variance accounts: In-Service Date Variance Account [“ISDVA”], Construction Period Interest Costs
Variance Account [‘CPICVA”], Deferred Contingency Deferral Account [‘DCDA”] and the 2020 COVID
Construction Cost Deferral Account [“‘CCCDA”].

On November 29, 2022, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the rate application filed by WPLP for the 2023
test year in April 2022. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB approved the continuance of the ISDVA,
CPICVA and DCDA accounts, and the establishment of two new variance accounts: Construction Period OM&A
Variance Account and 2021-2023 COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account [‘2021-2023 CCCDA”].
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On November 30, 2023, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the rate application filed by WPLP for the 2024
test year in June 2023. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB approved the continuance of the existing
deferral and variance accounts. The OEB further approved the establishment of two new deferral/variance
accounts: EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account and Federal CIAC Variance Account.

On December 10, 2024, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the rate application filed by WPLP for the 2025
test year in June 2024. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB required the continued use of OM&A Variance
Account for 2025, the extension to the Federal CIAC Variance Account to December 2026 and the extension to
the CPICVA until a time when WPLP’s construction financing has transitioned to long-term debt financing.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the transmission of electricity is recognized on the accrual basis. Transmission revenue is based
on the revenue requirement that is submitted through the annual rate application and subsequently approved by
the OEB. The approved revenue requirement includes a rate of return along with other cost recoveries necessary
to support the Partnership’s transmission system. Unbilled revenue included in accounts receivable as at
December 31, 2024 is $12,782,443 [2023 — $6,979,769].

As noted above, WPLP is allowed regulatory carrying charges on the amount of deferred Project costs and thus
recognizes interest income when earned on the balance of such costs. Expense recoveries are recognized as
revenue in the year in which recovery is identified and collectibility is assured.

Inventory

Inventory, consisting of material and supplies, is measured at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable
value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortization.

Property, plant and equipment are amortized over the respective asset’s useful life using the following method and
rates:

On the straight-line method

Transmission plant

Land rights 40 years
Station equipment — transformers and stations 50 years
Station equipment — switches and breakers 40 years
Station equipment — protection and control 20 years
Towers and fixtures 60 years
Poles and fixtures 45 years
Overhead conductors and devices 45 years
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Notes to financial statements

December 31, 2024

General plant

Buildings and fixtures 50 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Computer hardware 5 years
Tools shop and garage equipment 10 years
Measurement and testing equipment 5 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years

Income taxes

As a limited partnership, WPLP is not a taxable entity for federal and provincial income tax purposes. Accordingly,
no income taxes are recognized in WPLP’s financial statements.

Financial instruments

When WPLP becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument, WPLP recognizes the financial
asset or financial liability at its fair value, except for related party transactions, which are at the carrying or exchange
amount depending on the circumstances. WPLP recognizes its transaction costs in income in the period incurred.
However, financial instruments that will not be subsequently measured at fair value are adjusted by the transaction
costs that are directly attributable to their origination, issuance or assumption. Subsequently, WPLP measures its
financial instruments at amortized cost. WPLP does not own any equity instruments that would be subsequently
measured at fair value if quoted in an active market or at cost less impairment for equity instruments not quoted in
an active market. Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, accounts receivable and amounts
due from related parties.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ASPE and the regulatory environment in which the
Company operates requires amounts to be recorded at estimated values until finalization and adjustment pursuant
to subsequent regulatory decisions or other regulatory proceedings. Management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may vary from the current estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically
and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in income in the period in which they become known.
Significant estimates and assumptions that are made by management are used for, but not limited to, the valuation
of regulatory assets.

2. Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of regulatory requirements established by the OEB and consist
mainly of engineering, environmental assessments and project management costs.
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The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenue, gains or losses in the rates of a specific
period, resulting in the timing of revenue and expense recognition that may differ in WPLP’s regulated operations
from those otherwise expected in non-regulated businesses. This change in timing gives rise to the recognition of
regulatory assets and liabilities. WPLP continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of its regulatory assets and
believes that its regulatory assets and liabilities will be factored into the setting of future transmission rates as
discussed in note 1. If future recovery through rates is no longer considered probable, the appropriate carrying
amount will be written off in the period that the assessment is made.

Regulatory assets and liabilities are not subject to a regulatory return; however, the balances include an accrual
for interest recovery/payable as permitted by the OEB at the quarterly approved deferral and variance prescribed
interest rate [bankers’ acceptances — three months plus 0.25 spread]. WPLP currently only accrues interest on
regulatory costs that have been netted against third-party funding received. On September 30, 2021, the OEB
approved the transfer of coronavirus disease [‘COVID-19"] costs incurred to December 31, 2020 to a deferral
account in the Decision and Order EB-2021-0134. On November 29, 2022, the OEB approved the establishment
and transfer of COVID-19 costs incurred in 2021 to a deferral account in the Decision and Order EB-2022-0149.
As a result, COVID-19 costs relating to 2021 were transferred during the year to the new deferral account.

On November 30, 2023, the OEB approved the transfer of audited COVID-19 costs incurred in 2021 and 2022
from the 2021-2023 CCCDA to rate base with an effective date of January 1, 2024.

In the 2025 rate application filing, WPLP proposed the transfer of audited 2023 COVID-19-related costs from the
2021-2023 CCCDA to rate base with an effective date of January 1, 2024 that was accepted as filed by the OEB.

Long-term regulatory assets and liabilities consist of the following:

2024 2023
$ $

Long-term regulatory assets
Distribution System Deferral Account 693,127 2,511,723
COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2020 4,953,066 9,646,529
COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2021 to 2023 — 3,007,256
EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account 83,861,409 —
Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account 23,064,350 23,832,772
Deferred Contingency Deferral Account 256,386 206,331
In-Service Date Variance Account 5,532,231 —

118,360,569 39,204,611
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2024 2023
$ $
Long-term regulatory liabilities
OM&A Variance Account 9,954,705 5,330,204
Federal CIAC Variance Account 14,137,677 —
In-Service Date Variance Account — 16,583,528

24,092,382 21,913,732

Distribution System Deferral Account

This account records the costs incurred in relation to the Pikangikum System from the in-service date of the
Pikangikum System up to the date the Pikangikum System is converted into and thereafter forms part of WPLP’s
transmission system. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed interest
rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the opening monthly balance of the
account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of the audited 2023 balance as at
December 31, 2023 plus forecasted carrying charges, which is being collected through revenue requirement
adders in 2025.

Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account

This account records the revenue requirement impact attributable to the difference between the effective interest
rate for long-term debt approved in rate application and WPLP’s actual effective interest rate on long-term debt
during the construction period. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed
interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the opening monthly balance
of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of the audited 2023 balance
as at December 31, 2023 plus forecasted carrying charges, which is being collected through revenue requirement
adders in 2025. The remaining balance in this account will be brought forward for disposition in a future proceeding
with the OEB.

COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2020

This account records all the incremental development and constructions costs that are directly attributable to the
COVID-19 pandemic incurred after March 11, 2020. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using
the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the
opening monthly balance of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of
WPLP’s audited CCCDA 2020 account balance as at December 31, 2020, which is being collected through
revenue requirement adders over a four-year period ending December 31, 2025.

COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2021 to 2023

This account records all the incremental development and construction costs that are directly attributable to the
COVID-19 pandemic incurred from 2021 to 2023. In 2024, WPLP transferred the audited 2023 balance to capital
as approved in OEB’s decision EB-2024-0176. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the
OEB'’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts; however, interest will ultimately be dependent
on the OEB’s determination as to the approach to disposition of the recorded amounts as capital or as an expense.
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Deferred Contingency Deferral Account

This account records the revenue requirement impact attributable to contingency costs associated with 2022 in-
service asset additions limited to a maximum of $48,075,777. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this
account using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be
calculated on the opening monthly balance of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved
the disposition of the audited 2023 balance as at December 31, 2023 plus forecasted carrying charges, which is
being collected through revenue requirement adders in 2025. The remaining balance in this account will be brought
forward for prudency review and disposition in a future rate application proceeding.

In-Service Date Variance Account

This account records the difference between WPLP’s approved revenue requirement based on forecasted in-
service dates for the various lines/stations consisting of the transmission system and the revenue requirement if
calculated based on WPLP’s actual in-service dates for those lines/stations. This account shall be symmetrical.
WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and
variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the opening monthly balance of the account until the
balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of the audited 2023 balance as at December 31, 2023
plus forecasted carrying charges, which is being recovered through reduction to revenue requirementin 2025. The
remaining balance in this account will be brought forward for disposition in a future proceeding with the OEB.

OMG&A Variance Account

This account records the difference, if any, between WPLP’s forecast annual OM&A expenses as approved by the
OEB and its actual OM&A expenses for the corresponding year, during the period that WPLP’s transmission project
is under construction. This account shall be asymmetrical. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account
using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on
the opening monthly balance of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition
of the audited 2023 balance as at December 31, 2023 plus forecasted carrying charges, which is being recovered
through reduction to revenue requirement in 2025. The remaining balance in this account will be brought forward
for prudency review and disposition in a future rate application proceeding.

EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account

This account records record costs incurred and to be incurred by WPLP in respect of anticipated claims for cost
and schedule relief under its EPC Contract that relate to 2020 or later and which are in relation to COVID and
related access issues in the Whitefeather Forest, including costs (such as legal costs) associated with WPLP’s
consideration, negotiation and potential settlement and/or other resolution of COVID-related costs. WPLP will
record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance
accounts; however, interest will ultimately be dependent on the OEB’s determination as to the approach to
disposition of the recorded amounts as capital or as an expense.

Federal CIAC Variance Account

This account records the revenue requirement impact of the difference between the forecasted date of the
Contribution in Aid of Construction (“CIAC”) funds being distributed pursuant to the Federal Funding Framework in
2024 Rate Application and the actual date the CIAC funds were distributed. This account shall be asymmetrical.
WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and
variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the opening monthly balance of the account until the
balance is fully disposed. The balance in this account will be brought forward for prudency review and disposition
in a future rate application proceeding.
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3. Related party transactions

During the year, WPLP entered into the following transactions with related parties:

EB-2025-0192

Project costs paid on behalf of WPLP by
First Nation LP

Fortis (WP) GP Inc.

Fortis (WP) LP

Fortis Inc.

FortisOntario Inc.

Liberty Utilities

Newfoundland Power Inc.

Opiikapawiin Services LP

Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc.

Project engagement fees billed to WPLP by First Nation LP

Project management fees billed to WPLP by Wataynikaneyap
Power PM Inc.

Payments

First Nation LP

Fortis (WP) GP Inc.

Fortis (WP) LP

FortisOntario Inc.
Newfoundland Power Inc.
Opiikapawiin Services LP
Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc.

2024 2023
$ $
— (23,079)
1,779 162
12,435 (5)
382,750 339,195
2,815,982 2,636,348
98,786 84,799
1,150 19,617
6,877,400 7,182,946
5,864,751 5,819,291
16,055,033 16,059,274
635,743 614,859
635,743 614,859
2024 2023
$ $
(716,423) (745,808)
(1,600) —
(9,701) —
(2,796,679) (2,658,142)
(1,150) (19,617)
(7,039,215) (6,614,760)
(6,431,898) (6,218,260)
(16,996,666) (16,256,587)

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the

amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.
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As at December 31, the amounts due from/(to) related parties are as follows:

2024 2023
$ $
Current due to related parties
First Nation LP 59,866 51,238
First Nation LP third-party funding 222,424 222,424
Fortis (WP) LP 843 —
Fortis Inc. 734,337 339,195
FortisOntario Inc. 448,152 424,753
Liberty Utilities 183,585 84,799
Opiikapawiin Services LP 2,502,607 2,664,421
Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc. 1,211,490 1,142,896
5,363,304 4,929,726
2024 2023
$ $

Current due from related parties
Fortis (WP) GP Inc. 1,837 2,016
Fortis (WP) LP — 1,891
Fortis Inc. 12,392 —
FortisOntario Inc. 6,749 2,653
Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. 2,506 2,506
23,484 9,066

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no specified terms of repayment.

As part of the OEB Decision and Order EB-2021-0134 on the initial rate application, WPLP was instructed to discontinue
the CWIP Funding subaccount without applying the amounts recorded in that subaccount as offsets to development
and construction costs. The amount due to First Nation LP of $222,424 [2023 — $222,424] represents the third-party
funding removed as an offset to CWIP construction costs.

Details of the relationships with related parties are as follows:

e  First Nation LP owns 51% of WPLP.

e  Fortis (WP) LP owns 48.99% of WPLP.

e Fortis (WP) LP is owned 80% by Fortis Inc., who in turn owns 100% of FortisOntario Inc.
e Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc. is owned 100% by FortisOntario Inc.

e  Opiikapawiin Services LP is owned 100% by 24 Participating First Nations.

10



Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Notes to financial statements

December 31, 2024

4. Property, plant and equipment

Transmission assets

Land rights

Station equipment

Towers and fixtures

Poles and fixtures

Overhead conductors and devices

General plant

Buildings and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Computer hardware

Transportation equipment

Tools shop and garage equipment
Measurement and testing equipment

Construction work-in-progress

EB-2025-0192

2024 2023
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

54,796 8,219 46,577 47,947
421,578,660 13,425,850 408,152,810 272,629,612
617,215,377 15,022,788 602,192,589 399,217,465
56,910,262 3,955,892 52,954,370 52,398,602
710,440,555 26,229,742 684,210,813 482,755,084
1,806,199,650 58,642,491 1,747,557,159 1,207,048,710
396,999 — 396,999 —
228,961 — 228,961 —
356,556 12,765 343,791 —
155,392 77,696 77,696 108,774
168,500 — 168,500 —
8,793 733 8,060 —
1,315,201 91,194 1,224,007 108,774
— — — 571,170,661
1,807,514,851 58,733,685 1,748,781,166 1,778,328,145

Included in the cost of property, plant and equipment is $nil [2023 — $571,170,661] of assets not being
amortized because they are under construction.

5. Long-term debt

Senior banks [ii]
Ontario loan [i]

Unamortized financing costs, net of amortization of $15,604,788

2024 2023
$ $
494,880,204 418,180,204
466,123,520 823,959,796
— (2,197,048)
961,003,724 1,239,942,952

11
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In October 2019, WPLP obtained two non-revolving construction facilities. The details of the facilities are as follows:

[l The Ontario Financing Authority has provided a facility to a maximum of $1,340,000,000. The rate of interest
is dependent upon when the draws are made and is otherwise based on the average three-month Ontario
T-Bill rate [“cost of funds”] plus 49.9551 basis points. The cost of funds is accrued and included as a draw on
the facility. The balance of the interest rate is payable on a 91-day basis. The average rate of interest for the
year is 4.82% [2023 — 5.35%]. The facility is supported by a guarantee of Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. As
of December 31, 2024, the maturity date of the facility was December 30, 2025 with principal payments
required only to the extent of equity contributions from the unitholders. Subsequent to the year-end, on March
28, 2025, the maturity date of the facility was extended to December 31, 2027.

[iil] A $680,000,000 non-revolving construction facility provided by financial institutions and bears interest at the
Canadian Dollar Offered Rate plus a spread of 1.5% till June 11, 2024, from June 12, 2024 the facility bears
interest at the Canadian Overnight Repo Rate Average plus a spread of 1.5%. The average rate of interest
for the year is 6.22% [2023 — 6.81%)]. WPLP has provided a performance bond in the amount of $909,989,612
and a pledge of the unitholders’ units in support of the facility. As of December 31, 2024, the maturity date of
the facility was December 30, 2025 with principal payments required only to the extent of equity contributions
from the unitholders. Subsequent to the year-end, on March 28, 2025, the maturity date of the facility was
extended to December 31, 2027.

6. Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions relate to government funding received for the construction of transmission assets. One
contribution related to the construction of a 99 km high-voltage, single-circuit, three-phase line to extend from Red
Lake to a new substation near Pikangikum First Nation, which serves the community by the construction of an
additional 18 km of a three-phase 25 kV line. The amount is deferred and amortized at a rate corresponding with
the amortization rate of the Pikangikum project assets. The amount amortized in the year was $1,211,531 [2023 —
$1,235,845] and is included under Pikangikum capital contribution amortization in the statement of operations.

A second contribution was received by WPLP as part of the Federal Funding Framework, which provided a
contribution to WPLP of $509,236,276 as determined within the Amended Trust agreement dated June 6, 2024.
The amount was first applied against capitalized interest included within the contribution of $77,819,418 and the
remaining amount of $431,416,858 was deferred and amortized at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate
of select assets of the transmission system. The amount amortized in the year was $3,656,933 [2023 — nil] and is
included under Trust agreement capital contribution amortization in the statement of operations.

7. Cash and restricted cash

Bank balances are presented under cash.

8. Financial instruments and risk management

As at December 31, 2024, financial instruments recorded at amortized cost include cash, accounts receivable and
due from related parties with a carrying value of $47,950,528 [2023 — $12,282,660].

12



EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Notes to financial statements

December 31, 2024

Risks and uncertainties

WPLP is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance that could affect its ability to achieve its strategic
objectives for growth. The principal financial risks are disclosed below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to the Partnership’s income that arises from fluctuations in interest rates and the degree
of volatility of these rates. The Partnership does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to this risk.
The Partnership is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its long-term debt.

Credit risk

For cash, amounts due from related parties and accounts receivable, WPLP’s credit risk is limited to the carrying
values on the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk to WPLP is minimal. Financing of regulated capital and other expenditures is currently done through
funds from its partners and related parties.

One of WPLP’s partners, Fortis (WP) LP, is a large investor-owned utility that has had the ability to raise sufficient
and cost-effective financing. However, the ability to arrange financing on a go-forward basis is subject to numerous
factors, including the results of operations and financial position of Fortis Inc. and its subsidiaries, conditions in the
capital and bank credit markets, ratings assigned by rating agencies and general economic conditions.

9. Commitments

WPLP’s total future minimum lease payments under operating lease commitments over the next five years are as
follows:

$
2025 164,828
2026 172,397
2027 158,525
2028 5,594
2029 1,838
503,182

In addition, WPLP has contractual commitments to its Engineering, Procurement and Construction contractor due
to the impacts of COVID-19. Direct COVID-19 costs that can be reasonably estimated have been accrued as at
December 31, 2024, the remaining cost exposure from COVID-19 is not determinable at this time.

13
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Directors of
Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wataynikaneyap Power LP [the “Partnership”], which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2023, and the statement of partners’ equity, statement of operations and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Partnership as at December 31, 2023, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Partnership’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

E I A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Partnership’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Partnership to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
Z&m/t ¥ %"‘j LLP

Toronto, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
April 17, 2024 Licensed Public Accountants
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As at December 31

Assets

Current

Cash [note 7]

Prepaid expenses

Accounts receivable

Inventory

HST receivable

Due from related parties [note 3]
Total current assets

Regulatory assets [notes 1 and 2]
Property, plant and equipment, net [note 4]

Liabilities and partners’ equity
Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to related parties [note 3]

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt [note 5]

Regulatory liabilities [notes 1 and 2]
Deferred contributions [note 6]

Total liabilities

Partners’ equity

See accompanying notes

Approved by the Directors:

Director Director

Balance sheet

EB-2025-0192

2023 2022

$ $
4,359,869 35,045,432
413,121 20,038
7,913,725 5,248,463
4,519,382 4,299,104
8,753,148 1,954,155
9,066 17,114
25,968,311 46,584,306
39,204,611 88,981,445

1,778,328,145

1,380,524,270

1,843,501,067

1,516,090,021

149,695,010 216,444,170
4,929,726 3,825,830
154,624,736 220,270,000
1,239,942,952 945,213,697
21,913,732 15,195,242
49,750,833 51,970,846

1,466,232,253

1,232,649,785

377,268,814

283,440,236

1,843,501,067

1,516,090,021
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Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Year ended December 31

Revenue
Transmission

Pikangikum capital contribution amortization [note 6]

Regulatory interest, net
Interest income

Expenses

Operations

Maintenance

General and administration
Donations

Operating financing costs
Regulatory financing costs
Other expenses
Amortization

Net income for the year

See accompanying notes

Statement of operations

EB-2025-0192

2023 2022

$ $
93,954,251 25,071,060
1,235,845 1,237,590
1,024,525 1,126,160
357,701 53,933
96,572,322 27,488,743
5,239,475 1,318,308
716,645 —
8,578,321 2,638,196
11,688 —
28,585,877 4,939,252
1,485,945 1,887,789
423,994 —
18,001,799 4,342,053
63,043,744 15,125,598
33,528,578 12,363,145




Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Statement of cash flows

Year ended December 31

Operating activities
Net income for the year
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash
Non-cash regulatory interest
Amortization of deferred contributions
Amortization of property, plant and equipment
Changes in regulatory assets and liabilities
Changes in non-cash working capital balances related to operations
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
HST receivable
Due from/(to) related parties
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Decrease in deferred contributions
Issuance of LP units

Increase in long-term debt

Cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash during the year
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

See accompanying notes

EB-2025-0192

2023 2022
$ $
33,528,578 12,363,145
(1,024,525) (1,126,160)
(1,235,845) (1,237,590)
18,001,799 4,342,053
57,519,849 (9,919,481)
(2,665,262) (5,020,935)
(393,083) (20,038)
(220,278) (3,915,036)
(6,798,993) 1,367,982
1,111,944 (8,165,389)
(66,749,160) 45,806,523
31,075,024 34,475,074
(415,805,674)  (416,338,340)
(415,805,674)  (416,338,340)
(984,168) (77,383)
60,300,000 254,136,438
294,729,255 126,869,254
354,045,087 380,928,309
(30,685,563) (934,957)
35,045,432 35,980,389
4,359,869 35,045,432
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1. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies
Partnership

Wataynikaneyap Power LP [the “Partnership” or “WPLP”] was formed and registered under the laws of the Province
of Ontario [the “Province”] by First Nation LP, Fortis (WP) LP and Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc., through a limited
partnership agreement dated July 6, 2015 and shall adhere to the following Guiding Principles:

[i] Our people expect that the Wataynikaneyap Power Project will be undertaken in a manner that respects our
lands, rights and principles; our way of life on the land and as part of the land; and our land sharing protocols.
[ii] Our sacred responsibilities given to us by the Creator are to protect the land, which protects us in return.
Therefore, the Project shall be built, operated and maintained in a way that minimizes adverse
environmental impacts, as follows:
e The Project shall not poison the lands;
¢ No herbicides shall be used throughout the life of the transmission line to control vegetation;
e The Project shall be constructed, operated and maintained in a manner that observes and does not
interfere with seasonal hunting, trapping, fishing and harvesting and keeps disturbances to a
minimum;
e No new transmission lines shall be located underwater; and
e The Project will develop and implement an environmental and social management plan which will
include acceptable and effective mitigation measures for any sacred sites, gathering sites and
harvesting sites.
[iii] The Project shall respect confidentiality and comply with any conditions of use for any Traditional Land and
Resource Use information provided by the communities, including intellectual property.
[iv]  Our communities must maintain decision-making and ownership and receive benefits in the Project.

The Partnership ownership interests are the following:

First Nation LP — 51.0%
Fortis (WP) LP — 48.99%
Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. — 0.01%

Fortis (WP) LP is owned 80% by Fortis Inc. and 20% by Liberty Utilities (Wataynikaneyap Transmission) LP as at
December 31, 2023. The shares of First Nation LP are held directly by 24 Participating First Nations in equal
shares.

On August 1, 2015, Wataynikaneyap Power Corporation transferred the project assets of the Wataynikaneyap
transmission project [the “Project”] to WPLP for $15,759,486, and WPLP assumed notes payable totalling this
same amount as consideration for the transfer.

The business of WPLP is the planning, development and operation of the Project, which consists of a new
transmission system in Northwestern Ontario, to reinforce transmission to Pickle Lake and to connect remote First
Nation communities that are currently served by diesel generation. WPLP is a licensed Ontario electricity
transmitter and is regulated by the Ontario Energy Board [*OEB”].
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The Province identified the Project as a priority in the 2010 and 2013 Long-Term Energy Plans [‘LTEP”]. The
Province declared in the 2013 LTEP that the connection of remote First Nation communities is a key step towards
providing a reliable, clean and affordable energy future for everyone in the province. Further declaration of support
was provided in the 2017 LTEP; the Project was noted as being selected as the transmitter for connecting remote
First Nation communities.

On July 20, 2016, the Lieutenant Governor in Council made an Order in Council pursuant to Section 96.1 of the
Ontario Energy Board Act [the “Act’] declaring the construction of an electricity line originating at a point between
Ignace and Dryden and terminating in Pickle Lake, and the construction of electricity transmission lines extending
north from Pickle Lake and Red Lake required to connect certain remote communities, to be a priority project.

On June 2, 2016, the Ontario Legislature passed the Energy Statute Law Amendment Act, 2015 [also referred to
as “Bill 135”]. Bill 135 permitted Cabinet to designate WPLP on July 20, 2016 as the electricity transmitter to
connect 16 remote First Nation communities that currently rely on diesel power to the Province’s electricity grid.

The Lieutenant Governor in Council made an Order in Council on July 20, 2016 approving a Directive issued by
the Minister of Energy pursuant to Section 28.6.1 of the Act, which required the OEB, without holding a hearing, to
amend the conditions of WPLP’s electricity transmission license to include a requirement that WPLP proceed to
develop and seek approvals for the Project.

On November 1, 2016, the Minister of Energy issued a letter to WPLP indicating that the Government of Ontario
is committed to working with all First Nation communities in Ontario that are diesel reliant. The Government of
Ontario has identified 21 diesel-reliant communities for whom grid connection makes economic sense, of which 16
are included in the Project. WPLP is fully supportive of improving the living conditions for all diesel-reliant First
Nation communities by continuing to proceed with the Project to economically expand Ontario’s electricity grid.
McDowell Lake First Nation is one of the First Nation shareholders and has expressed a desire to become
connected to the Project. WPLP will pursue options, as a licensed transmitter, to provide economic means to
connect McDowell Lake to the Project and has initiated discussions with the Government of Ontario in this regard.

Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Part Il of the CPA Canada Handbook —
Accounting, “Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises” ["ASPE”], which constitutes generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada. The financial statements reflect the
financial position and results of WPLP. These financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses of the partners. No provision has been made in these financial statements for any income taxes that
may be assessable to the partners. Further, no provision has been made in the accounts for any salaries or interest
accruing to the partners.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
Regulation

WPLP is a licensed Ontario electricity transmitter and is regulated by the OEB.

On August 26, 2016, WPLP applied to the OEB for an Accounting Order authorizing WPLP to establish a new
regulatory deferral account for the purpose of recording costs in relation to the development of the Project.

On March 23, 2017, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the deferral account proceeding. The effective date
for the new deferral account was established as November 23, 2010. As part of the Decision and Order, WPLP is
allowed to record carrying charges on allowable Project costs at regulated interest rates prescribed by the OEB.
As a result of the Decision and Order, the OEB has denied all Project costs incurred prior to November 23, 2010,
as well as any start-up and partnership formation costs from being included in the deferral account.

On November 22, 2018, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the deferral account for recording and facilitating
the future recovery of costs relating to the operation of WPLP’s distribution system. As part of the Decision and
Order, WPLP is allowed to record carrying charges on allowable operation, maintenance and administration costs
for the distribution system, as well as any costs that may be incurred after the in-service date, which are not paid
for by Indigenous Services Canada, at regulated interest rates prescribed by the OEB.

On April 1, 2019, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the leave to construct application to construct
transmission lines and associated facilities in Northwestern Ontario. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB
approved the transfer of development costs to WPLP’s construction work-in-progress [*CWIP”] account, and all
future project construction costs are to be recorded in the CWIP account.

Prior to April 1, 2019, costs determined to be Project development costs were deferred as regulatory assets on the
balance sheet. All non-Project costs are recognized on the statement of operations. Future transmission rate
proceedings will determine the proper disposition of all Project costs.

On September 30, 2021, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the inaugural rate application filed by WPLP
for the 2022 test year in April 2021. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB approved the discontinuance of
the CWIP Funding subaccount used to track funding amounts without applying the amounts recorded in that
subaccount as offsets to development and construction costs. The OEB further approved the establishment of four
new deferral/variance accounts: In-Service Date Variance Account [‘ISDVA”], Construction Period Interest Costs
Variance Account [“CPICVA”], Deferred Contingency Deferral Account [‘DCDA”] and the COVID Construction Cost
Deferral Account [‘CCCDA”].

On November 29, 2022, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the rate application filed by WPLP for the 2023
test year in April 2022. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB approved the continuance of the ISDVA,
CPICVA and DCDA accounts, and the establishment of two new variance accounts: Construction Period OM&A
Variance Account [‘CPOMAVA”] and 2021-2023 COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account [*2021-2023
CCCDA.
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On November 30, 2023, the OEB issued its Decision and Order on the rate application filed by WPLP for the 2024
test year in June 2023. As part of the Decision and Order, the OEB approved the continuance of the existing
deferral and variance accounts. The OEB further approved the establishment of two new deferral/variance
accounts: EPC COVID-Related Costs Deferral Account and Federal CIAC Variance Account.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the transmission of electricity is recognized on the accrual basis. Transmission revenue is based
on the revenue requirement that is submitted through the annual rate application and subsequently approved by
the OEB. The approved revenue requirement includes a rate of return along with other cost recoveries necessary
to support the Partnership’s transmission system. Unbilled revenue included in accounts receivable as at
December 31, 2023 is $6,979,769 [2022 — $5,048,410].

As noted above, WPLP is allowed regulatory carrying charges on the amount of deferred Project costs and thus
recognizes interest income when earned on the balance of such costs. Expense recoveries are recognized as
revenue in the year in which recovery is identified and collectibility is assured.

Inventory

Inventory, consisting of material and supplies, is measured at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable
value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortization.

Property, plant and equipment are amortized over the respective asset’s useful life using the following rates:

On the straight-line method

Transmission plant

Land rights 40 years
Station equipment — transformers and stations 50 years
Station equipment — switches and breakers 40 years
Station equipment — protection and control 20 years
Towers and fixtures 60 years
Poles and fixtures 45 years
Overhead conductors and devices 45 years

General plant

Office furniture and equipment 10 years
Computer hardware 5 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years
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Income taxes

As a limited partnership, WPLP is not a taxable entity for federal and provincial income tax purposes. Accordingly,
no income taxes are recognized in WPLP’s financial statements.

Financial instruments

When WPLP becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument, WPLP recognizes the financial
asset or financial liability at its fair value, except for related party transactions, which are recorded at the carrying
or exchange amount depending on the circumstances. WPLP recognizes its transaction costs in income in the
period incurred. However, financial instruments that will not be subsequently measured at fair value are adjusted
by the transaction costs that are directly attributable to their origination, issuance or assumption. Subsequently,
WPLP measures its financial instruments at amortized cost. WPLP does not own any equity instruments that would
be subsequently measured at fair value if quoted in an active market or at cost less impairment for equity
instruments not quoted in an active market. Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, accounts
receivable and due from related parties.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ASPE and the regulatory environment in which the
Company operates requires amounts to be recorded at estimated values until finalization and adjustment pursuant
to subsequent regulatory decisions or other regulatory proceedings. Management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may vary from the current estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically
and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in income in the period in which they become known.
Significant estimates and assumptions that are made by management are used for, but not limited to, the valuation
of regulatory assets.

2. Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of regulatory requirements established by the OEB and consist
mainly of engineering, environmental assessments and project management costs.

The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenue, gains or losses in the rates of a specific
period, resulting in the timing of revenue and expense recognition that may differ in WPLP’s regulated operations
from those otherwise expected in non-regulated businesses. This change in timing gives rise to the recognition of
regulatory assets and liabilities. WPLP continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of its regulatory assets and
believes that its regulatory assets and liabilities will be factored into the setting of future transmission rates as
discussed in note 1. If future recovery through rates is no longer considered probable, the appropriate carrying
amount will be written off in the period that the assessment is made.

Regulatory assets and liabilities are not subject to a regulatory return; however, the balances include an accrual
for interest recovery/payable as permitted by the OEB at the quarterly approved deferral and variance prescribed
interest rate [bankers’ acceptances — three months plus 0.25 spread]. WPLP currently only accrues interest on
regulatory costs that have been netted against third-party funding received. On September 30, 2021, the OEB
approved the transfer of coronavirus disease [‘COVID-19”] costs incurred to December 31, 2020 to a deferral
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account in the Decision and Order EB-2021-0134. On November 29, 2022, the OEB approved the establishment
and transfer of COVID-19 costs incurred in 2021 to a deferral account in the Decision and Order EB-2022-0149.
As a result, COVID-19 costs relating to 2021 were transferred during the year to the new deferral account.

On November 30, 2023, the OEB approved the transfer of audited COVID-19 costs incurred in 2021 and 2022
from the 2021-2023 CCCDA to rate base with an effective date of January 1, 2024.

Long-term regulatory assets and liabilities consist of the following:

2023 2022
$ $
Long-term regulatory assets
Distribution System Deferral Account 2,511,723 2,937,724
COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2020 9,646,529 13,442,027
COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2021 to 2023 3,007,256 69,183,830
Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account 23,832,772 3,395,782
Deferred Contingency Deferral Account 206,331 22,082
39,204,611 88,981,445
2023 2022
$ $
Long-term regulatory liabilities
Construction Period OM&A Variance Account 5,330,204 —
In-Service Date Variance Account 16,583,528 15,195,242
21,913,732 15,195,242

Distribution System Deferral Account

This account records the costs incurred in relation to the Pikangikum System from the in-service date of the
Pikangikum System up to the date the Pikangikum System is converted into and thereafter forms part of WPLP’s
transmission system. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed interest
rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the opening monthly balance of the
account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of the 2022 balance as at
December 31, 2022, which is being collected through revenue requirement adders in 2024.

Construction Period Interest Costs Variance Account

This account records the revenue requirement impact attributable to the difference between the effective interest
rate for long-term debt approved in rate application and WPLP’s actual effective interest rate on long-term debt
during the construction period. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed
interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the opening monthly balance
of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of the 2022 balance as at
December 31, 2022, which is being collected through revenue requirement adders in 2024. The remaining balance
in this account will be brought forward for disposition in a future proceeding with the OEB.
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COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2020

This account records all the incremental development and constructions costs that are directly attributable to the
COVID-19 pandemic incurred after March 11, 2020. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using
the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the
opening monthly balance of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of
WPLP’s CCCDA 2020 account balance as at December 31, 2020, which is being collected through revenue
requirement adders over a four-year period ending December 31, 2025.

COVID Construction Cost Deferral Account — 2021 to 2023

This account records all the incremental development and construction costs that are directly attributable to the
COVID-19 pandemic incurred from 2021 to 2023. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using
the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts; however, interest will ultimately be
dependent on the OEB’s determination as to the approach to disposition of the recorded amounts as capital or as
an expense. The 2023 balance in this account will be brought forward for a prudency review and disposition in
future rate application proceedings.

Deferred Contingency Deferral Account

This account records the revenue requirement impact attributable to contingency costs associated with 2022
in-service asset additions limited to a maximum of $48,075,777. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this
account using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be
calculated on the opening monthly balance of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved
the disposition of the 2022 balance as at December 31, 2022, which is being collected through revenue
requirement adders in 2024. The remaining balance in this account will be brought forward for prudency review
and disposition in a future rate application proceeding.

In-Service Date Variance Account

This account records the difference between WPLP’s approved revenue requirement based on forecasted
in-service dates for the various lines/stations consisting of the transmission system and the revenue requirement
if calculated based on WPLP’s actual in-service dates for those lines/stations. This account shall be symmetrical.
WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and
variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on the opening monthly balance of the account until the
balance is fully disposed. The OEB approved the disposition of the 2022 balance as at December 31, 2022, which
is being recovered through reduction to revenue requirement in 2024. The remaining balance in this account will
be brought forward for disposition in a future proceeding with the OEB.

Construction Period OM&A Variance Account

This account records the difference, if any, between WPLP’s forecast annual OM&A expenses as approved by the
OEB and its actual OM&A expenses for the corresponding year, during the period that WPLP’s transmission project
is under construction. This account shall be asymmetrical. WPLP will record interest on the balance in this account
using the OEB’s prescribed interest rate for deferral and variance accounts. Simple interest will be calculated on
the opening monthly balance of the account until the balance is fully disposed. The balance in this account will be
brought forward for disposition in a future proceeding with the OEB.
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3. Related party transactions

During the year, WPLP entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2023 2022
$ $
Project costs paid on behalf of WPLP by
First Nation LP (23,079) 245,503
Fortis (WP) GP Inc. 162 —
Fortis (WP) LP (5) —
Fortis Inc. 339,195 —
FortisOntario Inc. 2,636,348 1,918,674
Liberty Utilities 84,799 —
Newfoundland Power Inc. 19,617 56,657
Opiikapawiin Services LP 7,182,946 6,529,746
Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc. 5,819,291 5,287,262
16,059,274 14,037,842
Project engagement fees billed to WPLP by First Nation LP 614,859 578,313
Project management fees billed to WPLP by Wataynikaneyap
Power PM Inc. 614,859 578,313
2023 2022
$ $
Payments
First Nation LP (745,808) (594,044)
FortisOntario Inc. (2,658,142) (1,707,061)
Newfoundland Power Inc. (19,617) (56,657)
Opiikapawiin Services LP (6,614,760) (6,203,276)
Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc. (6,218,260) (5,528,118)
(16,256,587) (14,089,156)

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.
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As at December 31, the amounts due from (to) related parties are as follows:

2023 2022
$ $
Current due to related parties
First Nation LP 51,238 102,650
First Nation LP third-party funding 222,424 245,503
Fortis Inc. 339,195 —
FortisOntario Inc. 424,753 443,893
Liberty Utilities 84,799 —
Opiikapawiin Services LP 2,664,421 2,106,780
Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc. 1,142,896 927,004
4,929,726 3,825,830
2023 2022
$ $
Current due from related parties
Fortis (WP) GP Inc. 2,016 2,178
Fortis (WP) LP 1,891 1,885
FortisOntario Inc. 2,653 —
Opiikapawiin Services LP — 10,545
Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. 2,506 2,506
9,066 17,114

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no specified terms of repayment.

As part of the OEB Decision and Order EB-2021-0134 on the initial rate application, WPLP was instructed to discontinue
the CWIP Funding subaccount without applying the amounts recorded in that subaccount as offsets to development
and construction costs. The due to First Nation LP of $222,424 [2022 — $245,503] represents the third-party funding
removed as an offset to CWIP construction costs.

Details of the relationships with related parties are as follows:

e  First Nation LP owns 51% of WPLP.

e Fortis (WP) LP owns 48.99% of WPLP.

e Fortis (WP) LP is owned 80% by Fortis Inc., who in turn owns 100% of FortisOntario Inc.
e Wataynikaneyap Power PM Inc. is owned 100% by FortisOntario Inc.

e Opiikapawiin Services LP is owned 100% by 24 Participating First Nations.
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4. Property, plant and equipment

2023 2022
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $

Transmission assets
Land rights 54,796 6,849 47,947 49,316

Station equipment 277,974,952 5,345,340 272,629,612 128,218,389
Towers and fixtures 405,125,666 5,908,201 399,217,465 254,241,662
Poles and fixtures 55,110,721 2,712,119 52,398,602 21,744,049
Overhead conductors and devices 494,618,420 11,863,336 482,755,084 323,804,059
Transportation equipment 155,392 46,618 108,774 139,853
Construction work-in-progress 571,170,661 — 571,170,661 652,326,942

1,804,210,608 25,882,463 1,778,328,145 1,380,524,270

Included in the cost of property, plant and equipment is $571,170,661 [2022 — $652,326,942] of assets not being
amortized because they are under construction.

5. Long-term debt

2023 2022

$ $
Senior banks [ii] 418,180,204 319,677,184
Ontario loan [i] 823,959,796 630,362,816
Unamortized financing costs, net of amortization of $13,407,740 (2,197,048) (4,826,303)

1,239,942,952

945,213,697

In October 2019, WPLP obtained two non-revolving construction facilities. The details of the facilities are as follows:

[l The Ontario Financing Authority has provided a facility to a maximum of $1,340,000,000. The rate of interest
is dependent upon when the draws are made and is otherwise based on the average three-month Ontario
T-Bill rate [“cost of funds”] plus 49.9551 basis points. The cost of funds is accrued and included as a draw on
the facility. The balance of the interest rate is payable on a 91-day basis. The average rate of interest for the
year is 5.35% [2022 — 2.95%]. The facility is supported by a guarantee of Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc.
The maturity date of the facility is December 30, 2025 with principal payments required only to the extent of
equity contributions from the unitholders.

10
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[ii] A $680,000,000 non-revolving construction facility provided by financial institutions and bears interest at the
Canadian dollar offered rate plus a spread of 1.5%. The average rate of interest for the year is 6.81% [2022
— 4.23%]. WPLP has provided a performance bond in the amount of $909,989,612 and a pledge of the
unitholders’ units in support of the facility. The maturity date of the facility is December 30, 2025 with principal
payments required only to the extent of equity contributions from the unitholders.

6. Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions relate to government funding received for the construction of a new 99km high-voltage,
single-circuit, three-phase line to extend from Red Lake to a new substation near Pikangikum First Nation, which
serves the community by the construction of an additional 18km of a three-phase 25 kV line. The amount is deferred
and amortized at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate of the Pikangikum project assets. The amount
amortized in the year was $1,235,845 [2022 — $1,237,590] and is included under Pikangikum capital contribution
amortization in the statement of operations.

7. Cash and restricted cash

Bank balances are presented under cash.

8. Financial instruments and risk management

As at December 31, 2023, financial instruments recorded at amortized cost include cash, accounts receivable and
due from related parties with a carrying value of $12,282,660 [2022 — $40,311,009].

Risks and uncertainties

WPLP is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance that could affect its ability to achieve its strategic
objectives for growth. The principal financial risks are disclosed below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to the Partnership’s income that arises from fluctuations in interest rates and the degree
of volatility of these rates. The Partnership does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to this risk.
The Partnership is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its long-term debt.

Credit risk

For cash, due from related parties and accounts receivable, WPLP’s credit risk is limited to the carrying values on
the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk to WPLP is minimal. Financing of regulated capital and other expenditures is currently done through
funds from its partners and related parties.

One of WPLP’s partners, Fortis (WP) LP, is a large investor-owned utility that has had the ability to raise sufficient
and cost-effective financing. However, the ability to arrange financing on a go-forward basis is subject to numerous
factors, including the results of operations and financial position of Fortis Inc. and its subsidiaries, conditions in the
capital and bank credit markets, ratings assigned by rating agencies and general economic conditions.

11
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9. Commitments

WPLP'’s total future minimum lease payments under operating lease commitments over the next five years are as
follows:

$
2024 164,349
2025 162,990
2026 170,559
2027 156,687
2028 3,757
658,342

In addition, WPLP has contractual commitments to its Engineering, Procurement and Construction contractor due
to the impacts of COVID-19. Direct COVID-19 costs that can be reasonably estimated have been accrued as at
December 31, 2023, and the remaining cost exposure from COVID-19 is not determinable at this time.

10. COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 outbreak a pandemic. Governments and
central banks have responded with monetary and fiscal interventions to stabilize economic conditions.

The extent of such adverse effects on WPLP’s business and financial and operational performance are uncertain
and difficult to assess. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the effectiveness of government and
central bank responses, remain unclear at this time. It is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity
of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and results of the Partnership for future
periods.

12
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[XEl| 78830 4327 RZ00O1

Partnership name Fiscal period to which this information return applies

W \Wataynikaneyap Power LP m Fiscal period start m Fiscal period-end '
007 Year Month Day Year Month Day
Partnership operating or trading name From ‘ 2024-01-01 ‘ To ‘ 2024-12-31
008 "If you answered Yes tp question 078 below, enter the date when the
artnership ceased fo exist.
009 p ership 90 Xi

Location of the partnership head office
Has this location changed since the

last time you filed a partnership

information return? . . ... ..o m D Yes No

Iof%ou %qsgvered Yes to line 010, enter the address of the new location on lines
to .

- Country ‘POStal or zip Céﬁe\ Is this the partnership's
- m final information return up
7to dissolution? . ............... D Yes No

If an election was made under
section 261 by one or more partners,

D Yes No

Year Month Day

City Province,
territory, or state

Mailing address of the partnership
(if different from the head office address)

Has this addrgss changed sinpe the

last time you filed a partnership enter the functional currency code

information return? . . .. .. X used forthisreturn . ............. 079
If you answered Yes to line 020, enter the new mailin

to

ma
028.
021 IS @ Was the partnership a Canadian

partnership throughout the

023 fiscal period? . ................ m Yes D No

024

City %ince! territory, or state Type of partnership at the end of the fiscal period
(1] Non tax shelter Tax shelter

Country Postal or zip code
m‘ ‘ D 01 General partnership D 11 General partnership
Location of the partnership’s books and records X .. : .. :
(if different from the head office address) 02 Limited partnership D 12 Limited partnership
Has this location changed since the - N
last time you filed a partnership D D 03 Limited liability D 13 Co-ownership
information return? ... ... ... Yes [X] No partnership
If you answered Yes to line 030, enter the address of the new location on
liries 031 to 038. || 08 Investment club | |19 Other (specify below)
031
032

City Province, territory, or state
If the partnership is a tax

. shelter (TS), enter the TS
Country Postal or zip code identification number . ............ ‘

038

Industry code (NAICS): 237130

Approval code: RC-24-P009
141

T5013 FIN E (24) Page 1 of 4 Canada




F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31

2025-05-29 13:03

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

Protected B when completed

— Required documents to attach to this T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return

® Form T5013 SUM, Summary of Partnership Income
® A copy of each T5013, Statement of Partnership Income slip issued to partners and nominees or agents
® T5013 SCH 1, Net Income (Loss) for Income Tax Purposes?
2 If you are an inactive partnership, see line 280 in Guide T4068 for more information.
® T5013 SCH 50, Partner's Ownership and Account Activity
The General Index of Financial Information (GIFI) schedules
® T5013 SCH 100, Balance Sheet Information
® T5013 SCH 125, Income Statement Information

® T5013 SCH 141, General Index of Financial Information (GIFI) — Additional Information (not required for investment clubs)

At any time during the fiscal period, was the partnership a member of another partnership (directly or indirectly
through one or more partnerships)?

Has the partnership had any transactions, including sections 97 and 98 transactions or subsection 85(2)
transfers with its members or employees, other than transactions in the ordinary course of business? (D9
include non-arm's length transactions with non-residents.)

Did the partnership have a total amount over $1 million of reportable transactions with non-arm's
length non-residents?

) provincial,

251 [
EA | ves

Yes

Did the partnership allocate renounced resource expenses to its members?

Did the partnership own or hold specified foreign property for which the total cost amount, at any time in the
fiscal period, was more than CAN $100,000?

Is the partnership allocating any Canadian journalism labour tax credits?

Is the partnership allocating any return of fuel charge proceeds to farmers tax credits? .. ... ..........
Is the partnership allocating any carbon capture, utilization and storage (CCUS) ITC, labour requirements
addition to tax, or Part XIL7 tax? . . . o e e e e e e
Is the partnership allocating any clean technology ITC, labour requirements addition to tax, or recapture of clean
technology ITC?

B

x| [x]

<] L0 [x] x| [

x| [x]

] x| <] x| [

x| [x]

® T5013 SCH 140, Summary Statement (located at the bottom of page 2 of T5013 SCH 125 and used when more than one T5013 SCH 125 is filed)

Answer the following questions. For each affirmative answer, attach the related schedule or form to the partnership return, unless otherwise instructed.

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

T5013 SCH 9

T2058,
T2059,
or T2060

T106

T1134

T5013 SCH 2

T5013 SCH 5

T5013 SCH 6

T5013 SCH 8

T5013 SCH 12

Calculation and
allocation

T661

T5013 SCH 130

T5013 SCH 52

T1135

T5013 SCH 58

T5013 SCH 63

T5013 SCH 78

T5013 SCH 75

T5013 FIN E (24)

Page 2 of 4



2025-05-29 13:03

EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

Protected B when completed

— Additional information

Did the partnership use the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) when it prepared its

financial statements? ... e e D Yes No

Was a slip issued to one or more nominees or agents? . .. .. e e D Yes No

doniiod on page 27 o T e e .. ] ves No

Does the partnership have one or more new nominees or agents? . . . . . . . . . i e D Yes No

Did the partnership allocate any amount of income tax deducted at source? ... ... .. ... ... ... ... D Yes No

Did the partnership make any other election(s) under the Act during the fiscal period? . ... ................ Yes D No

If Yes, attach a copy of each election form to this return.

nformation retur was Hed? xR ] ves No

If you answered Yes to line 277, provide the business number(s) of the predecessor partnership(s) .. .......... ‘ ‘
|

Was the partnership inactive throughout the fiscal period this information return applies to? No

If Yes, see Guide T4068 to verify your filing requirements.

Did members of the partnership immigrate to Canada during the fiscal period? No

Did members of the partnership emigrate from Canada during the fiscal period? No

If the major business activity is construction, did you have any subcontractors du, No

Did the partnership report its farming or fishing income using the cash method? No

Is this a publicly traded partnership? . . . . o AN e No

If you answered Yes to line 297, did the partnership issue T5008 informatio to report transactions of

interests in the partnership? . . . o o AL s a G e e m D Yes D No

— Miscellaneous information O ®J

For tax deductions withheld at source, was an NR4 infor&w)atio Ffor the fiscal period? . ............. m D Yes No

If you answered Yes to line 301, enter the non-resid CEQUNEOUMDBEr . . e e e m‘ ‘

If you answered Yes to line 301, were NR4 slipsissted? N .« . ... ... e D Yes D No

Is this partnership a specified investment flow-through artnership? . . ... m D Yes No

If you answered Yes to line 304, enter the taxable non-portfolio earnings for the fiscal period .. .............. m

If you answered Yes to line 304, enter the tax payable under Part IX.1 for the fiscal period .. ................ m

Enter the amount of the late-filing penalty from line 307 of the T5013 SCH 52, Summary Information for Partnerships

that Allocated Renounced Resource Expenses to their Members .. ..ottt n et 307

Amount of payment enclosed with thisreturn . . . . ... m

T5013 FIN E (24) Page 3 of 4



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327

Protected B when completed

— Additional information for all partnerships (including tax shelters that are partnerships)

Name and identification number of the partner designated under subsection 165(1.15)

m Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. m 815046362RC0001
Name of designated partner Identification number

— Additional information for tax shelters only

Last name (print) First name (print) Identification number

Principal promoter

— Certification

m I, Fecteau m Duane m CFO

Last name (print) First name (print) Position or title

certify that the information given on this information return and in any attached document is correct and complete. | also certify that the method of calculating
income, deductions and credits for this fiscal period is consistent with that of the previous fiscal period except as noted in a statement attached to this return.

E ‘ ‘ A @ ‘ (905) 994-3643

Year Month Day Signature of the authorized partner /Q Telephone number

— Language of correspondence &
Indicate your language of correspondence . ....... m English @@
—~

— Privacy notice

v

6me Tax Act lated programs and activities including administering tax, benefits,
provincial, tgrritorial, aboriginal or foreign government institutions to the extent

Personal information (including the SIN) is collected and used to administer or enforce the |
audit, compliance, and collection. The information collected may be disclosed to other federa
authorized by law. Failure to provide this information may result in paying interest or penaltie
access to and correction of their personal information, and to file a complaint with the Privacy
Refer to Personal Information Bank CRA PPU 224 on Info Source at canada.calcra-info-sou

=
>
>

ar in other agtions. Under the Privacy Act, individuals have a right of protection,
r of Canada regarding the handling of their personal information.

T5013 FIN E (24) Page 4 of 4



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31

2025-05-29 13:03

L4 |

Canada Revenue
Agency

Agence du revenu
du Canada

PARTNERSHIP'S BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

T5013
SCHEDULE 100

Partnership

Partnership name
account Number

Fiscal period end
Year Month Day

Original

Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2024-12-31 Amended ||
IS this @ NILSCREAUIE?  + v v e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e 999 | Yes| | No
Balance sheet information
Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
— Assets
Total cUIreNt @SSetS . v v v v i it e 54,562,293.00 25,968,311.00
Total tangible capital @assets . ... ... i i e 1,807,460,055.00 1,804,155,812.00
Total accumulated amortization of tangible capital assets 58,725,466.00 25,875,614.00
Total intangible capital assets . .. .. ... i e 54,796.00 54,796.00
Total accumulated amortization of intangible capital assets 8,219.00 6,849.00
Total long-term assets .. ...ttt e 118,360,569.00 39,204,611.00
FAssets held intrust ... ... e
Total assets (mandatory field) . .ottt t ittt e e @ 1,921,704,028.00 1,843,501,067.00
— Liabilities
Total current liabilities + 42,376,293.00 154,624,736.00
Total long-term liabilities + 1,461,365,929.00 1,311,607,517.00
* Subordinated debt +
* Amounts held in trust +
Total liabilities (mandatory field) . ......... = 1,503,742,222.00 1,466,232,253.00
— Partner's capital N4
Total partners® capital (mandatory field) . . . . . @ @ ............. +  417,961,806.00 377,268,814.00
QY
Total liabilities and partners' capital O/&W ................ m = 1,921,704,028.00 1,843,501,067.00

* Generic item

N




F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03

Current Assets

Form Identifier 1599

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Cash and deposits
*Cash and deposits .+« vt et e e (1000 35,141,315.00 4,359,869.00
Cashand deposits . . ... i ittt ittt 35,141,315.00 4,359,869.00
Accounts receivable
* ACCOUNES FECEIVADIE .« . o o o e s et e et e ettt 1060 12,785,729.00 7,913,725.00
Accounts receivable . ... ... 12,785,729.00 7,913,725.00
Inventories
FIVENMOMIES o e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1120 6,027,718.00 4,519,382.00
Inventories . . ... e e 6,027,718.00 4,519,382.00
Due from/investment in related parties
* Due from/investment in related parties 23,484.00 9,066.00
Due from/investment in related parties 23,484.00 9,066.00
Other current assets
* Other current assets 8,753,148.00
Prepaid expenses 584,047.00 413,121.00
Other current assets 584,047.00 9,166,269.00
Total current assets 54,562,293.00 25,968,311.00

* Generic item

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31
2025-05-29 13:03

Tangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization

Form identifier 2008/2009

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Tangible

Accumulated

Account Description GIFI capital assets amortization Prior year
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures
* Machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures . ...... g+ 1,806,144,854.00 1,232,829,759.00
*Accumulated amortization of machinery, equipment,
furniture, and fixtures . . ... ... oo 1741 58,634,272.00 25,828,996.00
Computer equipment/software . . .............. 1774 R4 356,556.00
Accumulated amortization of computer
equipment/software .. ... 1775 12,765.00
Transportation equipment . . . ..ottt . 1783 &4 958,645.00 155,392.00
Accumulated amortization of transportation equipment . K& 78,429.00 46,618.00
Total 1,807,460,055.00 58,725,466.00
Other tangible capital assets
Other capital assets under construction . .......... m + 2 & 571,170,661.00
Total tangible capital assets . ............... g = 1,807,466,055.00 1,804,155,812.00
Total accumulated amortization of tangible Q
e Capital @SSetS . ...t 2009 | 58,725,466.00 25,875,614.00

* Generic item

S

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2025-05-29 13:03

Intangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Form identifier 2178/2179
A Intangible Accumulated .
Account Description GIFI capital assets amortization Prior year
Intangible assets
Rights .. ... + 54,796.00 54,796.00
Accumulated amortization of rights . . ... ....... - 8,219.00 6,849.00
Total 54,796.00 8,219.00
Total intangible capital assets . .............. 2178 & 54,796.00 54,796.00
Total accumulated amortization of intangible
......................... 2179 = 8,219.00 6,849.00

* Generic item

capital assets



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03

Long-term Assets

Form identifier 2589

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description

GIFI

Current year Prior year

Other long-term assets
* Other long-term assets
Other long-term assets

Total long-term assets

* Generic item

118,360,569.00 39,204,611.00

118,360,569.00 39,204,611.00

118,360,569.00 39,204,611.00

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03

Current Liabilities

Form identifier 3139

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Amounts payable and accrued liabilities
* Amounts payable and accrued liabilities . .. ... .. ... m 36,244,738.00 149,695,010.00
Amounts payable and accrued liabilities .. ...................... + 36,244,738.00 149,695,010.00
FTAXES PAYADIE . i e 2680 & 768,251.00
Due to related parties
*Due to related PArtieS .. it e e e 2860 5,363,304.00 4,929,726.00
Due torelated parties . .. ...ttt + 5,363,304.00 4,929,726.00
Total current liabilities . ... ... ... .. ... = 42,376,293.00 154,624,736.00

* Generic item

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03

Long-term Liabilities

Form identifier 3450

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Long-term debt
FLONGAEMM BB« oot B 961,003,724.00 _ 1,239,942,952.00

Long-term debt R

Other long-term liabilities

* Other long-term liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

* Generic item

961,003,724.00

1,239,942,952.00

500,362,205.00

71,664,565.00

500,362,205.00

71,664,565.00

1,461,365,929.00

1,311,607,517.00

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03

Partner's capital

GIFI Code 3575

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Total net income/loss
NetinComMe/loSS .+ o v ittt e et e e e e 40,692,992.00 33,528,578.00
Total Net INCOME/IOSS . . . vttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e E = 40,692,992.00 33,528,578.00
General partners' capital
General partners' capital beginningbalance . ... .................... + 4,746.00 1,393.00
General partners' netincome (I0SS) .« v v v i ittt e e + 4,069.00 3,353.00
General partners' capital ending balance . ....................... = 8,815.00 4,746.00
Limited partners’' capital
Limited partners' capital beginning balance ... .................. 377,264,068.00 283,438,843.00
Limited partners' netincome (I0SS) .« « v v v v ittt e e 40,688,923.00 33,525,225.00
Limited partners' contributions during the fiscal period 60,300,000.00
Limited partners' capital ending balance ... ..................... 417,952,991.00 377,264,068.00
Total partners' capital .. ... ... 417,961,806.00 377,268,814.00

* Generic item

.
>
>




F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
Canada Revenue Agence du revenu
I * I Agency du Canada T5013

Form identifier 125

GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI

SCHEDULE 125

Partnership name

Partnership account
number

Fiscal period end
Year Month Day

Original

Wataynikaneyap Power LP | 788304327 Rz0001 || 2024-12-31  ||Amended [ |
Income statement information
Description GIFI
Is this a NIL schedule? . . . ... .. EE | ves No
Operating Business Name . . . . .. 0001
Description of the operation . .. .. 0002
Sequence Number . ......... 0003 gt
Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year

— Income statement information
Total sales of goods and services
Cost of sales
Gross profit/loss

Cost of sales
Total operating expenses
Total expenses (mandatory field)

Total revenue (mandatory field)
Total expenses (mandatory field)
Net non-farming income

150,095,758.00

93,954,251.00

150,095,758.00

93,954,251.00

117,531,302.00

63,043,744.00

117,531,302.00

63,043,744.00

158,224,294.00

96,572,322.00

117,531,302.00

63,043,744.00

40,692,992.00

33,528,578.00

— Farming income statement information
Total farm revenue (mandatory field)
Total farm expenses (mandatory field)
Net farm income

9659 B4

9898 B

9899 &

©
©
~
(=]
1}

40,692,992.00 33,528,578.00

Net income/loss before extraory@tenx}t\oo/perations
— RS
V)
Total other comprehensive incom&.

— Extraordinary items and income (linked to Schedule 140)

Extraordinary item(s)
Legal settlements

Unrealized gains/losses

Unusual items

Current income taxes

Deferred income tax provision
Total — Other comprehensive income
Net income/loss after taxes and extraordinary items (mandatory field)

= 40,692,992.00

33,528,578.00




EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
Revenue SCHEDULE 125

Form identifier 8299

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
* Trade sales of goOdS and SEIVICES .+ . v v vttt et ittt e e e e 8000 &3 150,095,758.00 93,954,251.00
Total sales of goods and SEIVICES . . ..o vttt it it et i 8089 & 150,095,758.00 93,954,251.00
Investment revenue
*INVESIMENt FEVENUE .+ v v o et e e e e et et e e e ettt e e 8090 2,654,593.00 1,024,525.00
Interest from other Canadian SOUrCeS . . . v . v v vt i i i e e 8094 605,479.00 357,701.00
INVESEMENt FEVENUE . . o v v et e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e + 3,260,072.00 1,382,226.00
Other revenue
B0 (1= g (=37=Y T 4,868,464.00 1,235,845.00
Other FEVENUE . o v et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4,868,464.00 1,235,845.00
Total revenue . .. .. e e e e e e \ 158,224,294.00 96,572,322.00

* Generic item

Page 1



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
Operating Expenses SCHEDULE 125
Form identifier 9367
Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Advertising and promotion
* Advertising and promotion . . .. i e 8520 26,439.00 11,688.00
Meals and entertainment . . . vttt et e e e e e e e e 8523 86,933.00 34,190.00
Advertising and promotion ... ... ... L e + 113,372.00 45,878.00
* Amortization of tangible assets . . .. i it 8670 K 32,855,530.00 18,001,799.00
Interest and bank charges
*Interest and bank Charges .« . v v v v v ittt e e e 8710 55,128,094.00 28,585,877.00
Interest and bank charges .. .. ...ttt + 55,128,094.00 28,585,877.00

Office expenses

* Office expenses
Office expenses

Repairs and maintenance

* Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance

Other expenses
* Other expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

* Generic item

9,752,513.00

5,239,475.00

9,752,513.00

5,239,475.00

1,270,536.00

716,645.00

1,270,536.00

716,645.00

4,350,165.00

1,909,939.00

14,061,092.00

8,544,131.00

18,411,257.00

10,454,070.00

117,531,302.00

63,043,744.00

Page 1



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
I * I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu T5013
Agency du Canada SChedU'e 141
General Index of Financial Information (GIFI) — Additional Information Protected B
when completed

Partnership name Partnership account Fiscal period-end X! oriai
number Year Month Day Original
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2024-12-31 | JAmended

o A partnership needs to complete all parts of this schedule that apply and include it with their partnership information return along with the other GIFI
schedules.

e For more information, see Guide RC4088, General Index of Financial Information (GIFI), and Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information
Return (T5013 forms).

~ Part 1 — Information on the person primarily involved with the financial information

Can you identify the person* specified in the heading of Part 17 . . . . ... . . . . m Yes No D
If you answered no, go to Part 2.

Does that person have a professional designation in accounting? . . . . ... e m Yes No D
Is that person connected** with the partnership? . . . . . e e Yes D No

A person primarily involved with the financial information is a person who has more than a 50% involvement in preparing the financial information that the
partnership information return is based on. For example, if three persons prepared the financial information by doing respectively 30%, 30%, and 40% of
the work, answer no at line 111. If they did respectively 10%, 20%, and 70% of the work, answer yes at line 111 and complete Part 1 by referring only to

the third person.

** A person connected with a partnership can be: (i) a member of the partnership who owns mWo

he partnership units; (ii) an employee of the
partnership; or (iii) a person not dealing at arm's length with the partnership.

. N
~ Part 2 — Type of involvement
Choose one or more of the following options that represent your involvement and tha fth@eﬂe\n‘%o in Part 1:
Completed an auditor's report .. L e e e m

Completed a review engagement report . . . . A s A e e m D
Conducted a compilation engagement . .. L e e T e e e e e e e e e e m D
Provided accounting SErviCES . . . . i N Nt e e e e D

Provided bookkeeping Services ... L N s N e e e e e e e m D

o A Ed |

If other, please specify . ... ......... ... ..... /@

O v

4
the following question:

tON? e @ Yes D No

~ Part 3 — Reservations

If you selected option 300 or 301 in Part 2 above,

Has the person referred to in Part 1 expressed a

~ Part 4 — Other information

Were notes to the financial statements prepared? . . .. ... m Yes No D
Did the partnership have any subsequent events? . . . . .. L e m Yes D No
Did the partnership re-evaluate its assets during the fiscal period? . ... .. .. . i e m Yes D No
Did the partnership have any contingent liabilities during the fiscal period? ... ...... .. .. .. .. . . ... m Yes D No
Did the partnership have any commitments during the fiscal period? .. ... ... ... .. . . . . . . . . . Yes No D
Does the partnership have investments in joint ventures? If yes, complete question 109 below ... ... .............. m Yes D No
Is the partnership filing joint venture(s) financial statements? . . .. ... . m Yes D No D

Approval code: RC-24-P009
141

T5013 SCH 141 E (23) Page 1 0of 2 Canada



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327

Protected B when completed

~ Part 4 — Other information (continued)

Impairment and fair value changes
In any of the following assets, was an amount recognized in net income or other comprehensive income as a result of an
impairment loss in the fiscal period, a reversal of an impairment loss recognized in a previous fiscal period, or a change in

fair value during the fiscal period? . . . . o e e e e e e m Yes D No

If yes, enter the amount recognized:

In net income Increase (decrease)

Property, plant, and equipment . .. e e e e e e e e m
Intangible @ssets L e e e i e i e m
Investment property L e e m
Biological @assets ... e e e e e e @
Financial INStrumeNtS . . . . Lo o o e e e e e e e e e 230
L 0T 235

In other comprehensive income Increase (decrease)

Property, plant, and equipment . . .. e e e

Intangible assets

Financial instruments

Other e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Financial instruments

(other than trade receivables)? . ....... m Yes D No
....................... @ Yes D No

Did the partnership discontinue hedge accounting during the fiscal periog?2 ... . ... ... .. .. . m Yes D No

Did the partnership derecognize any financial instrument(s) during the fiscal peri

Did the partnership apply hedge accounting during the fiscal period?

Adjustments to opening partners’ capital

Was an amount included in the opening balance of partners' capital, i
accounting policy, or to adopt a new accounting standard in the currenti i0d? e E Yes D No

If yes, you have to maintain a separate reconciliation.

all of the following options that apply:

Prepared the partnership information return and tf

The client provided the financial statements A m
The client provided a trial balance . . . . L m D
The client provided a general ledger . . . . . e e e e D
Other e e e e m D
If other, please specify . ....................... m

See the privacy notice on your return.

T5013 SCH 141 E (23) Page 2 of 2



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31
2025-05-29 13:03

GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI

Form identifier 100

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Partnership name

Partnership
account number

Fiscal period end
Year Month Day

42,376,293.00 61, 4.00

1,461,365,929.00 3499 1,503,742,222.00

500,362,205.00

Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2024-12-31

IS this @ NILSCREAUIE?  + v o v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 999 | Yes| | No
Assets — lines 1000 to 2599
35,141,315.00 12,785,729.00 6,027,718.00
23,484.00 584,047.00 54,562,293.00
1,806,144,854.00 -58,634,272.00 356,556.00
-12,765.00 958,645.00 -78,429.00
1,807,460,055.00 -58,725,466.00 54,796.00
-8,219.00 54,796.00 -8,219.00
118,360,569.00 118,360,569@ 1,921,704,028.00
Liabilities — lines 2600 to 3499 @W

36,244,738.00 ﬁ&zm.oo 2860 5,363,304.00

Gassl

EEEE
)
7]

Partner's capital — lines 3540 to 3575 6@

40,692,992.00

4,069.00

40,688,923.00

CIELEIE

1,921,704,028.00

40,692,992.00

8,815.00

417,952,991.00

3575

ElElE

4,746.00

377,264,068.00

417,961,806.00

Approval code: RC-24-P009

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03

2024-12-31

GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI

Form identifier 125

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 125

Partnership name

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

78830 4327 RZ0001

Partnership
account number

Fiscal period end
Year Month Day

2024-12-31

Is this a NIL schedule? . . . . FR0Y | |Yes No

Description
Sequence number

Revenue - lines 8000 to 8299

9368

8000 150,095,758.00 8089 150,095,758.00 8090 2,654,593.00
605,479.00 4,868,464.00 8299 158,224,294.00
Cost of sales — lines 8300 to 8519
| 8519 | 150,095,758.00

I I @
Operating expenses - lines 8520 to 9369 /W
26,439.00 %86,§3®. 32,855,530.00
55,128,094.00 ( 9,752,513.00 8960 1,270,536.00
4,350,165.00 [o284] 061,092.00 117,531,302.00

117,531,302.00

9369 \40,692,992.00

Farming revenue — lines 9370 to 9659

0.00

&

Farming expenses — lines 9660 to 98

9898

0.00

W\/

Extraordinary items and taxes — lines 9970 to 9999

9970 40,692,992.00

9999

40,692,992.00

Approval code: RC-24-P009

Page 1



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
Bl 55008 "™ iCamada ™ Net Income (Loss) for Income Tax Purposes  Protected B when completed
T5013

Schedule 1

Partnership name Partnership account number Fiscal period end Original
Year Month Day
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2024-12-31 | JAmended

Fill out this schedule to reconcile the partnership's net income (loss) reported on the financial statements and its net income (loss) for income tax purposes.
All the information requested in this form and in the documents supporting your information return is "prescribed information".

Fill out this schedule using the instructions in Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information Return (T5013 forms).

Fill out a worksheet to identify the source of all the amounts reported on the T5013 information slips.

Attach the original copy of this completed schedule to Form T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return.

I5 this @ NILSCEAUIE?  + + + o v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e EX | ves No

(If yes, do not use zeroes (000 00), dashes ( - ), nil, or N/A on the lines.)

Amount calculated on line 9999 from Schedule 125 or Schedule 140 . . . . i i it it e e e e e e e m 40,692,992.00

Add:

Provision for Part IX.1 specified investment flow through (SIFT) taxes

Amortization/depreciation of tangible assets . ... ... ..o e e 32,855,530.00

Amortization of natural resource assets . .. .. ... e A

Amortization of intangible assets . ... ... ... L o o oo Ve

Recapture of capital cost allowance from Schedule 8 . ... ................

Income or loss for tax purposes from partnerships . . ................... VAN
&\J

Loss in equity of affiliates ... ... ...
Loss on disposal of assets per financial statements . ... .................
Charitable donations and gifts from Schedule2 . .. ... .............. ...
Political contributions from Schedule2 ... ................. ...
Current fiscal period's holdbacks . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ...

Deferred and prepaid expenses . ... ... i e
Depreciation in inventory — end of fiscal period ... ..............)

Scientific research and experimental development (SR&ED) expendit
deducted per financial statements . ... ...............°

Capitalized interest and property taxes on vacant land
Non-deductible club duesandfees . .................
Non-deductible meals and entertainment expenses
Non-deductible automobile expenses ... ..........
Non-deductible life insurance premiums . ... ... ..

Non-deductible company pension plans Ce O
Reserves from financial statements — balance at

43,466.50

Personal expenses of the partners paid by the partnersiip . . . ..............

Dividend rental arrangement compensation payment deductions . ... .........
Renounced exploration, development and resource property expenses
deducted per financial statements from Schedule 52 . ... ................

Certain fines and penalties . . ... ... ... .. e
Amount from line 508 on page 2 of this schedule .. .................... 118,172.23

Total (Add lines 101 to 199. Enter this amount on line 501) 33,017,168.73 » [EOH] + 33,017,168.73
Deduct: Amount from line 511 on page 3 of this SChEUIE .+« .+« o v vttt ettt e et EA - 73,710,160.73

Net income (loss) for income tax purposes — (line 500 plus line 501 minus line 502) . ................... 503 S

Deduct: Net income (loss) for general partners . . . . . . .. e m =

Net income (loss) for income tax purposes for limited and non-active partners
(1€ 503 MINUS lNE 508)  + v o ee e e et e e e e e e e e e et e e 505 |

Approval code: RC-24-P009
141

T5013 SCH 1 E (18) Canada



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
Partnership account number Fiscal period end Protected B when completed
Year Month Day
78830 4327 RZ0001 2024-12-31
Add:

Accounts payable and accruals for cash basis —closing . ................
Accounts receivable and prepaid for cash basis —opening . ...............
Accrual inventory —opening . . ...
Accrued dividends — prior fiscal period ... ... ... . o
Book loss on joint ventures or partnerships . . .. ... .o
Capital items expensed . . . . ...
Debtissue expense .. ... e
Deemed dividend income . ... ...
Deemed interest on loans to non-residents . . .. ...... ... ... ..
Deemed interestreceived ... ... ... . ... ... e
Development expenses claimed in current fiscal period . ... ... ...........
Dividend stop-loss adjustment . . . ... ... ...
Dividends credited to the investment account . ... ........... .. ... ...,
Exploration expenses claimed in current fiscal period . ... ................
Financing fees deducted inbooks . .. ... ... .. . . . .
Foreign accrual property income . . . . ... e
Foreign affiliate property income . . . . .. . .
Foreign exchange included in retained earnings . . . ... ... .. ... ... ...
Gain on settlement of debt — income inclusion under subsection 80(13) . ........
Interest paid on income debentures . .. ...
Limited partnershiplosses . . .. ... ... i
Loss from international banking centres . . ... ... oo Ao
Mandatory inventory adjustment — included in current fiscal period .. ...
Non-deductible advertising . ... ....... ... . . ... )
Non-deductible interest .. ................ .. ...,
Non-deductible legal and accountingfees . ..............°.>
Optional value of inventory — included in current fiscal period
Other expenses from financial statements .. ...........
Recapture of SR&ED expenditures from Form T661
Resource amounts deducted .. ................
Sales tax assessments .. ...... ... ...,
Write-down of capital property .. ........

84,460.12

Amounts received in respect of qualifying enviro
paragraphs 12(1)(z.1) and 12(1)(z.2)

Contractors' completion method adjustment: reven
contracts under 2 years — previous fiscal period

Taxable/Non-deductible other comprehensive income ite

et of costs on

Total (Add lines 201 to 239. Enter this amount on line 506) 84,460.12 » B + 84,460.12

Other additions:

Asset Retirement 33,712.11

Total (Add lines 290 to 294. Enter this amount on line 507) 33,712.11 > Eud + 33,712.11

Total (Add liNes 506 aNd 507) .+ v o v o e e e e e e Ed - 118,172.23
Enter the amount from line 508 on line 199 on page 1 of this schedule.

Page 2 of 3



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
Partnership account number Fiscal period end Protected B when completed
Year Month Day
78830 4327 RZ0001 2024-12-31
Deduct:

Accounts payable and accruals for cash basis —opening . ................
Accounts receivable and prepaid for cash basis —closing .. ...............
Accrual inventory —closing . ... ...
Accrued dividends — current fiscal period . . ... ... o
Baddebt ... e
Book income of joint venture or partnership . . . ... ... .. oo
Equity in income from affiliates .. ........ ... .. . . i
Exemptincome under section 81 . ... ... ...
Income from international banking centres . ... ... ... .. oL
Mandatory inventory adjustment — included in prior fiscal period . ............
Contributions to a qualifying environmental trust . . . ....................
Non-Canadian advertising expenses — broadcasting . ... ................
Non-Canadian advertising expenses — printed materials .. ...............
Optional value of inventory — included in prior fiscal period .. ..............

Other income from financial statements . ... ... ... ... .. . ... . . ... ..
Payments made for allocations in proportion to borrowing and

bonus interest payments . ... ...
Contractors' completion method adjustment: revenue net of costs on \ @
contracts under 2 years — current fiscal period . ... ... ... . . oo oL, Q

Non-taxable/Deductible other comprehensive incomeitems . ...............

Other less common deductions:

Amortization of deferred contribution 4,868,464.00

Gain on Disposal 33,712.00

Total (Add lines 300 to 394. Ent%bjpount on line 509) 4,902,176.00 » EIJ + 4,902,176.00

Other deductions:

Gain on disposal of assets per financial stateme
Non-taxable dividends under section 83 7.
Capital cost allowance from Schedule 8 . . ... N . > . ..o o oot
Terminal loss from Schedule 8 .. .......... 0. ... ... .. .. ...
Foreign non-business tax deduction under subsection 20(12) ... ............
Prior fiscal period's holdbacks . .. ... ... . .
Deferred and prepaid expenses . . . . . i e e
Depreciation in inventory — end of prior fiscal period . ... ................
SR&ED expenditures claimed in the fiscal period from Form T661 (line 460) ... ...
Reserves from financial statements — balance at the beginning of the fiscal period

Patronage dividends . . ... ...
Contributions to deferred income plans . ... ... ... . i oo o

68,807,984.73

Total (Add lines 401 to 417. Enter this amount on line 510) 68,807,984.73 » m + 68,807,984.73

Total (Add liNeS 509 aNd 510) .« v e v e et e 511 ] 73,710,160.73

Enter this amount on line 502 on page 1 of this schedule.

See the privacy notice on your return.
Page 3 of 3



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
I * I Agence du revenu  Canada Revenue T5013
du Canada Agency Schedule 8
. Protected B
Capital Cost Allowance (CCA) when completed
Partnership name Partnership account number Fiscal period end Original
Year Month Day D A ded
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2024-12-31 mende

e Fill out this schedule to calculate the amount of capital cost allowance (CCA) the partnership is claiming for the fiscal period, or to account for acquisitions or dispositions of depreciable property, or both.
e Fill out this schedule to designate immediate expensing property.

e Fill out this schedule using the instructions in the T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information Return (T5013 forms).

e [f you do not have enough space to list all the information, use an additional T5013 Schedule 8.

e Attach the original copy of this completed schedule to Form T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return.

~ Part 1 — Agreement between associated eligible persons or partnerships (EPOPs)

ofthe Regulations?  ............ m YesD NOD

Are you associated in the fiscal period with one or more EPOPs with which you have entered into an agreement under subsection 1104(3:

e%e
Part

1 2 3

Name of EPOP Identification number Percentage assigned
under the agreement

If you answered yes, complete Part 1. Otherwise, go to Part 2.

Enter a percentage assigned to each associated EPOP (including your partnership) as determined in the agreement.

This percentage will be used to allocate the immediate expensing limit. The total of all the percentages assigned under tf
group has an immediate expensing limit of nil. For more information about the immediate expensing limit, s¢e(note 12 in

O

Id not exceed 100%. If the total is more than 100%, then the associated

See note 1

N\ m m
V\/

1 N\ %
2 N %
3 %
4 ) %
5 %
6 %
7 %
8 %

Total %
Immediate expensing limit allocated to the partnership (see note 2) . . . . e @

Note 1: The identification number is the social insurance number, business number, or partnership account number of the EPOP.
Note 2: Multiply 1.5 million by the percentage assigned to your partnership in column 3.

Approval code: RC-24-P009
141
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EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327

Protected B when completed

~ Part 2 — Income earned from the source in which the designated immediate expensing property (DIEP) is used

The source refers to the business or property from which the income was earned and in which the DIEP is used. For more information about DIEP, see note 5 in Part 3.
Are you a Canadian partnership of which all of the members were, throughout the fiscal period, Canadian-controlled private corporations (CCPC), individuals (other than trusts)

resident in Canada or a combination thereof? L e e e e e e m Yes D No
If you answered yes, complete Part 2. Otherwise, go to Part 3.

Is there more than one source Of INCOME? L L L L ittt e e et e e ettt e e e m Yes D No D
If you answered no, enter the income of that source of income (net income for income tax purposes before any CCA deductions) ... ... ... ..., m

If the answer is yes, complete the table below.

1 2 3
Source of income Income before any CCA Aggregate amount of DIEP
deductions from each source used for each source

(if the income is a loss or nil,

s enter "0")
160 2 < 165}

0 N OB WON -~

(@) \

T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 2 of 6



F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2025-05-29 13:03

2024-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

Protected B when completed

~ Part 3 — CCA calculation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Class Undepreciated capital cost Cost of acquisitions during Cost of acquisitions from Adjustments and transfers Amount from column 5 that Amount from column 5 that Proceeds of
number (UCC) at the beginning of the fiscal period (new column 3 that are designated (show amounts that will is assistance received or is repaid during the fiscal dispositions
the fiscal period property must be available immediate expensing reduce the UCC in brackets) receivable during the fiscal period for a property,
See note 3 for use) property (DIEP) period for a property, subsequent to its disposition See note 9
See note 6 subsequent to its disposition
See note 4 See note 5 See note 8
See note 7
EX [201] 205 [221] EA
1 14.1 40,315.54
2 99 571,170,661.00 2,178,146.00 -573,348,807.00
3 47 1,112,822,402.50 573,348,807.00 -427,226,515.46 1
4 10 59,825.92 P
5 |50 356,556.00 O
6 |8 261,753.12 (\
7 2 396,999.00 \ > (\j)
8 |13 228,961.00 BN \/ N
9 10 1 12 13— 14 15 16
Proceeds of dispositions UCC (column 2 plus UCC of the DIEP Immediate expensing Cost of dcquisitions Cost of acquisitions Remaining UCC Proceeds of disposition
of the DIEP (enter column 3 plus or (enter the UCC amount On.re der of Class from column 13 that (column 10 minus available to reduce the
amount from column 8 minus column 5 that relates to the DIEP See not mn 3 minus are accelerated column 12) UCC of AlIP and property
that relates to the DIEP minus column 8) reported in column 4) column 12) investment incentive included in Classes 54
reported in column 4) properties (AllIP) or to 56 (column 8 plus
See note 10 See note 11 properties included in column 6 minus column 13
Classes 54 to 56 plus column 14 minus
column 7) (if negative,
See note 13 enter "0")
Q See note 14
Q 225 ]
1 40,315.54 40,315.54
2 N 2,178,146.00 2,178,146.00
3 1,258,944,694.04 573,348,807.00 573,348,807.00 1,258,944,694.04
4 59,825.92 59,825.92
5 356,556.00 356,556.00 356,556.00 356,556.00
6 261,753.12 261,753.12 261,753.12 261,753.12
7 396,999.00 396,999.00 396,999.00 396,999.00
8 228,961.00 228,961.00 228,961.00
Totals
T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 3 of 6



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327
Protected B when completed
— Part 3 — CCA calculation (continued)
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Net capital cost additions UCC adjustment for AlIP UCC adjustment for CCArate % Recapture of CCA Terminal loss CCA UCC at the end of the
of AllP and property and property included in property acquired during (for declining balance fiscal period (column 10
included in CI 54 Cl 54 to 56 acquired the fiscal period other than See note 17 See note 18 See note 19 method, the result of minus column 23)

to 56 acquired during the
fiscal period (column 14
minus column 16)
(if negative, enter "0")

during the fiscal period
(column 17 multiplied
by the relevant factor)

See note 15

AlIP and property included
in Classes 54 to 56
(0.5 multiplied by the result
of column 13 'minus
column 14 minus column 6
plus column 7 minus
column 8) (if negative,
enter "0")

See note 16

column 15 plus
column 18 minus
column 19, multiplied
by column 20, or a lower
amount, plus column 12)

See note 20

1 5.00 3 2,822.09 37,493.45
2 2,178,146.00

3 573,348,807.00 8.00 PN 68,492,042.40 1,190,452,651.64
4 30.00 ) O 17,947.78 41,878.14
5 356,556.00 55.00 A0 196,105.80 160,450.20
6 261,753.12 20.00 )/ 52,350.62 209,402.50
7 396,999.00 6.00 ) 23,819.94 373,179.06
8 22,896.10 22,896.10 206,064.90

Enter the amount from line 230 on line 107 of T5013 Schedule 1.
Enter the amount from line 240 on line 404 of T5013 Schedule 1.
Enter the amount from line 250 on line 403 of T5013 Schedule 1.

Note 3: If a class number has not been provided in Schedule Il of

Note 4: Include any property acquired in previous fiscal periods that
municipality or other public authority, or a reduction of capital &
of property in the class that are not subject to the 50% rule. See
column 3 in respect of property included in column 5 (see note 6

Note 5:

tals

68,807,984.73

g e%;gitons for a particular class of property, use the subsection provided in Regulation 1101.
pbecame

v available for use, net of any assistance received or entitled to be received in the fiscal period from a government,
after the application of section 80. This property would have been previously excluded from column 3. List separately any acquisitions
ome Tax Folio S3-F4-C1, General Discussion of Capital Cost Allowance, for exceptions to the 50% rule. Do not include any amount in

A DIEP reported in column 4 is a property acquired after December 31, 2021, by a Canadian partnership (all of the members of which were, throughout the period, Canadian-controlled private
corporations, individuals (other than trusts) resident in Canada or a combination thereof) that becomes available for use before 2025 (if all the members are individuals throughout the fiscal period),

or before 2024 in any other case. The property is designated as such on or before the day that is 12 months after the filing due date of an information return under section 229 of the Regulations by
any member of the partnership for the fiscal period to which the designation relates. It includes all capital property subject to the CCA rules, if certain conditions are met, other than property included in
Classes 110 6, 14.1, 17, 47, 49, and 51. A property can only qualify as DIEP in the fiscal period in which it becomes available for use. See subsection 1104(3.1) of the Regulations for more information.

If there is more than one source of income, the total amount of DIEP reported in Part 2 (total of column 3) should be equal to the total amount of DIEP reported in Part 3 (total of column 4).

T5013 SCH 8 E (23)

Page 4 of 6



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327

— Part 3 — CCA calculation (continued)

Note 6: Enter in column 5, "Adjustments and transfers”, amounts that increase or reduce the UCC (column 10). ltems that increase the UCC include amounts transferred under subsection 97(2). ltems that
reduce the UCC (show amounts that reduce the UCC in brackets) include assistance received or receivable during the fiscal period for a property, subsequent to its disposition, if such assistance
would have decreased the capital cost of the property by virtue of paragraph 13(7.1)(f). See the Guide T4068 for other examples of adjustments and transfers to include in column 5.

Also include property acquired in a non-arm's length transaction (other than by virtue of a right referred to in paragraph 251(5)(b) of the Act) if the property was a depreciable property acquired by the
transferor at least 364 days before the end of your fiscal period and continuously owned by the transferor until it was acquired by you.

Note 7: Include all amounts of assistance you received (or were entitled to receive) after the disposition of a depreciable property that would have decreased the capital cost of the property by virtue of
paragraph 13(7.1)(f) if received before the disposition.

Note 8: Include all amounts you have repaid during the fiscal period for any legally required repayment, made after the disposition of a corresponding property, of:
— assistance that would have otherwise increased the capital cost of the property under paragraph 13(7.1)(d) and
— an inducement, assistance, or any other amount contemplated in paragraph 12(1)(x) received, that otherwise would have increased the capital cost of the property under paragraph 13(7.4)(b)
Also include property acquired in a non-arm's length transaction (other than by virtue of a right referred to in paragraph 251(5)(b) of the Act) if the property was a depreciable property acquired by
the transferor less than 364 days before the end of your fiscal period and continuously owned by the transferor until it was acquired by you.

Note 9: For each property disposed of during the fiscal period, deduct from the proceeds of disposition any outlays and expenses to the extent that they were made or incurred for the purpose of making
the disposition(s). The amount reported in respect of the property cannot exceed the property's capital cost, unless that property is a timber resource property as defined in subsection 13(21).
If the cost of a zero-emission passenger vehicle (or a passenger vehicle that was, at any time, a DIEP) exceeds the prescribed amount and it is disposed of to a person or partnership with which you
deal at arm's length, the proceeds of disposition will be adjusted based on a factor equal to the prescribed amount as a propo# ‘ e actual cost of the vehicle. The actual cost of the vehicle will be
adjusted for payment or repayment of government assistance.

Note 10: If the amount in column 5 (as shown in brackets) reduces the UCC, you must subtract it for the purposes of the calculatig ise,\add the amount in column 5 for the purpose of the calculation.

Note 11: The amount to enter in column 11 must not exceed the amount in column 10. If it does, enter in column 11 the ameu ) If the amount determined in column 10 is zero or a negative
amount, enter zero. The only amounts incurred before 2022, to be included in this column are certain i ) ses from arm's length persons or partnerships where the conditions in
paragraphs 1100(0.3)(a) to (c) are met.

Note 12: Immediate expensing applies to a DIEP included in column 11. The total immediate expensing for umn 12) is limited to the lesser of:

required under subsection 1104(3.3) of the Regulations
— the amount determined under subsection 1104(3.5) of the Regulations for a2
calendar year in which you are associated with another EPOP that-has ate
— any amount allocated by the minister under subsection 1104

The immediate expensing limit has to be prorated if your fi iod I
2. UCC of the DIEP: total of column 11
3. Income earned from the source in which the DIEP is used:
Note 13: An AlIP is a property (other than property included in Classes 5 ) that you acquired after November 20, 2018, and that became available for use before 2028.
Classes 54 and 55 include zero-emission vehicles that you acquired after March 18, 2019, and that became available for use before 2028.
Class 56 applies to eligible zero-emission automotive equipment and vehicles (other than motor vehicles) that are acquired after March 1, 2020, and that became available for use before 2028.
See Guide T4068 for more information.
Note 14: Include only elements from columns 6 and 7 that are not related to the DIEP.

nt from line 156 or relevant source of income from line 165

[2)

T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 5 of 6




EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2024-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2025-05-29 13:03 788304327

— Part 3 — CCA calculation (continued)

Note 15: The relevant factors for property of a class in Schedule I, that is an AlIP or included in Classes 54 to 56, available for use before 2024 are:
— 2 1/3 for property in Classes 43.1, 54, and 56
— 1 1/2 for property in Class 55
_ 1 for property in Classes 43.2 and 53
— 0 for property in Classes 12, 13, 14, and 15, as well as properties that are Canadian vessels included in paragraph 1100(1)(v) of the Regulations (see note 20 for additional information) and
_ 0.5 for all other property that is an AlIP
Note 16: The UCC adjustment for property acquired during the fiscal period (also known as the half-year rule or 50% rule) does not apply to certain property (including AlIP and property included in Classes 54
to 56). Include only elements from columns 6 and 7 that are not related to the DIEP.
For special rules and exceptions, see Income Tax Folio S3-F4-C1, General Discussion of Capital Cost Allowance.

Note 17: Enter a rate only if you are using the declining balance method. For any other method (for example, the straight-line method, where calculations are always based on the cost of acquisitions),
enter N/A. Then enter the amount you are claiming in column 23.

Note 18: If the amount in column 10 is negative, you have a recapture of CCA. If applicable, enter the negative amount from column 10 in column 21 as a positive. The recapture rules do not apply to
passenger vehicles in Class 10.1. However, they do apply to a passenger vehicle that was, at any time, a DIEP.

Note 19: If no property is left in the class at the end of the fiscal period and there is still a positive amount in the column 10, you have a tegminal loss. If applicable, enter the positive amount from column 10
in column 22. The terminal loss rules do not apply to:

— passenger vehicles in Class 10.1
— property in Class 14.1, unless you have ceased carrying on the business to which it relates

Note 20: If the fiscal period is shorter than 365 days, prorate the CCA claim. Some classes of property do ng

— Class 13: the lesser of 150% of the amount calculated in Schedule IlI of the Regulations and the C e end of the fiscal period (before any CCA deduction)

— Class 14: the lesser of 150% of the allocation for the fiscal period of the capital cost of the property apportioned over the remaining life of the property (at the time the cost was incurred) and
the UCC at the end of the fiscal period (before any CCA deduction)

— Class 15: the lesser of 150% of an amount computed on the basis of a rate per ¢ arg foot, or cubic metre cut in the fiscal period and the UCC at the end of the fiscal period (before any
CCA deduction)

— Canadian vessels described under paragraph 1100(1)(v) of the uI' er' of 50% of the capital cost of the property and the UCC at the end of the fiscal period (before any CCA
deduction)

— Class 41.2: use a 25% CCA rate. The additional allowan
eligible for the accelerated investment incentive. The iti i respect of natural gas liquefaction under paragraph 1100(1)(yb) of the Regulations is eligible for the accelerated
investment incentive

The AlIP also applies to property (other than a timber resource\progperty) that is a timber limit or a right to cut timber from a limit as well as to industrial mineral
mine or a right to remove minerals from an industrial mineral mi ee the Income Tax Regulations for more detail.

T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 6 of 6
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2025-05-29 13:03 788304327

Fixed Assets Reconciliation

Reconciliation of change in fixed assets per financial statements to amounts used per tax return.

Partnership information return

Additions for tax purposes — regular classes (T5013 Schedule 8) 576,542,261|12
Additions for tax purposes — leasehold improvements (T5013 Schedule 8) + 228,961|00
Operating leases capitalized for book purposes +
Capital gain deferred +
Recapture deferred +
Deductible expenses capitalized for book purposes (T5013 Schedule 1) +
Other (specify):
CWIP Additions + -573,348,807/00
Total additions per partnership information return = 3,422,415/12 » 3,422,415‘ 12
Proceeds up to original cost — regular classes (T5013 Schedule 8)
Proceeds up to original cost — leasehold improvements (T5013 Schedule 8) +
Proceeds in excess of original cost — capital gain +
Recapture deferred — as above +
Capital gain deferred — as above +
Pre V-day appreciation
Other (specify):
PPE write off fﬁ -4,307/66
Rounding ‘\\\ ) + -0[45
Capitalized Expenses + 84,460/12
Total proceeds per partnership infé&n\at'koﬁ retiern’ = 80,152/01 > 80,152‘01
Depreciation and amortization per financial statements (T5013 Schedule 1) ) - 32,855,530/00
Loss on disposal of fixed assets per financial statements ﬂ - 33,712/11
Gain on disposal of fixed assets per financial statements \ / +
\\Netwcl{ange per partnership information return = -29,546,979|00
Financial statements
Fixed assets (excluding land) per financial statements m
Closing net book value 9(\ 1,748,781,166|00
Opening net book value \j - 1,778,328,145/00
/J(\ Net change per financial statements = -29,546,979|00

v
If the amounts from the tax return and the financial%eé)e ts-differ, explain why below.

4
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F788304327-TF-2024-Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2025-05-29 13:03

L4 |

Canada Revenue

Agence du revenu

2024-12-31

Partner's Ownership and Account Activity

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

Protected B when completed

Agency du Canada
T5013
Schedule 50
Partnership name Partnership account number Fiscal period end Original
Year Month Day D A
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 788304327RZ0001 2024-12-31 mended
® Fill out this schedule to reconcile each partner’s interest in the partnership (including partners who retired during the fiscal period). Number of partners 3

® |f you do not have enough space to list all the information, use an additional Schedule 50.

All the information requested in this form and in the documents supporting your information return is “prescribed information”.
Fill out this schedule using the instructions in Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information Return (T5013 forms).

Attach the original copy of this completed schedule to Form T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return.

Number of partners who disposed of all,
or part of, their partnership interest

Number of nominees or agents

Total

all amounts from line 220

LN

Partner 1

Ownership

~

Fiscal period's income (loss)

allocation

Account activity

- EO

Partner name Percentage (%) id the partner dispose of
Type of Pa partner" interest during the Partner's share of
First Nation LP Partner identification number partner cpd te fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
| 722558525RZ0001 | 3 Lo ) 510000 | [ ] Yes No 0.00 140338371.00
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310 Ed 350 410 420 430

Partner's share of Partner’s share in

the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in drawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period N\ the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

N\

Partner 2

\) -
Ownership

Fiscal period's income (loss)

allocation

Account activity

106 I 107 |

Partner name

e

Percentage (%)

Did the partner dispose of

110 I I >20 |

Type of Partner of partner's an interest during the Partner's share of
Fortis (WP) LP Partner identification number partner code interest fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
| 749436499R70001 | 3 0 489900 | [ | ves No 0.00 134009205.00
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310 Ed 340 E 410 420 430

Partner's share of Partner’s share in

the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in Withdrawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

T5013 SCH 50 E (17)

Approval code:

RC-24-P009
141

Canadi

Page 1
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2025-05-29 13:03 788304327

Protected B when completed

Partner 3 Ownership Fiscal per:lz;g:altrilg:me (loss) Account activity
101] 105 I 106 110 E 300
Partner name Percentage (%) | Did the partner dispose of
Type of Partner of partner's an interest during the Partner's share of
Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. Partner identification number partner code interest fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
\ 815046362RC0001 | 2 2 00100 | | ] Yes No 0.00 N/A
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310] Ed 340 350 410] 420] 430

Partner's share of Partner’s share in
the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in Withdrawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

Partner 4 Ownership 4\6\ Fiscal per:lz;g:altrilg:me (loss) Account activity

101] 105 IR 106 IS D/ I 22| 300

Partner name id the partner dispose of
Type of Parther n interest during the Partner's share of
Partner identification number partner cpd fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base

D Yes D No

Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)

310 Ed 410 420 430
Partner's share of Partner’s share in
the previous fiscal Capital \m Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in awals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal peripd <\ fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable
A
Partner 5 \) V Ownership Fiscal period's income (loss) Account activit;
allocation y
100 101 I 105 106 110 I I 220 300
Partner name Percentage (%) | Did the partner dispose of
Type of Partner of partner's an interest during the Partner's share of
Partner identification number partner code interest fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
\ | [ Jves [ InNo
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310 Ed 340 E 410 420 430
Partner's share of Partner’s share in
the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in Withdrawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

See the privacy notice on your return.

Page 2
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List Detailing the Partner's Ownership and Account Activity

Partnership Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Partner Partner | Percentage (%) Line Line Line Line Line Line
code of partner's
interest
1 First Nation LP 0 51.0000
2 Fortis (WP) LP 0 48.9900
3 Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. 2 0.0100
Total

@@%
@Q@
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EB-2025-0192

I* I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Protected B when completed
Agency du Canada

Summary of Partnership Income T5013
Summary

Fill out this summary and the related slips using the instructions in Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information
Return (T5013 Forms).

The partnership information return is made up of three parts:
® T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return
® All the T5013 schedules the partnership has to file, depending on its fiscal situation
® T5013, Statement of Partnership Income, slips and this summary

Do not use this area.

If you make certain payments to a non-resident of Canada, the amounts must be reported on an NR4 return. For more
information, see Guide T4061, NR4 — Non-Resident Tax Withholding, Remitting and Reporting.

50 1616

For more information on filing the partnership information return, go to canada.ca/t5013-filing-requirements. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

~ Part 1 — Identification

Partnership's account number Year Month Day Year Month Day
78830 4327 RZ0001 Fiscal period-start 2024-01-01 Fiscal period-end ‘ 2024-12-31

Name of the partnership Postal or ZIP code
Wataynikaneyap Power LP L2A 5Y2

Are you a nominee or an agent? (If yes, provide the following information) . ................ g D Yes D No

Nominee or agent's account number Name of the nominee or agent é Postal or ZIP code

Is the partnership a tax shelter? . .. vttt i e e e e NG e e a N e D Yes No

If yes, enter the tax shelter identification number (TS) . ....... ... ... . ... ..., LN ‘

~ Part 2 — Totals from T5013 slips
Total number of T5013 information slips attached .. ............... — 009 3

Total limited partner's business income (I0SS) . . ..o i 010
Total business iNCOME (I0SS) v v v v v vttt et it et et e e 020
Total capital gains (I0SSES) . ot i it S 030
Capital cost allowance . ..o it 040 68,807,984.73

Fill out the six boxes below using the information found on the T5013

Canadian and foreign net rental income (loss) . .......... : . 110
Professional income (I0SS)  « v vttt 120
Renounced Canadian exploration expenses . ........ ) 190
Renounced Canadian development expenses . ... .. o 191
Expenses qualifying foran ITC* .. ......., Q RN 194
Total carrying charges ... ... DN 210
* Line 194 is the total of all the amounts in boxesg/19 9 of all the T5013 slips.
— Part 3 — Contact information <
076 | Person to contact about this summary 078 | Telephone number
Fecteau, Duane (905) 994-3643
~ Part 4 — Certification
| certify that the information given in this summary and the related slips is correct and complete.
| | CFO
Year Month Day Signature of authorized person Position or office
Prepared by Year Month Day
Ernst & Young LLP 2025-05-29

— Part 5 — Privacy notice

Personal information is collected to administer or enforce the Income Tax Act and related programs and activities including administering tax, benefits,

audit, compliance, and collection. The information collected may be used or disclosed for the purposes of other federal acts that provide for the imposition and
collection of a tax or duty. It may also be disclosed to other federal, provincial, territorial, or foreign government institutions to the extent authorized by law.
Failure to provide this information may result in paying interest or penalties, or in other actions. Under the Privacy Act, individuals have a right of protection,
access to and correction of their personal information, or to file a complaint with the Privacy Commissioner of Canada regarding the handling of their personal
information. Refer to Personal Information Bank CRA PPU 224 on Information about Programs and Information Holdings at
canada.calcra-information-about-programs.

i+l
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Canada Revenue
Agency

Agence du revenu
du Canada

L4 |

Fiscal period-end

Exercice se terminant le

YYYY-MM-DD

2024-12-31

AAAA-MM-JJ

Filer's name and address — Nom et adresse du déclarant
Wataynikaneyap Power LP

1130 Bertie Street

Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2

Tax shelter identification number (see statement on back *
Numéro d'inscription de I'abri fiscal (lisez I'énoncé au dos *)

EB-2025-0192

T5013

. Statement of Partnership Income
Etat des revenus d'une société de personnes

Partner code
Code de I'associé

Country code
Code du pays

Recipient type

Genre de bénéficiaire

[002] 0 | [o003] CAN

| [o04]

4 |

Partnership account number (15 characters)
Numéro de compte de la société de personnes (15 caractéres)

[001] 788304327RZ0001

Partner's identification number
Numéro d'identification de I'associé

(006 722558525R70001

Total limited partner's business income (loss)
Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise du commanditaire

Total business income (loss)

Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise

(010

(020

Partner's share (%) of partnership

Part de I'associé (%) dans
la société de personnes

(005

51.000000]

Total capital gains (losses)
Total des gains (pertes) en capital

Capital cost allowance

Déduction pour amortissement

Last name (print) —

Nom de famille (en lettres moulées)

Partner's name and address — Nom et adresse de I'associé

First name — Prénom

Initials —

» | First Nation LP

300 Anemki Place, Suite C
Fort William First Nation ON P7] 1H9

Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
\/
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres rene@e: wents
\) Y
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
7
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
T5013 (21) Protected B when completed — Protégé B une fois rempli

| 030 | ] | 040 35,092,07221]
Initiales
Box Box
Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
10s][ | “A\63,909,013[51] [ 106][ ][ 163,909,013/51]
Box Box
Case  Code Case  Code Amount — Montant
| 18] (=D 89394 389\94\ 247 ][ 30,541,838/29]
Box Box
Case __ Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
| 4a QS 283,385/58 | 254/ || 415,494/81]
oy
Cas ode Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\ pL i g [ ]
Box
ase Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
Case Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant

See the privacy notice on your return
Consultez I'avis de confidentialité dans votre déclaration

For Partnership 4

Pour la société de personnes 4



Canada Revenue
Agency

Agence du revenu
du Canada

L4 |

Fiscal period-end
Exercice se terminant le

YYYY-MM-DD

2024-12-31

AAAA-MM-JJ

Filer's name and address — Nom et adresse du déclarant
Wataynikaneyap Power LP

1130 Bertie Street

Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2

EB-2025-0192
T5013

. Statement of Partnership Income
Etat des revenus d'une société de personnes

Tax shelter identification number (see statement on back *
Numéro d'inscription de I'abri fiscal (lisez I'énoncé au dos *)

Partner code Country code Recipient type
Code de l'associé Code du pays Genre de bénéficiaire
002 o | [o03] can | [004] 4 |

Partnership account number (15 characters)
Numéro de compte de la société de personnes (15 caractéres)

[001] 788304327RZ0001

Partner's identification number
Numéro d'identification de I'associé

(006 | 749436499RZ0001

Total limited partner's business income (loss)
Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise du commanditaire

Total business income (loss)
Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise

(010

[020] [

Partner's share (%) of partnership

Part de I'associé (%) dans
la société de personnes

(005

48.990000

Total capital gains (losses)
Total des gains (pertes) en capital

Capital cost allowance
Déduction pour amortissement

Last name (print) —

Nom de famille (en lettres moulées)

Partner's name and address — Nom et adresse de I'associé

First name — Prénom

Initials — Initiales

» | Fortis (WP) LP

1130 Bertie Street
PO BOX 1218
Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2

Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
\/
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres rene@e: wents
\) Y
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
7
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements
T5013 (21) Protected B when completed — Protégé B une fois rempli

[030] | 040 33,709,031/72]
Box Box
Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
| 10s][ || “\57,530,935/65) | 106][ || 157,530,935/65]
Box Box
Case  Code Case  Code Amount — Montant
| 18] (=D 7;314 081\63\ 247 || 29,338,130/54]
Box Box
Case __ Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
| 4a QS 272,216/85) | 254/ || 399,119]43]
oy
Cas ode Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\ pL i g [ ]
Box
ase Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
Case Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘ ‘ Case H Code H Amount—Montant‘ ‘
Box Box
Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant

See the privacy notice on your return
Consultez I'avis de confidentialité dans votre déclaration

For Partnership 4
Pour la société de personnes 4



EB-2025-0192

I* I Canada Revenue  Agence du revenu YYYY-MM-DD T501 3
Agency du Canada Fiscal period-end

Exercice se terminant le 2024-12-31 . Statement of Partnership Income

AAAA-MM-JJ Etat des revenus d'une société de personnes

iler' — 5 Tax shelter identification number (see statement on back *
Filer's name and address — Nom et adresse du déclarant Numéro d'inscription de I'abri fiscal (lisez I'énoncé au dos *) ‘ ‘

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
1130 Bertie Street Partner code Country code Recipient type

. Code de I'associé Code du pays Genre de bénéficiaire
Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2 ' upay =
[002] 2 | [o003] CAN | [o04] 3 \
Partnership account number (15 characters) Total limited partner's business income (loss) Total business income (loss)
Numéro de compte de la société de personnes (15 caractéres) Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise du commanditaire Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise
001 788304327RZ0001 | [010] [ ] [020] [ ]
Partner's share (%) of partnership
Partner's identification number Part de I'associé (%) dans Total capital gains (losses) Capital cost allowance
Numéro d'identification de I'associé la société de personnes Total des gains (pertes) en capital Déduction pour amortissement
006 | 815046362RC0001 1005]  0.010000] 1030 | ] 040 6,880/80 |
Partner's name and address — Nom et adresse de I'associé
Last name (print) — Nom de famille (en lettres moulées) First name — Prénom  Initials — Initiales
P‘ Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc.
1130 Bertie Street
P.O. Box 1218
i Box Box
Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2 Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
L8] [ A\ 15,82043] [ 247]] || 5,988/ 60/
Box & Box
Case  Code Case  Code Amount — Montant
[ 248]| D\ A\ “ssls7) [asal | 81/47]
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case __ Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
o) 7
X Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Cas ode Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements ase Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
U b Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\/
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres rene@e: wents Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\) Y
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
7
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant

See the privacy notice on your return
Consultez I'avis de confidentialité dans votre déclaration

For Partnership 4
T5013 (21) Protected B when completed — Protégé B une fois rempli Pour la société de personnes 4
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EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
I * I Agence du revenu  Canada Revenue T5013
du Canada Agency . .
Financial
Partnership Financial Return Protected B

when completed

Complete this financial return using the instructions in the T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information Return For internal use only

(T5013 Forms). You can file this return electronically without a web access code using the "File a return" service
in My Business Account at canada.ca/my-cra-business-account or, for authorized representatives, in Represent
a Client at canada.caltaxes-representatives.

Unless otherwise stated, all legislative references are to the Income Tax Act or, where appropriate, the Income Tax
Regulations.

— Identification

Partnership account number Is this an amended return? .. ..... m D Yes No
[XEl| 78830 4327 RZ0001

Partnership name Fiscal period to which this information return applies

VI \Wataynikaneyap Power LP m Fiscal period start m Fiscal period-end*
007 Year Month Day Year Month Day
Partnership operating or trading name From‘ 2023-01-01 ‘ To ‘ 2023-12-31
008 *If you answered Yes to question 078 below, enter the date when the
009 partnership cease/dKo Xist.

, ; - The end membe this\partnership are
Location of the partnership head office (tick the applicabte
Has this location changed since the
last time you filed a partnership i including trusts)
information return? = . .. ..o mD Yes No :

If you answered Yes to line 010, enter the address of the new location on lines
011 to 018.

Country m ‘Postal or zip céde\ Is this the partnership's
final information return up
7to dissolution? . ............... D Yes No

If an election was made under
section 261 by one or more partners,

D Yes No

Year Month Day

City Province,
territory or state

Mailing address of the partnership
(if different from the head office address)

Has @his addrgss changed sinpe the
last time you filed a partnership enter the functional currency code
information return? . - e ’ used forthisreturn . ............. 079
If you answered Yes to line 020, enter the new mailin
to 028.
021 I8 T Was the partnership a Canadian
V)

partnership throughout the

023 fiscal period? . ............. ... @ Yes D No

024

City %ince’ territory or state Type of partnership at the end of the fiscal period
(113} Non tax shelter Tax shelter

Country Postal or zip code
m‘ ‘ D 01 General partnership D 11 General partnership
Location of the partnership's books and records X . . . .
(if different from the head office address) 02 Limited partnership D 12 Limited partnership
Has this location changed since the - -
last time you filed a partnership D D 03 Limited liability D 13 Co-ownership
information return? .. ... Yes No partnership
If you answered Yes to line 030, enter the address of the new location on
lires 031 to 038. || 08 Investment club | |19 Other (specify below)
031
032

City Province, territory or state

If the partnership is a tax

. shelter (TS), enter the TS
Country Postal or zip code identification number . ............ ‘

038]
Industry code (NAICS): 237130

Approval code: RC-23-P009
141
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F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14

2023-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

Protected B when completed

— Required documents to attach to this T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return

® Form T5013 SUM, Summary of Partnership Income
® a copy of each T5013, Statement of Partnership Income, slip issued to partners and nominees or agents
® T5013 SCH 1, Net Income (Loss) for Income Tax Purposes **
** If you are an inactive partnership, see line 280 in Guide T4068 for more information.
® T5013 SCH 50, Partner's Ownership and Account Activity
The General Index of Financial Information (GIFI) schedules
® T5013 SCH 100, Balance Sheet Information
® T5013 SCH 125, Income Statement Information
® T5013 SCH 140, Summary Statement (when more than one schedule 125 is filed)
® T5013 SCH 141, General Index of Financial Information (GIFI) — Additional Information (not required for investment clubs)

At any time during the fiscal period, was the partnership a member of another partnership (directly or indirectly
through one or more partnerships)?

Has the partnership had any transactions, including sections 97 and 98 transactions or subsection 85(2) A
transfers with its members or employees, other than transactions in the ordinary course of business? (Dg no
include non-arm's length transactions with non-residents.)

Did the partnership have a total amount over $1 million of reportable transactions with non-arm's
length non-residents?

Is the partnership allocating any investment tax credits (|
providing a detailed calculation of the partnership's ITC

Did the partnership own or hold specified foreign property/for which the total cost amount, at any time in the
fiscal period, was more than CAN $100,000?

Is the partnership allocating any Canadian journalism labour tax credits?

Is the partnership allocating any return of fuel charge proceeds to farmers tax credits?

Is the partnership allocating any air quality improvement tax credits?

=]

x| [x]

<] L0 [x] x| ]

x| ] [x]

] [x] [x] [x]

Answer the following questions. For each affirmative answer, attach the related schedule or form to the partnership return, unless otherwise instructed.

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

T5013 SCH 9

T2058,
T2059
or T2060

T106

T1134

T5013 SCH 2

T5013 SCH 5

T5013 SCH 6

T5013 SCH 8

T5013 SCH 12

Calculation
and allocation

T661

T5013 SCH 52

T1135
T5013 SCH 58

T5013 SCH 63

T5013 SCH 65

T5013 FIN E (23)

Page 2 of 4



EB-2025-0192
F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

Protected B when completed

— Additional information

fmancial stements? e e e ] Yes No

Was a slip issued to one or more nominees or agents? . . .. e D Yes No

doniiod on page 27 o e e .. ] Yes No

Does the partnership have one or more new nominees or agents? . . . ... .. e D Yes No

Did the partnership allocate any amount of income tax deducted at source? . .......... ... . . ... D Yes No

Did the partnership make any other election(s) under the Act during the fiscal period? .. .................. D Yes No

If Yes, attach a copy of each election form to this return.

formation retur was fled? o B ] ves No

If you answered Yes to line 277, provide the business number(s) of the predecessor partnership(s)  ............ ‘ ‘
|

Was the partnership inactive throughout the fiscal period this information return applies to? No

If Yes, see Guide T4068 to verify your filing requirements.

Did members of the partnership immigrate to Canada during the fiscal period? No

Did members of the partnership emigrate from Canada during the fiscal period? No

If the major business activity is construction, did you have any subcontractors d No

Did the partnership report its farming or fishing income using the cash method? No

Is this a publicly traded partnership? .. .. N e No

If you answered Yes to line 297, did the partnership issue T5008 informatio to report transactions of

interests in the partnership? . ....... ... ... o L D No

— Miscellaneous information

For tax deductions withheld at the source, was an NR4 information _re No

If you answered Yes to line 301, enter the non-resid ‘

If you answered Yes to line 301, were NR4 slips D No

Is this partnership a specified investment flow-through No

If you answered Yes to line 304, enter the taxable non-portfolio earnings for the fiscal period

If you answered Yes to line 304, enter the tax payable under Part 1X.1 for the fiscal period

Enter the amount of the late-filing penalty from line 307 of Schedule 52 . . . oottt e e e e e e e e 307

Amount of payment enclosed with thisreturn = . . . ... e m

T5013 FIN E (23) Page 3 of 4



EB-2025-0192
F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

Protected B when completed

— Additional information for all partnerships (including tax shelters that are partnerships)

Name and identification number of the partner designated under subsection 165(1.15) of the Act

Name of designated partner Identification number

— Additional information for tax shelters only

Last name (print) First name (print) Identification number

Principal promoter

— Certification

m l, Fecteau m Duane m CFO

Last name (print) First name (print) Position or title

certify that the information given on this information return and in any attached document is correct and complete. | also certify that the method of calculating
income, deductions and credits for this fiscal period is consistent with that of the previous fiscal period except as noted in a statement attached to this return.

955 | 2024-05-30 | 4 EEA | (905) 994-3643

Year Month Day Signature of the authorized partner /Q Telephone number

— Language of correspondence &
Indicate your language of correspondence . ....... m English i@
—~

— Privacy notice

v

Personal information (including the SIN) is collected to administer or enforce the Income Tax/Act and relate rams and activities including administering tax, benefits, audit,
compliance, and collection. The information collected may be used or disclosed for the purposes of other federal acts that provide for the imposition and collection of a tax or duty.
It may also be disclosed to other federal, provincial, territorial, or foreign government institutions to the ext t authorized by law. Failure to provide this information may result in

, access to and correction of their personal information, or to file a
ormation. Refer to Personal Information Bank CRA PPU 224 on Information about

complaint with the Privacy Commissioner of Canada regarding the handling of their personal in
Programs and Information Holdings at canada.cal/cra-information-about-programs.

N
6P
o@

T5013 FIN E (23) Page 4 of 4



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
I * I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu
Agency du Canada T5013

PARTNERSHIP'S BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION SCHEDULE 100

Partnership name Partnership Fiscal period end -
account Number Year Month Day Original
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2023-12-31 Amended |_]

IS this @ NILSChEAUIE?  « v e v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 999 Yes| | No

Balance sheet information

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
— Assets
Total current @ssets .. o i i e 25,968,311.00 46,584,306.00
Total tangible capital @ssets . . .. ... e 1,804,155,812.00 1,388,472,631.00
Total accumulated amortization of tangible capital assets 25,875,614.00 7,997,677.00
Total intangible capital assets ... .. ... .t e 54,796.00 54,796.00
Total accumulated amortization of intangible capital assets 6,849.00 5,480.00

Total long-term a@ssets . .. ...t e 39,204,611.00 88,981,445.00
*Assets held intrust ... .. . e

Total assets (mandatory field) .. oottt e @ 1,843,501,067.00 1,516,090,021.00

— Liabilities

154,624,736.00 220,270,000.00
1,311,607,517.00 1,012,379,785.00

Total current liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
* Subordinated debt
* Amounts held in trust

+ + 4+ 4+

Total liabilities (mandatory field) . ......... = 1,466,232,253.00 1,232,649,785.00

— Partner's capital ~
Total partners' capital (mandatory field) . .... @b B + 377,268,814.00 283,440,236.00

Total liabilities and partners' capital () W ................. EEH - _ 1,843,501,067.00 _ 1,516,090,021.00

* Generic item ‘V)/




F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14

Current Assets

Form Identifier 1599

2023-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description

GIFI

Current year

Prior year

Cash and deposits

* Cash and deposits ..
Cash and deposits .

Accounts receivable

* Accounts receivable .
Accounts receivable

Inventories

* Inventories
Inventories

Due from/investment in related parties

* Due from/investment in related parties
Due from/investment in related parties

Other current assets

* Other current assets
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets

* Generic item

4,359,869.00

35,045,432.00

4,359,869.00

35,045,432.00

7,913,725.00

5,248,463.00

7,913,725.00

5,248,463.00

4,519,382.00 4,299,104.00
4,519,382.00 4,299,104.00
9,066.00 17,114.00
9,066.00 17,114.00

8,753,148.00

1,954,155.00

413,121.00

20,038.00

9,166,269.00

1,974,193.00

25,968,311.00

46,584,306.00

Page 1




EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
Tangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization SCHEDULE 100

Form identifier 2008/2009
N Tangible Accumulated .
Account Description GIFI capital assets amortization Prior year
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures
* Machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures .. .. ... ]+ 1,232,829,759.00 735,990,297.00
*Accumulated amortization of machinery, equipment,
furniture, and fixtures . . ... ... o 1741 - 25,828,996.00 7,982,138.00
Transportation equipment .. ... .. ... ... 1783 &4 155,392.00 155,392.00
Accumulated amortization of transportation equipment . K - 46,618.00 15,539.00
Total 1,232,985,151.00 25,875,614.00
Other tangible capital assets
Other capital assets under construction . .......... m + 571,170,661.00 652,326,942.00
Total 571,170,661.00
Total tangible capital assets . ............... p{lil:] =  1,804,155,812.0 1,388,472,631.00

Total accumulated amortization of tangible
e Capital @SSetS ... 2009 e 25,875,614.00 7,997,677.00
* Generic item

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31

2024-05-30 16:14

Intangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Form identifier 2178/2179
N Intangible Accumulated .
Account Description GIFI capital assets amortization Prior year
Intangible assets
Rights ... . + 54,796.00 54,796.00
Accumulated amortization of rights . .. ......... - 6,849.00 5,480.00
Total 54,796.00 6,849.00
Total intangible capital assets . .............. 2178 & 54,796.00 54,796.00
Total accumulated amortization of intangible
2179 = 6,849.00 5,480.00

capitalassets . ............ .. .. ..,

* Generic item



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
Long-term Assets SCHEDULE 100
Form identifier 2589
Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Other long-term assets
*Other long-term assets .. ..ot e m 39,204,611.00 88,981,445.00
Other IoNg-term assetS . ...ttt t ettt + 39,204,611.00 88,981,445.00
Total IoNg-term assets ... ... ...ttt 2589 & 39,204,611.00 88,981,445.00

* Generic item

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14

Current Liabilities

Form identifier 3139

2023-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description

GIFI

Current year

Prior year

Amounts payable and accrued liabilities

* Amounts payable and accrued liabilities
Amounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to related parties

* Due to related parties
Due to related parties

Total current liabilities

* Generic item

149,695,010.00

216,444,170.00

149,695,010.00

216,444,170.00

4,929,726.00

3,825,830.00

4,929,726.00

3,825,830.00

154,624,736.00

220,270,000.00

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14

Long-term Liabilities

Form identifier 3450

2023-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Long-term debt
FLONGAEM BBt v ettt e e e e B 1,239,942,952.00 945,213,697.00
Long-term debt .. ... 1,239,942,952.00 945,213,697.00
Other long-term liabilities
* Other long-term liabilities . . . .o ot 3320 71,664,565.00 67,166,088.00
Other long-term liabilities . . .. ... i i ittt 71,664,565.00 67,166,088.00
Total long-term liabilities ... .............cooeuureeneann.... 3450 1,311,607,517.00 _ 1,012,379,785.00

* Generic item

Page 1



F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31

2024-05-30 16:14
Partner's capital

GIFI Code 3575

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

SCHEDULE 100

Account Description

GIFI

Current year

Prior year

Total net income/loss

Net income/loss
Total net income/loss

General partners’' capital
General partners' capital beginning balance
General partners' net income (loss)
General partners' contributions during the fiscal period
General partners' capital ending balance

Limited partners’' capital
Limited partners' capital beginning balance
Limited partners' net income (loss)
Limited partners' contributions during the fiscal period
Limited partners' capital ending balance

Total partners' capital

* Generic item

N+ + +

33,528,578.00

12,363,145.00

33,528,578.00

12,363,145.00

1,393.00 -327.00
3,353.00 1,236.00

484.00
4,746.00 1,393.00

283,438,843.00

16,940,980.00

33,525,225.00

12,361,909.00

60,300,000.00

254,135,954.00

377,264,068.00

283,438,843.00

377,268,814.00

283,440,236.00




EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
I * I 2anada Revenue lggeélce %u revenu T5013
gency u Canada
Form identifier 125 GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI SCHEDULE 125
Partnership name Partnership account Fiscal period end -
number Year Month Day Original
Wataynikaneyap Power LP | 788304327 RZ0001 ||| 2023-12-31  ||Amended | |
Income statement information
Description GIFI
Is this a NIL schedule? . . . . .. .. EX [ Jves [X]no
Operating Business Name . . .. .. 0001
Description of the operation . . ... 0002
Sequence Number . ......... 0003 gt
Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
— Income statement information
Total sales of goods and services 93,954,251.00 25,071,060.00
Costofsales ... i e
GrOSS PIOMILIOSS - -« eeee e e e et e " 93,954,251.00 25,071,060.00
Costofsales ... .. e N
Total operating @Xpenses . .. v i i e 63,043,744.00 15,125,598.00
Total expenses (mandatory field) 63,043,744.00 15,125,598.00
Total revenue (mandatory field) 96,572,322.00 27,488,743.00
Total expenses (mandatory field) 63,043,744.00 15,125,598.00
Net non-farmingincome . ...............A 33,528,578.00 12,363,145.00
— Farming income statement information
Total farm revenue (mandatory field) 9659 4
Total farm expenses (mandatory field) 9898 &

Net farm income  ............... /f(‘\\? ................. 9899
Q
Net income/loss before extraor@ten@g)erations .......... = 33,528,578.00 12,363,145.00
V)

7

Total other comprehensive incom& ........................... 9998 &

— Extraordinary items and income (linked to Schedule 140)
Extraordinary item(s) . . . ...
Legal settlements ... ... .. . . e
Unrealized gains/losses . ..o oo i ittt i e
Unusualitems . .. o
Currentincome taxes ... . . .. i e

Deferred income tax provision . ... ... e
Total — Other comprehensive income . ... ... ... it
Net income/loss after taxes and extraordinary items (mandatory field) ... ..

33,528,578.00 12,363,145.00




F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14

Revenue

Form identifier 8299

2023-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

SCHEDULE 125

Account Description

Current year

Prior year

* Trade sales of goods and services

Total sales of goods and services

Investment revenue

* Investment revenue
Interest from other Canadian sources
Investment revenue

Other revenue

* Other revenue
Other revenue

Total revenue

* Generic item

93,954,251.00

25,071,060.00

93,954,251.00

25,071,060.00

1,024,525.00

1,126,160.00

357,701.00

53,933.00

1,382,226.00

1,180,093.00

1,235,845.00

1,237,590.00

1,235,845.00

1,237,590.00

96,572,322.00

27,488,743.00

Page 1




EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
Operating Expenses SCHEDULE 125
Form identifier 9367
Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
Advertising and promotion
* Advertising and promotion ... ... 8520 11,688.00
Meals and entertainment . . ..o it e 8523 34,190.00 29,529.00
Advertising and promotion .. .. ... L + 45,878.00 29,529.00
* Amortization of tangible @SSEts . i i i i e 8670 &3 18,001,799.00 4,342,053.00
Interest and bank charges
*Interest and bank Charges . . v v v i it e 8710 28,585,877.00 4,939,252.00
Interest and bank Charges . . ..o v vttt e + 28,585,877.00 4,939,252.00

Office expenses
FOffiCe BXPENSES vt it e e e
Office expenses . ... ... . . . e e e

Repairs and maintenance

* Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance

Other expenses
* Other expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

* Generic item

5,239,475.00

1,318,308.00

5,239,475.00

1,318,308.00

716,645.00

716,645.00

1,909,939.00

1,887,789.00

8,544,131.00

2,608,667.00

10,454,070.00

4,496,456.00

63,043,744.00

15,125,598.00

Page 1




EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
I * I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu T5013
Agency du Canada Schedule 141
General Index of Financial Information (GIFI) — Additional Information Protected B
when completed

Partnership name Partnership account Fiscal period-end X! 6riai
number Year Month Day Original
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2023-12-31 | JAmended

e A partnership needs to complete all parts of this schedule that apply and include it with their partnership information return along with the other GIFI
schedules.

e For more information, see Guide RC4088, General Index of Financial Information (GIFI), and Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information
Return (T5013 forms).

~ Part 1 — Information on the person primarily involved with the financial information

Can you identify the person* specified in the heading of Part 1?7 . . . . ... . . m Yes No D
If you answered no, go to Part 2.

Does that person have a professional designation in accounting? . ... .. .. . . . e m Yes No D
Is that person connected™ with the partnership? . . . . .. e Yes D No

A person primarily involved with the financial information is a person who has more than a 50% involvement in preparing the financial information that the
partnership information return is based on. For example, if three persons prepared the financial inforrgation by doing respectively 30%, 30%, and 40% of
the work, answer no at line 111. If they did respectively 10%, 20%, and 70% of the work, answer yes at\ine 111 and complete Part 1 by referring only to

the third person.

** A person connected with a partnership can be: (i) a member of the partnership who owns mWO°

he partnership units; (ii) an employee of the
partnership; or (iii) a person not dealing at arm's length with the partnership.

. N/
~ Part 2 — Type of involvement
Choose one or more of the following options that represent your involvement and th fth@%ydto in Part 1:
Completed an auditor's report ... e e e m

Completed a review engagement report . ... N e m D
Conducted a compilation engagement . .. e T e e e e e e m D
Provided accounting SErvICES .. . . NG Dt h e e e e e D

Provided bookkeeping services N e e e m D

o S A R 305 |l

If other, please specify . .................... /@

(@) v

v
the following question:

tON? e e m Yes D No

~ Part 3 — Reservations

If you selected option 300 or 301 in Part 2 above,

Has the person referred to in Part 1 expressed a rese

~ Part 4 — Other information

Were notes to the financial statements prepared? . . .. .. e m Yes No D
Did the partnership have any subsequent events? . . ... e e e m Yes D No
Did the partnership re-evaluate its assets during the fiscal period? . ... .. ... . . . . . . . m Yes D No
Did the partnership have any contingent liabilities during the fiscal period? .. ....... ... . . . . oo L. m Yes D No
Did the partnership have any commitments during the fiscal period? ... ... ... . . . .. e Yes No D
Does the partnership have investments in joint ventures? If yes, complete question 109 below ... ................. m Yes D No
Is the partnership filing joint venture(s) financial statements? . ... ... ... . . . . m Yes D No D

Approval code: RC-23-P009
141

T5013 SCH 141 E (23) Page 1 0f 2 Canada



EB-2025-0192
F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

Protected B when completed

~ Part 4 — Other information (continued)

Impairment and fair value changes
In any of the following assets, was an amount recognized in net income or other comprehensive income as a result of an
impairment loss in the fiscal period, a reversal of an impairment loss recognized in a previous fiscal period, or a change in

fair value during the fiscal period? . ... e e m Yes D No

If yes, enter the amount recognized:

In net income Increase (decrease)

Property, plant, and equipment ... e e e e e e m
Intangible @ssets L e e e e e e e e m
Investment property L e e m
Biological @ssets L. e e e e e e e e s @
Financial INStrumeNtS . . .o o e e e e e e 230
=T 235

In other comprehensive income Increase (decrease)

Property, plant, and equipment ... e e

Intangible assets

Financial instruments

Other e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Financial instruments

No

Did the partnership apply hedge accounting during the fiscal period? N A No

Did the partnership derecognize any financial instrument(s) during the fiscal perigd (other thantr:

Did the partnership discontinue hedge accounting during the fiscal period? ... T . .. . .. . o No

Adjustments to opening partners' capital

Was an amount included in the opening balance of partners' capital, i
accounting policy, or to adopt a new accounting standard in the curre

If yes, you have to maintain a separate reconciliation. /(\4
(N

~ Part 5 — Information on the person who prepare t\/partnership information return
j t

No

rofessional designation in accounting but is not the person identified in Part 1, choose
all of the following options that apply:

Prepared the partnership information return and the financial information contained therein . . . . ... .. .. . . i m D
The client provided the financial statements . . . L L m
The client provided a trial balance .. . e m D
The client provided a general ledger . . . i e e e e e e e e e e e D
O e e e m D
If other, please specify . ....................... m

See the privacy notice on your return.

T5013 SCH 141 E (23) Page 2 of 2



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

SCHEDULE 100

GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI
Form identifier 100

Partnership name Partnership Fiscal period end
account number Year Month Day
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2023-12-31
IS this @ NILSCREAUIE? v v e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 999 | ves| | No

Assets — lines 1000 to 2599

4,519,382.00

4,359,869.00 7,913,725.00

9,066.00 8,753,148.00 413,121.00
25,968,311.00 1,232,829,759.00 -25,828,996.00
155,392.00 -46,618.00 571,170,661.00
1,804,155,812.00 -25,875,614.00 54,796.00
-6,849.00 54,796.00 -6,849.00
39,204,611.00 39,204,611.}3(@ 1,843,501,067.00
Liabilities — lines 2600 to 3499

149,695,010.00 @9,736.00 154,624,736.00
1,239,942,952.00 71, 65.00 1,311,607,517.00
1,466,232,253.00

Partner's capital — lines 3540 to 3575 6@\7

33,528,578.00 35 33,528,578.00 @ 1,393.00
@ 3,353.00 4,746.00 283,438,843.00
33,525,225.00 60,300,000.00 377,264,068.00
377,268,814.00 1,843,501,067.00

Approval code: RC-23-P009
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F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14

2023-12-31

GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI

Form identifier 125

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

SCHEDULE 125

Partnership name

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Partnership
account number

78830 4327 RZ0001

Fiscal period end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

Is this a NIL schedule? . . . . FXXY | |VYes No

Description
Sequence number ... ... 0003 ot

Revenue - lines 8000 to 8299
8000 93,954,251.00

8094 357,701.00

8089 93,954,251.00

1,235,845.00

=]

8299

1,024,525.00

96,572,322.00

— lines 8300 to 8519

0
o)
@
~*
EO I
—ry
o
=
o
7]

93,954,251.00

Operating expenses — lines 8520 to 9369

11,688.00
28,585,877.00
1,909,939.00
63,043,744.00

(=N
D)

A6

(K5,239,455.00

9284 544 131.00

9369 33,528,578.00

8960

18,001,799.00

716,645.00

63,043,744.00

Farming revenue — lines 9370 to 9659

0.00

@%[]IE

14

Farming expenses — lines 9660 to 98

9898 0.00

W\/

Extraordinary items and taxes — lines 9970 to 9999

9970 33,528,578.00

9999 33,528,578.00

Approval code: RC-23-P009

Page 1



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP

2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
Bl 55008 "o iCamada ™ Net Income (Loss) for Income Tax Purposes  Protected B when completed
T5013

Schedule 1

Partnership name Partnership account number Fiscal period end Original
Year Month Day
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2023-12-31 | JAmended

Fill out this schedule to reconcile the partnership's net income (loss) reported on the financial statements and its net income (loss) for income tax purposes.
All the information requested in this form and in the documents supporting your information return is "prescribed information".

Fill out this schedule using the instructions in Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information Return (T5013 forms).

Fill out a worksheet to identify the source of all the amounts reported on the T5013 information slips.

Attach the original copy of this completed schedule to Form T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return.

IS this @ NILSCREAUIE?  + v+ v v e e e e e e e e e e e e EX | ves No

(If yes, do not use zeroes (000 00), dashes ( - ), nil, or N/A on the lines.)

Amount calculated on line 9999 from Schedule 125 or Schedule 140 . . . . ottt ittt e m 33,528,578.00

Add:

Provision for Part IX.1 specified investment flow through (SIFT) taxes

Amortization/depreciation of tangible assets . . ... ... 18,001,799.00

Amortization of natural resource assets . . ... .. o A

Amortization of intangible assets . ... ... ... o o Ve

Recapture of capital cost allowance from Schedule 8 ... .................

Income or loss for tax purposes from partnerships .. ................... VRN
&\J

Loss in equity of affiliates . ... ... ...
Loss on disposal of assets per financial statements . ... ... ..............
Charitable donations and gifts from Schedule2 .. .....................
Political contributions from Schedule2 .. ........... ... ... ...
Current fiscal period's holdbacks .. ........... ... ... ... ...
Deferred and prepaid expenses . . . ..ot e
Depreciation in inventory — end of fiscal period ... ..............\

Scientific research and experimental development (SR&ED) expenditu
deducted per financial statements .. .......... .. ... 000

Capitalized interest and property taxes on vacant land
Non-deductible club dues andfees . .................
Non-deductible meals and entertainment expenses
Non-deductible automobile expenses  .............
Non-deductible life insurance premiums ... ...

Non-deductible company pension plans RN
Reserves from financial statements — balance at

17,095.00

Personal expenses of the partners paid by the partnerskip . . . ..............

Dividend rental arrangement compensation payment deductions ... ..........
Renounced exploration, development and resource property expenses
deducted per financial statements from Schedule 52 ... .................

Certain fines and penalties ... ... .. ... . e
Amount from line 508 on page 2 of this schedule ... ................... 1,106,660.64

Total (Add lines 101 to 199. Enter this amount on line 501) 19,125,554.64 » [EH + 19,125,554.64
Deduct: Amount from line 511 on page 3 of this schedule . . ... ottt i e Ex - 52,654,132.64

Net income (loss) for income tax purposes — (line 500 plus line 501 minus line 502) . ................... 503 S

Deduct: Net income (loss) for general partners . . . .. o i e e s m =

Net income (loss) for income tax purposes for limited and non-active partners
(N€ 503 MINUS N8 508)  « v v eev e s et et et e e e e e e e e 505 |

Approval code: RC-23-P009
11
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EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
Partnership account number Fiscal period end Protected B when completed
Year Month Day
78830 4327 RZ0001 2023-12-31
Add:

Accounts payable and accruals for cash basis — closing .. ...............
Accounts receivable and prepaid for cash basis —opening  ................
Accrual inventory —opening . ... e
Accrued dividends — prior fiscal period .. ... .. . L
Book loss on joint ventures or partnerships . . ........ ... .. . . o oL,
Capital items expensed . .. ... L e
Debtissue expense ...
Deemed dividend income . . ... e
Deemed interest on loans to non-residents .. ........ ... ... oL
Deemed interestreceived ... ... ... e
Development expenses claimed in current fiscal period .. ................
Dividend stop-loss adjustment ... ... ... . .
Dividends credited to the investmentaccount ... ............ ... ... ...
Exploration expenses claimed in current fiscal period . .. .................
Financing fees deducted in books . . . . ... . . e
Foreign accrual property inCome . . . . . ottt e e
Foreign affiliate property income . . . . . .. e
Foreign exchange included in retained earnings . ... ... .. ... ... . . . ...,
Gain on settlement of debt — income inclusion under subsection 80(13) . ........
Interest paid on income debentures ... ... L o
Limited partnershiplosses ... ... ... .. ..o oo
Loss from international banking centres ... ... ... .. oo Afe e
Mandatory inventory adjustment — included in current fiscal period .. ...
Non-deductible advertising ... ... ... Y
Non-deductible interest .. ....... ... . o oL,
Non-deductible legal and accountingfees .. .............°0.%
Optional value of inventory — included in current fiscal period
Other expenses from financial statements ... ..........
Recapture of SR&ED expenditures from Form T661
Resource amounts deducted . .................
Sales tax assessments . ........ ... ...
Write-down of capital property .. ... .. ...

Amounts received in respect of qualifying environs
paragraphs 12(1)(z.1) and 12(1)(z.2)

Contractors' completion method adjustment: reven
contracts under 2 years — previous fiscal period

Taxable/Non-deductible other comprehensive income it

Total (Add lines 201 to 239. Enter this amount on line 506) » Y -

Other additions:

Asset Retirement 1,106,660.64

Total (Add lines 290 to 294. Enter this amount on line 507) 1,106,660.64 » Eud + 1,106,660.64

Total (Add N€S 506 aNA 507) .+ v e e et e e e e e e e e e Ex3 - 1,106,660.64
Enter the amount from line 508 on line 199 on page 1 of this schedule.

Page 2 of 3



F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31
2024-05-30 16:14

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

Partnership account number Fiscal period end Protected B when completed
Year Month Day
78830 4327 RZ0001 2023-12-31
Deduct:

Accounts payable and accruals for cash basis —opening . ................
Accounts receivable and prepaid for cash basis —closing . ................
Accrual inventory —closing .. ... e
Accrued dividends — current fiscal period . ... . ... .o
Baddebt ... e
Book income of joint venture or partnership . . .......... ... .. . . . ...
Equity in income from affiliates . ........ ... . . . oo
Exemptincome under section 81 ... ... ... e
Income from international banking centres . ....... .. .. . oL,
Mandatory inventory adjustment — included in prior fiscal period . ............
Contributions to a qualifying environmental trust ... ....................
Non-Canadian advertising expenses — broadcasting .. ..................
Non-Canadian advertising expenses — printed materials . ................
Optional value of inventory —included in prior fiscal period ... .............

Other income from financial statements . ... ....... .. .. ... ... ... ...
Payments made for allocations in proportion to borrowing and

bonus interest payments .. ...
Contractors' completion method adjustment: revenue net of costs on Q\ @
contracts under 2 years — current fiscal period ... ... ... oo oL,

Non-taxable/Deductible other comprehensive incomeitems .. ..............

Other less common deductions:

Amortization of deferred contribution
20(1)(e) Financing fees
Gain on Disposal

1,235,845.00
3,120,958.00
1,106,660.64

Total (Add lines 300 to 394. Ent%%lunt on line 509) 5,463,463.64 » EHF + 5,463,463.64

Other deductions:

Gain on disposal of assets per financial statemeft
Non-taxable dividends under section 83 ONG Y T
Capital cost allowance from Schedule 8 . ... . . >/. . ... . i
Terminal loss from Schedule 8 . ........ ... /0.
Foreign non-business tax deduction under subsection 20(12) ...............
Prior fiscal period's holdbacks . .. ... .. . . . . . e
Deferred and prepaid eXpenses . . ..ttt e e e
Depreciation in inventory — end of prior fiscal period .. ..................
SR&ED expenditures claimed in the fiscal period from Form T661 (line 460) . ... ..
Reserves from financial statements — balance at the beginning of the fiscal period

Patronage dividends ... . ...
Contributions to deferred income plans .. ....... ... ... . . ..o

47,190,669.00

Total (Add lines 401 to 417. Enter this amount on line 510) 47,190,669.00 » EIJ + 47,190,669.00

Total (Add lines 509 and 510) . . . . . . e
Enter this amount on line 502 on page 1 of this schedule.

B - 52,654,132.64

See the privacy notice on your return.
Page 3 of 3



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327
I * I Agence du revenu  Canada Revenue T5013
du Canada Agency Schedule 8
. Protected B
Capital Cost Allowance (CCA) when completed
Partnership name Partnership account number Fiscal period end Original
Year Month Day D A ded
Wataynikaneyap Power LP 78830 4327 RZ0001 2023-12-31 mende

o Fill out this schedule to calculate the amount of capital cost allowance (CCA) the partnership is claiming for the fiscal period, or to account for acquisitions or dispositions of depreciable property, or both.
e Fill out this schedule to designate immediate expensing property.

e Fill out this schedule using the instructions in the T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information Return (T5013 forms).

e |f you do not have enough space to list all the information, use an additional T5013 Schedule 8.

e Attach the original copy of this completed schedule to Form T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return.

— Part 1 — Agreement between associated eligible persons or partnerships (EPOPs)

of'the Regulations?  ............ m YesD NOD

Are you associated in the fiscal period with one or more EPOPs with which you have entered into an agreement under subsection 1104(3:

If you answered yes, complete Part 1. Otherwise, go to Part 2.

Enter a percentage assigned to each associated EPOP (including your partnership) as determined in the agreem

This percentage will be used to allocate the immediate expensing limit. The total of all the percentages assigrigd under {l
group has an immediate expensing limit of nil. For more information about the immediate expensing limit, s¢e(note 12 in Part

héuld not exceed 100%. If the total is more than 100%, then the associated

1 2 3

Name of EPOP Identification number Percentage assigned

under the agreement
See note 1

%
%
%

N\ m m
V\/

%
%
%
%
Total %

Immediate expensing limit allocated to the partnership (see note 2) .. e e m

0 N O WON -~

Note 1: The identification number is the social insurance number, business number, or partnership account number of the EPOP.
Note 2: Multiply 1.5 million by the percentage assigned to your partnership in column 3.

Approval code: RC-23-P009
141
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EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

Protected B when completed

~ Part 2 — Income earned from the source in which the designated immediate expensing property (DIEP) is used

The source refers to the business or property from which the income was earned and in which the DIEP is used. For more information about DIEP, see note 5 in Part 3.
Are you a Canadian partnership of which all of the members were, throughout the fiscal period, Canadian-controlled private corporations (CCPC), individuals (other than trusts)

resident in Canada or a combination thereof? L e e e m Yes D No
If you answered yes, complete Part 2. Otherwise, go to Part 3.

Is there more than one source Of INCOME? L L L L L L ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e m Yes D No D
If you answered no, enter the income of that source of income (net income for income tax purposes before any CCAdeductions) . ...... ... . ..., m

If the answer is yes, complete the table below.

1 2 3
Source of income Income before any CCA Aggregate amount of DIEP
deductions from each source used for each source

(if the income is a loss or nil,

% enter "0")
160 2 < 165

0 N OB WON -~

@) \

T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 2 of 6



F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14

2023-12-31

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

Protected B when completed

~ Part 3 — CCA calculation

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Class Undepreciated capital cost Cost of acquisitions during Cost of acquisitions from Adjustments and transfers Amount from column 5 that Amount from column 5 that Proceeds of
number (UCC) at the beginning of the fiscal period (new column 3 that are designated (show amounts that will is assistance received or is repaid during the fiscal dispositions
the fiscal period property must be available immediate expensing reduce the UCC in brackets) | receivable during the fiscal period for a property,
See note 3 for use) property (DIEP) period for a property, subsequent to its disposition See note 9
See note 6 subsequent to its disposition
See note 4 See note 5 See note 8
See note 7
200 1201 EH El Ed
1 14.1 43,350.04
2 99 652,326,942.00 416,789,842.00 -497,946,123.00
3 47 662,038,274.32 497,946,123.00 P
4 10 85,465.60 A \
5 )
6 (N
7 V) @
8 PN \/ (\
9 10 1 12 13— 14 15 16
Proceeds of dispositions UCC (column 2 plus UCC of the DIEP Immediate expensing Cost of dcquisitions Cost of acquisitions Remaining UCC Proceeds of disposition
of the DIEP (enter column 3 plus or (enter the UCC amount On.re der of Class from column 13 that (column 10 minus available to reduce the
amount from column 8 minus column 5 that relates to the DIEP See not mn 3 minus are accelerated column 12) UCC of AlIP and property
that relates to the DIEP minus column 8) reported in column 4) column 12) investment incentive included in Classes 54
reported in column 4) properties (AllIP) or to 56 (column 8 plus
See note 10 See note 11 properties included in column 6 minus column 13
Classes 54 to 56 plus column 14 minus
column 7) (if negative,
See note 13 enter "0")
O See note 14
Q 225
1 43,350.04 43,350.04
2 571,170,661.00 416,789,842.00 416,789,842.00 571,170,661.00
3 1,159,984,397.32 497,946,123.00 497,946,123.00 1,159,984,397.32
4 85,465.60 85,465.60
5
6
7
8

Totals

T5013 SCH 8 E (23)
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EB-2025-0192
F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

Protected B when completed

— Part 3 — CCA calculation (continued)

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Net capital cost additions UCC adjustment for AlIP UCC adjustment for CCArate % Recapture of CCA Terminal loss CCA UCC at the end of the
of AlIP and property and property included in property acquired during (for declining balance fiscal period (column 10
included in ClI 54 Cl 54 to 56 acquired the fiscal period other than See note 17 See note 18 See note 19 method, the result of minus column 23)
to 56 acquired during the during the fiscal period AlIP and property included column 15 plus
fiscal period (column 14 (column 17 multiplied in Classes 54 to 56 column 18 minus
minus column 16) by the relevant factor) (0.5 multiplied by the result column 19, multiplied
(if negative, enter "0") of column 13 minus by column 20, or a lower
See note 15 column 14 minus column 6 amount, plus column 12)
plus column 7 minus
column 8) (if negative, See note 20
enter "0")
See note 16
224, EH « BH 1220

1 5.00 a\ 3,034.50 40,315.54
2 416,789,842.00 208,394,921.00 571,170,661.00
3 497,946,123.00 248,973,061.50 8.00 AN \ 47,161,994.82 1,112,822,402.50
4 30.00 ) O 25,639.68 59,825.92
5 AN Y
6 D)/
7 !
8

otals 47,190,669.00

Enter the amount from line 230 on line 107 of T5013 Schedule 1.
Enter the amount from line 240 on line 404 of T5013 Schedule 1. O
Enter the amount from line 250 on line 403 of T5013 Schedule 1.

e

Note 3: If a class number has not been provided in Schedule Il of egutations for a particular class of property, use the subsection provided in Regulation 1101.

s become available for use, net of any assistance received or entitled to be received in the fiscal period from a government,
after the application of section 80. This property would have been previously excluded from column 3. List separately any acquisitions
ome Tax Folio S3-F4-C1, General Discussion of Capital Cost Allowance, for exceptions to the 50% rule. Do not include any amount in

Note 4: Include any property acquired in previous fiscal periods that
municipality or other public authority, or a reduction of capital &
of property in the class that are not subject to the 50% rule. See
column 3 in respect of property included in column 5 (see note 6.

Note 5: A DIEP reported in column 4 is a property acquired after December 31, 2021, by a Canadian partnership (all of the members of which were, throughout the period, Canadian-controlled private
corporations, individuals (other than trusts) resident in Canada or a combination thereof) that becomes available for use before 2025 (if all the members are individuals throughout the fiscal period),
or before 2024 in any other case. The property is designated as such on or before the day that is 12 months after the filing due date of an information return under section 229 of the Regulations by
any member of the partnership for the fiscal period to which the designation relates. It includes all capital property subject to the CCA rules, if certain conditions are met, other than property included in
Classes 110 6, 14.1, 17, 47, 49, and 51. A property can only qualify as DIEP in the fiscal period in which it becomes available for use. See subsection 1104(3.1) of the Regulations for more information.

If there is more than one source of income, the total amount of DIEP reported in Part 2 (total of column 3) should be equal to the total amount of DIEP reported in Part 3 (total of column 4).

T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 4 of 6



EB-2025-0192
F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

— Part 3 — CCA calculation (continued)

Note 6: Enter in column 5, "Adjustments and transfers", amounts that increase or reduce the UCC (column 10). Items that increase the UCC include amounts transferred under subsection 97(2). ltems that
reduce the UCC (show amounts that reduce the UCC in brackets) include assistance received or receivable during the fiscal period for a property, subsequent to its disposition, if such assistance
would have decreased the capital cost of the property by virtue of paragraph 13(7.1)(f). See the Guide T4068 for other examples of adjustments and transfers to include in column 5.

Also include property acquired in a non-arm's length transaction (other than by virtue of a right referred to in paragraph 251(5)(b) of the Act) if the property was a depreciable property acquired by the
transferor at least 364 days before the end of your fiscal period and continuously owned by the transferor until it was acquired by you.

Note 7: Include all amounts of assistance you received (or were entitled to receive) after the disposition of a depreciable property that would have decreased the capital cost of the property by virtue of
paragraph 13(7.1)(f) if received before the disposition.

Note 8: Include all amounts you have repaid during the fiscal period for any legally required repayment, made after the disposition of a corresponding property, of:
— assistance that would have otherwise increased the capital cost of the property under paragraph 13(7.1)(d) and
— an inducement, assistance, or any other amount contemplated in paragraph 12(1)(x) received, that otherwise would have increased the capital cost of the property under paragraph 13(7.4)(b)
Also include property acquired in a non-arm's length transaction (other than by virtue of a right referred to in paragraph 251(5)(b) of the Act) if the property was a depreciable property acquired by
the transferor less than 364 days before the end of your fiscal period and continuously owned by the transferor until it was acquired by you.
Note 9: For each property disposed of during the fiscal period, deduct from the proceeds of disposition any outlays and expenses to the extent that they were made or incurred for the purpose of making
the disposition(s). The amount reported in respect of the property cannot exceed the property's capital cost, unless that property is a timber resource property as defined in subsection 13(21).
If the cost of a zero-emission passenger vehicle (or a passenger vehicle that was, at any time, a DIEP) exceeds the prescribed nt and it is disposed of to a person or partnership with which you
deal at arm's length, the proceeds of disposition will be adjusted based on a factor equal to the prescribed amount as a propar he actual cost of the vehicle. The actual cost of the vehicle will be
adjusted for payment or repayment of government assistance.
Note 10: If the amount in column 5 (as shown in brackets) reduces the UCC, you must subtract it for the purposes of the calcula

dd the amount in column 5 for the purpose of the calculation.

Note 11: The amount to enter in column 11 must not exceed the amount in column 10. If it does, enter in column 11 the ameu If the amount determined in column 10 is zero or a negative
amount, enter zero. The only amounts incurred before 2022, to be included in this column are certain i f chases fram arm's length persons or partnerships where the conditions in
paragraphs 1100(0.3)(a) to (c) are met.

Note 12: Immediate expensing applies to a DIEP included in column 11. The total immediate expensing for i iod al of c6lumn 12) is limited to the lesser of:

bsequent fiscal periods ending in a calendar year, if you have two or more fiscal periods ending in the
g in that calendar year

calendar year in which you are associated with another EPOP t
— any amount allocated by the minister under subsection 1104(3:4

2. UCC of the DIEP: total of column 11

3. Income earned from the source in which the DIEP is used:‘amount from line 156 or relevant source of income from line 165

(2]

Note 13: An AlIP is a property (other than property included in Classes 54 ) that you acquired after November 20, 2018, and that became available for use before 2028.
Classes 54 and 55 include zero-emission vehicles that you acquired after March 18, 2019, and that became available for use before 2028.
Class 56 applies to eligible zero-emission automotive equipment and vehicles (other than motor vehicles) that are acquired after March 1, 2020, and that became available for use before 2028.
See Guide T4068 for more information.

Note 14: Include only elements from columns 6 and 7 that are not related to the DIEP.

T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 5 of 6



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

— Part 3 — CCA calculation (continued)

Note 15: The relevant factors for property of a class in Schedule Il, that is an AlIP or included in Classes 54 to 56, available for use before 2024 are:
_ 2 1/3 for property in Classes 43.1, 54, and 56
— 1 1/2 for property in Class 55
_ 1 for property in Classes 43.2 and 53
_ 0 for property in Classes 12, 13, 14, and 15, as well as properties that are Canadian vessels included in paragraph 1100(1)(v) of the Regulations (see note 20 for additional information) and
_ 0.5 for all other property that is an AlIP
Note 16: The UCC adjustment for property acquired during the fiscal period (also known as the half-year rule or 50% rule) does not apply to certain property (including AlIP and property included in Classes 54
to 56). Include only elements from columns 6 and 7 that are not related to the DIEP.
For special rules and exceptions, see Income Tax Folio S3-F4-C1, General Discussion of Capital Cost Allowance.

Note 17: Enter a rate only if you are using the declining balance method. For any other method (for example, the straight-line method, where calculations are always based on the cost of acquisitions),
enter N/A. Then enter the amount you are claiming in column 23.

Note 18: If the amount in column 10 is negative, you have a recapture of CCA. If applicable, enter the negative amount from column 10 in column 21 as a positive. The recapture rules do not apply to
passenger vehicles in Class 10.1. However, they do apply to a passenger vehicle that was, at any time, a DIEP.

Note 19: If no property is left in the class at the end of the fiscal period and there is still a positive amount in the column 10, you have a te | loss. If applicable, enter the positive amount from column 10
in column 22. The terminal loss rules do not apply to:

— passenger vehicles in Class 10.1
— property in Class 14.1, unless you have ceased carrying on the business to which it relates

Note 20: If the fiscal period is shorter than 365 days, prorate the CCA claim. Some classes of property do ng

— Class 13: the lesser of 150% of the amount calculated in Schedule Il of the Regulations and the ‘ e end of the fiscal period (before any CCA deduction)

— Class 14: the lesser of 150% of the allocation for the fiscal period of the capital cost of the property apportioned over the remaining life of the property (at the time the cost was incurred) and
the UCC at the end of the fiscal period (before any CCA deduction)

— Class 15: the lesser of 150% of an amount computed on the basis of a rate per ard foot, or cubic metre cut in the fiscal period and the UCC at the end of the fiscal period (before any
CCA deduction)

— Canadian vessels described under paragraph 1100(1)(v) of the uI
deduction)

— Class 41.2: use a 25% CCA rate. The additional allowan
eligible for the accelerated investment incentive. The
investment incentive

The AlIP also applies to property (other than a timber resourc

mine or a right to remove minerals from an industrial mineral mi

erty) that is a timber limit or a right to cut timber from a limit as well as to industrial mineral
ee the Income Tax Regulations for more detail.

T5013 SCH 8 E (23) Page 6 of 6



EB-2025-0192

F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

Fixed Assets Reconciliation

Reconciliation of change in fixed assets per financial statements to amounts used per tax return.

Partnership information return
Additions for tax purposes — regular classes (T5013 Schedule 8) 914,735,965|00
Additions for tax purposes — leasehold improvements (T5013 Schedule 8)
Operating leases capitalized for book purposes
Capital gain deferred
Recapture deferred
Deductible expenses capitalized for book purposes (T5013 Schedule 1)
Other (specify):

CWIP Additions + -497,946,123/00

Total additions per partnership information return 416,789,842|00 » 416,789,842‘00

+ 4+ 4+ 4+ 4+

Proceeds up to original cost — regular classes (T5013 Schedule 8)
Proceeds up to original cost — leasehold improvements (T5013 Schedule 8)
Proceeds in excess of original cost — capital gain

Recapture deferred — as above

Capital gain deferred — as above

Pre V-day appreciation

Other (specify):
PPE write off -122,492|55
Rounding \ ) + -0/45
Total proceeds per partnership info }\(et n -122,493|00 > —122,493‘00
Depreciation and amortization per financial statements (T5013 Schedule 1) \ - 18,001,799/00
Loss on disposal of fixed assets per financial statements - 1,106,661|00
Gain on disposal of fixed assets per financial statements ( \ ﬂ +
\ \Ngt cb%ge per partnership information return = 397,803,875/00
Financial statements
Fixed assets (excluding land) per financial statements
Closing net book value 1,778,328,145/00
Opening net book value O/ (\J — 1,380,524,270/00
Net change per financial statements = 397,803,875/00

If the amounts from the tax return and the financial state@nh@n why below.

V
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Canada Revenue
Agency

Agence du revenu
du Canada

2023-12-31

Partner's Ownership and Account Activity

EB-2025-0192

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327

Protected B when completed

T5013
Schedule 50

Partnership name

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

788304327RZ0001

Partnership account number

Fiscal period end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

Original

D Amended

® |f you do not have enough space to list all the information, use an additional Schedule 50.

Attach the original copy of this completed schedule to Form T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return.

Fill out this schedule to reconcile each partner’s interest in the partnership (including partners who retired during the fiscal period).
All the information requested in this form and in the documents supporting your information return is “prescribed information”.
Fill out this schedule using the instructions in Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information Return (T5013 forms).

Number of partners

Number of partners who disposed of all,
or part of, their partnership interest

Number of nominees or agents

Total of all amounts from line 220

L

Partner 1

Ownership

~

Fiscal period's income (loss)

allocation

Account activity

Partner name

id the partner dispose of
interest during the
fiscal period?

I >20

Type of Partner's share of
First Nation LP Partner identification number partner the net income (loss) Cost base
| 722558525RZ0001 | 3 Lo ) s10000 | [ ] Yes No 0.00 140338371.00
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310 Ed E 410 420 430

Partner's share of Partner’s share in

the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in drawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period /\R the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

30753,00000

Partner 2

\) <
Ownership

Fiscal period's income (loss)

allocation

Account activity

Partner name

>

Percentage (%)

Did the partner dispose of

110 I I >20 |

Type of Partner of partner's an interest during the Partner's share of
Fortis (WP) LP Partner identification number partner code interest fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
\ 749436499RZ0001 | 3 0 489900 | | | ves No 0.00 134009205.00
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310 Ed 340 E 410 420 430

Partner's share of Partner’s share in

the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in Withdrawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

29,547,000.00

T5013 SCH 50 E (17)

Approval code: RC-23-P009

i+l

Canadi
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EB-2025-0192
F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
2024-05-30 16:14 788304327

Protected B when completed

Partner 3 Ownership Fiscal per;ﬁgcsalt?::me (loss) Account activity
101] 105 I 106 110 E 300]
Partner name Percentage (%) | Did the partner dispose of
Type of Partner of partner's an interest during the Partner's share of
Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. Partner identification number partner code interest fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
\ 815046362RC0001 | 2 2 00100 | | ] Yes No 0.00 N/A
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310] Ed 340 350 410] 420] 430
Partner's share of Partner’s share in
the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in Withdrawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

Partner 4 Ownership 4\(\\ Fiscal pel‘;ﬁgcsalt?::me (loss) Account activity

101] 105 IR 106 IS D/ I 220 | E

Partner name id the partner dispose of
Type of Parther n interest during the Partner's share of
Partner identification number partner cod

D Yes D No

fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
Account activity (continued)

At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)

310 Ed 410 420 430
Partner's share of Partner’s share in
the previous fiscal Capital @ Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in awals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal peripd <\ fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable
A
Partner 5 \) \7 Ownership Fiscal period's income (loss) Account activit
allocation y
100 101 [N 105 106 110 I I 220 E
Partner name Percentage (%) | Did the partner dispose of
Type of Partner of partner's an interest during the Partner's share of
Partner identification number partner code interest fiscal period? the net income (loss) Cost base
\ | [ lves [ INo
Account activity (continued) At-risk amount (ARA) (for limited partners only)
310 Ed 340 E 410 420 430
Partner's share of Partner’s share in
the previous fiscal Capital Partner's share of certain reductions of Non-arm's length
Cost of units acquired period's net contributions in Withdrawals in Other the fiscal period's resource expenses for debt owing and/or
during the fiscal period income (loss) the fiscal period the fiscal period adjustment net income the fiscal period benefits receivable

See the privacy notice on your return.
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F788304327-TF-2023-Wataynikaneyap Power LP 2023-12-31 Wataynikaneyap Power LP
788304327

2024-05-30 16:14

List Detailing the Partner's Ownership and Account Activity

Partnership Wataynikaneyap Power LP

Partner Partner | Percentage (%) Line Line Line Line Line Line
code of partner's
interest
1 First Nation LP 0 51.0000
2 Fortis (WP) LP 0 48.9900
3 Wataynikaneyap Power GP Inc. 2 0.0100
Total

@@%
@Q@
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EB-2025-0192

I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Protected B when completed
Agency du Canada

Summary of Partnership Income T5013
Summary

Fill out this summary and the related slips using the instructions in Guide T4068, Guide for the Partnership Information
Return (T5013 Forms).

The partnership information return is made up of three parts:
® T5013 FIN, Partnership Financial Return
® All the T5013 schedules the partnership has to file, depending on its fiscal situation
® T5013, Statement of Partnership Income, slips and this summary

Do not use this area.

If you make certain payments to a non-resident of Canada, the amounts must be reported on an NR4 return. For more
information, see Guide T4061, NR4 — Non-Resident Tax Withholding, Remitting and Reporting.

50 1616

For more information on filing the partnership information return, go to canada.ca/t5013-filing-requirements. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

~ Part 1 — Identification

Partnership's account number Year Month Day Year Month Day
78830 4327 RZ0001 Fiscal period-start | 2023-01-01 Fiscal period-end \ 2023-12-31

Name of the partnership Postal or ZIP code
Wataynikaneyap Power LP L2A 5Y2

Are you a nominee or an agent? (If yes, provide the following information) .. ............... Qe D Yes D No

Nominee or agent's account number Name of the nominee or agent é Postal or ZIP code

Is the partnership a tax shelter? . ... .. T T D Yes No

If yes, enter the tax shelter identification number (TS)  ......... ... ... ....... AN ‘

~ Part 2 — Totals from T5013 slips
Total number of T5013 information slips attached .. .............., N L\ D 009 3

Total limited partner's business income (I0ss) . ... .. 010
Total business INCOME (I0SS) .+ v v v vttt et e R 020
Total capital gains (I0SSES)  + it i i e 030
Capital cost allowance ... ..ot 040 47,190,669.00

Fill out the six boxes below using the information found on the T5013

Canadian and foreign net rental income (loss) 110
Professional income (I0SS) v v vttt N 120

Renounced Canadian exploration expenses 190
Renounced Canadian development expenses O 191
Expenses qualifying foranITC*  .......... L 194
Total carrying charges ... ... 40D 210
* Line 194 is the total of all the amounts in boxeg 19 9 of‘all the T5013 slips.
~ Part 3 — Contact information <
076 | Person to contact about this summary 078 | Telephone number
Ernst & Young LLP (416) 864-1234
~ Part 4 — Certification
| certify that the information given in this summary and the related slips is correct and complete.
| 20240530 | CFO
Year Month Day Signature of authorized person Position or office
Prepared by Year Month Day
Ernst & Young LLP 2024-05-30

~ Part 5 — Privacy notice

Personal information is collected to administer or enforce the Income Tax Act and related programs and activities including administering tax, benefits,

audit, compliance, and collection. The information collected may be used or disclosed for the purposes of other federal acts that provide for the imposition and
collection of a tax or duty. It may also be disclosed to other federal, provincial, territorial, or foreign government institutions to the extent authorized by law.
Failure to provide this information may result in paying interest or penalties, or in other actions. Under the Privacy Act, individuals have a right of protection,
access to and correction of their personal information, or to file a complaint with the Privacy Commissioner of Canada regarding the handling of their personal
information. Refer to Personal Information Bank CRA PPU 224 on Information about Programs and Information Holdings at
canada.cal/cra-information-about-programs.

i+l
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EB-2025-0192

I* I Canada Revenue  Agence du revenu YYYY-MM-DD T501 3
Agency du Canada Fiscal period-end

Exercice se terminant le 2023-12-31 . Statement of Partnership Income

AAAA-MM-JJ Etat des revenus d'une société de personnes

iler _ 5 Tax shelter identification number (see statement on back *)
Filer's name and address — Nom et adresse du déclarant Numeéro d'inscription de I'abri fiscal (lisez I'énoncé au dos *)

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

1130 Bertie Street Partner code Country code Recipient type
. Code de I'associé Code du pays Genre de bénéficiaire
Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2 i u pay: ciai
[002] 0 | [o003] CAN | [o04] 4 \
Partnership account number (15 characters) Total limited partner's business income (loss) Total business income (loss)
Numéro de compte de la société de personnes (15 caractéres) Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise du commanditaire Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise
001] 788304327RZ0001 | [010] [ ] [020] [ ]
Partner's share (%) of partnership
Partner's identification number Part de I'associé (%) dans Total capital gains (losses) Capital cost allowance
Numéro d'identification de I'associé la société de personnes Total des gains (pertes) en capital Déduction pour amortissement
006 | 722558525RZ0001 1005]  51.000000] 1030 | ] 040 24,067,241/19|
Partner's name and address — Nom et adresse de I'associé
Last name (print) — Nom de famille (en lettres moulées) First name — Prénom  Initials — Initiales
» | First Nation LP
300 Anemki Place, Suite C
Fort William First Nation ON P7] 1H9
Box Box
Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
10s][ | A\63,909,013[51] [ 106][ ][ 163,909,013/51]
Box & Box
Case  Code Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
[us]| D\ 49&»51884\22\\ Ll [ ]
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case___ Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
NS
X Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Cas ode Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements ase Code Amount — Montant Case Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case Code Amount — Montant
U b Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\/
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renee@ley wents Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\) V
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements, Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
V4
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case Code Amount — Montant

See the privacy notice on your return
Consultez l'avis de confidentialité dans votre déclaration

For Partnership 4
T5013 (21) Protected B when completed — Protégé B une fois rempli Pour la société de personnes 4



EB-2025-0192

I* I Canada Revenue  Agence du revenu YYYY-MM-DD T501 3
Agency du Canada Fiscal period-end

Exercice se terminant le 2023-12-31 . Statement of Partnership Income

AAAA-MM-JJ Etat des revenus d'une société de personnes

iler _ 5 Tax shelter identification number (see statement on back *)
Filer's name and address — Nom et adresse du déclarant Numeéro d'inscription de I'abri fiscal (lisez I'énoncé au dos *)

Wataynikaneyap Power LP

1130 Bertie Street Partner code Country code Recipient type
. Code de I'associé Code du pays Genre de bénéficiaire
Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2 i u pay: ciai
002 o | [o03] can | [004] 4|
Partnership account number (15 characters) Total limited partner's business income (loss) Total business income (loss)
Numéro de compte de la société de personnes (15 caractéres) Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise du commanditaire Total du revenu (de la perte) d’entreprise
001] 788304327RZ0001 | [010] [ ] [020] [ ]
Partner's share (%) of partnership
Partner's identification number Part de I'associé (%) dans Total capital gains (losses) Capital cost allowance
Numéro d'identification de I'associé la société de personnes Total des gains (pertes) en capital Déduction pour amortissement
006 | 749436499RZ0001 1005  48.990000] 1030 | ] 040 23,118,708/ 74]
Partner's name and address — Nom et adresse de I'associé
Last name (print) — Nom de famille (en lettres moulées) First name — Prénom  Initials — Initiales
» | Fortis (WP) LP
1130 Bertie Street
PO BOX 1218
i Box Box
Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2 Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
L 10s][ | “\57,530,935065) | 106]| || 157,530,935/65]
Box & Box
Case  Code Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
L8] I 4;510780\55\\ [ | ]
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case___ Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
NS
X Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Cas ode Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements ase Code Amount — Montant Case Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case Code Amount — Montant
U b Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\/
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renee@ley wents Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
\) V
Box Box
Box —Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements, Case  Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
V4
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case  Code Amount — Montant
Box Box
Box — Case Code Other information — Autres renseignements Case Code Amount — Montant Case Code Amount — Montant

See the privacy notice on your return
Consultez l'avis de confidentialité dans votre déclaration

For Partnership 4
T5013 (21) Protected B when completed — Protégé B une fois rempli Pour la société de personnes 4



Canada Revenue
Agency

Agence du revenu
du Canada

L4 |

Fiscal period-end

Exercice se terminant le

EB-2025-0192

YYYY-MM-DD T5013
2023-12-31 . Statement of Partnership Income
AAAA-MM-JJ Etat des revenus d'une société de personnes

Filer's name and address — Nom et adresse du déclarant
Wataynikaneyap Power LP

1130 Bertie Street

Fort Erie ON L2A 5Y2

Tax shelter identification number (see state